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SENATOR NETHING: Opened the hearing on SB2009; A BILL FOR AN ACT TO 
PROVIDE AN APPROPRIATION FOR DEFRA YING THE EXPENSES OF THE 
AGRICULTURE COMMISSIONER; AND TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 4-01-21 
OF THE NORTH DAKOTA CENTURY CODE, RELATING TO THE SALARY OF THE 
AGRICULTURE COMMISSIONER. 

ROGER JOHNSON: The North Dakota Commissioner of Agriculture to testify in support of 
SB2009 (testimony attached (tape 2, side A, meter 3090-end & side B, meter 0-620). 

SENATOR ROBINSON: I have a question for 0MB about the testimony on Page 8. The issue 
is the deficiency appropriation of $27,850 requested and denied. How do you make that 
determination, what is the rationale for denial? 

JEFF LARS HUS: Due to the small amount, that was requested and the money they had left in 
their budget, this biennium would be able to cover the deficiency. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: I would like a schedule of the ERP funds and how they come in, from 
who, how much is costing each gallon. I want to see the cost to farmers for these ERP funds. 

ROGER JOHNSON: We will be glad to provide it. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: On the Waterbank Program, you requested an additional $100,000.00. 
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Is that right? You received $500,000.00 from Game & Fish on December 3, 1997, have you not? 
On Safe Send Project, you had 2 emergency Federal funds, one of $182,000.00 and one of 
$75,000, we spent that much on Project Safe Send in addition to what was appropriated 2 years 
ago? 

ROGER JOHNSON: Yes, yes. Let me take these one at a time. The Waterbank funds that you 
requested. We generally enter into 10 year contracts, while the dollars are obligated, they 
actually are not spent. They have to be set aside for the full 10 years. This is what I think 
happened with Project Safe Send. This is a result of changing Safe Send during the flood in the 
Red River Valley. We scratched our plans because of the disaster and we did a special Safe Send 
that involved EPA coming in and paying for it. I think the emergency fund requests are federal 
fund spending authority. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: This was spent in addition to what was appropriated 2 years ago for 
Project Safe Send? 

ROGER JOHNSON: Yes, that would be true, except the dollars in that fund remaining get 
carried over. There is about $100,000.00 still there for this biennium. These are from the ERP 
fund. 

SENATOR BOWMAN: On Project Safe Send - When the bill was originally passed and 
collection of all the containers, we would go back and reduce some of the fees. We increased 
those fees tremendously from what they were. Have we addressed that anywhere or have we just 
went ahead and used that as a way to generate more wealth in the state rather than look at those 
that have funded this project. 

ROGER JOHNSON: I was not here when that happened. We will try to deal with that 
following the hearing. 

KAY EAGLESON: I represent Gifts Dakota Style in Jamestown, ND (tape 2, side B, meter 
1158-1370). We do a catalog of North Dakota products. Have been involved with Pride of 
Dakota since 1989. Our catalog is funded partially by Pride of Dakota. About one-half of our 
mailing list is North Dakota related. Have received some funding for developing use of the 
Internet. 

PAUL THOMAS: I work for AMS and I am Administrator of the North Dakota Dry Pea and 
Lentils Council and the growers (tape 2, side B, meter 1380-1560). It is a tribute to the Ag 
Department and for the little bit of funding we have used , and how far we have gotten in 
promoting our products. 

WOODY BARTH: Farmer and Rancher from Solen, ND (tape 2, side B, meter 1567-1810). I 
serve as the chairperson of a six member credit review board which sets policy for the North 
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Dakota Ag Mediation Service. I am here to support the budget and the budget enhancement 
request. 

MARGIE FROEHLICH: Resident of Mandan, North Dakota (tape 2, side B, meter 
1812-2635). She testified on a skunk problem that she had in her back yard in Mandan, ND. She 
tried to get help from many agencies, and it appeared that everyone talked to had a reason for not 
being able to dispose of the skunk. For these reasons I am here in support of Wildlife Services 
and they are a very valuable department. 

TIM FOWLER: Director of the Research Extension Center at Hettinger, North Dakota. I am 
testifying in behalf of the Ag Department budget, specifically the Wildlife Services (tape 2, side 
B, metre 2640-2940). We want to be sure that animal damage control or Wildlife Services is 
there in 7 or 8 years when we want to implement our research. 

FRANCIS MAHER: I represent the Board of Animal Health, the commercial cattlemen. I am 
speaking in support of the AG Department budget (tape 2, side B, meter 3948-3110). Our 
feeling is that the State Veterinarian and the Assistant should spend more time in the field doing 
what they were hired to do. 

WADE MOSER: I represent the North Dakota Stockmen's Association (tape 2, side B, meter 
3116-3460). We have three areas of the budget that concern us. The Livestock Division, Brand 
Inspectors, Wildlife Services Division. The last one is the Board of Animal Health. We feel that 
the Board of Animal Health budget should be looked at closely and possibly some positions 
added. 

DOUG DUKART: I represent the dairy part of the budget (tape 2, side B, meter 3463-3695). 
The inspection part of this service is very much needed. The new position of the Livestock 
Specialist is an area that we can benefit from in the dairy industry. 

LARRY KLEINGARTNER: I am here to express our support for the Wildlife Services 
Division request for 2 additional positions (tape 2, side B, meter 3725-4005). Those positions 
would be shared by urban work and sunflower growers. There has been a great deal learned 
about controlling blackbirds in sunflower fields , and we hope that this program can be successful 
over the next several years in reducing damage in sunflower fields. 

BILL PFEIFFER: I am speaking on behalf of the North Dakota Chapter of the Wildlife Society 
(tape 2, side B, meter 4010-4115). I wish to testify on the portion of the bill that deals with the 
Water bank. We endorse the utilization of the money from the ERP funds, as a reward to the 
landowners that are willing to allow those rain drops to fall on the land. This would be matched 
by EPA. I also wish to testify on the Wildlife Service aspect. We highly endorse those portions 
of the bill that I have spoke on. 
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SENATOR BOWMAN: What will this Wildlife Services Division do that the Game and Fish 
officer cannot do? 

JOHN PAULSON: I am District Supervisor with Wildlife Services. Currently the North 
Dakota Game and Fish Wardens do not have the tools necessary to deal with skunk problems. 
They do not carry live traps, they do not have euthanasia equipment. All of our personnel are 
equipped to handle these problems. At the present time, the Game and Fish deals with Deer 
depredation, and every other species is under the responsibility of the Wildlife Services. 

SENATOR BOWMAN: My question is that if they only shot the skunk, it does not take a 
whole program to come up with a gun to shoot a skunk. If there is a problem like that, do we 
need to change the law so that your neighbor could have shot the skunk. 

JOHN PAULSON: The Police Departments in the city limits are the only ones allowed to 
discharge a firearm. They do not have the type firearm available, other than their pistol to deal 
with it. Some Police Chiefs have decided that they do not want to deal with these type of 
problems. 

GARY KNUTSON: I am the Executive Director of the North Dakota Ag Association (tape 2, 
side B, meter 4615-4695). We want to endorse and urge continued support for Project Safe Send 
and the Minor Use Program funding. We feel this program is going to continue to grow. 

ERLIN LIGHTHOLD: I represent the North Dakota Weed Control Association (tape 2, side B, 
meter 4700-5075). We are in favor of the bill and keeping our noxious weed budget where it is 
at. The Landowner Assistance Program money goes directly from the state to the county, which 
the county administers 100% of that to the landowner. We ask for continued funding. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Closed the hearing on SB2009. 

2/12/99 Tape 2, Side A, 4688-5050 

SENATOR NETHING: Reopened the hearing on SB 2009. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Presented amendments to SB 2009, and noted 1 FTE in the livestock 
division had not been included in the amendment. This position does not add additional funding. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Moved do pass amendments to SB 2009 including the 1 FTE as 
outlined. 
SENATOR TOMAC: Seconded the motion. 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY BY VOICE VOTE. 
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SENATOR SOLBERG: Moved do pass SB 2009 as amended. 
SENATOR NAADEN: Seconded the motion 
ROLL CALL: 14 yeas; 0 nays; 0 absent & not voting 
MOTION CARRIED TO DO PASS SB 2009 AS AMENDED. 

CARRIER:SENATORSOLBERG 

SENATOR NETHING: Closed the hearing on SB 2009. 
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Narrative: 

The Executive Budget Recommendation fo r the commissioner of agri culture 
(Department of Agricultu r e) is b r oken down in the following thr ee 
segments: 

General Fund: 
Federal Funds: 
Specia l Funds: 

2. State fiscal effect in dollar amounts : 

$4 , 607,129 
$1,258,661 
$2,821,681 

Total Fu nds : $8,687,471 

1997-99 Biennium 1999-2001 Biennium 2001-03 Biennium 
General Special General Special General Special 

Fund Funds Fund Funds Fund Funds 

Revenues : 0 0 $4 , 607,129 $4,080 , 342 0 0 
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a. For rest of 1997-99 biennium: NONE 
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4. County, City, and School District fiscal effect in dollar amounts: 

1997-99 Biennium 
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1999-2001 Biennium 
School 

2001-03 Biennium 
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Module No: SR-30-3039 
Carrier: Solberg 

Insert LC: 98031.0104 Title: .0200 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2009: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Nething, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2009 was placed on the Sixth 
order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 13, replace "3 ,130,530" with "3 ,053,452" 

Page 1, line 17, replace "506,818" with "502,922" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "857,818" with "851 ,681" 

Page 1, line 22, replace "151 ,841" with "151 ,516" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "554,363" with "553,907" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "8,687,471" with "8 ,599,579" 

Page 2, line 3, replace "4,080 ,342" with "4,068,216" 

Page 2, line 4, replace "4,607,129" with "4 ,531 ,363" 

Page 2, line 8, replace "sixty-four" with "fifty-eight" and replace "one" with "two" 

Page 2, line 9, replace "twenty-four" with "sixty-two", after "2000" insert ", fifty-nine thousand 
four hundred twenty-eight dollars through December 31, 2000" , replace "sixty-six" with 
"sixty-four" , after "ooe" insert "five" , and remove the overstrike over "hundred" 

Page 2, line 10, replace "forty-seven" with "sixty-nine" 

Page 2, after line 10, insert: 

"SECTION 3. ESTIMATED INCOME - ENVIRONMENT AND RANGELAND 
PROTECTION FUND. The estimated income line item in section 1 of this Act includes 
the sum of $1 ,860,576, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from the 
environment and rangeland protection fund for the purpose of defraying the expenses 
of various agriculture department programs, for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, 
and ending June 30 , 2001 . 

SECTION 4. ESTIMATED INCOME - ANHYDROUS AMMONIA STORAGE 
INSPECTION FUND. The estimated income line item in section 1 of this Act includes 
the sum of $75,992, or so much of the sum as may be necessary , from the anhydrous 
ammonia storage inspection fund for the purpose of defraying the expenses of 
regulating anhydrous ammonia storage facilities , for the biennium beginning July 1, 
1999, and ending June 30 , 2001." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 602 - AGRICULTURE DEPARTMENT 

SENATE - This amendment makes the following changes: 

(1) LC, (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM Page No. 1 SR-30-3039 
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EXECUTIVE SENATE 
BUDGET CHANGES 

Salaries and wages $3,130,530 ($77,078) 
Operating expenses 828,957 
Equipment 22,900 
Grants 161 ,700 
Board of Animal Health 506,818 (3,896) 
Ag mediation 857,818 (6,137) 
Ag in the classroom 96,000 
Anhydrous ammonia storage 8,154 
Waterbank program 414,000 
Pride of Dakota 151 ,841 (325) 
Wildlife services 779,694 
Safe send 554 ,363 (456) 
Noxious weeds 1 174,696 

Total all funds $8,687,471 ($87,892) 

Less special funds 4,080 ,342 (12,126) 

General fund $4,607,129 ($75,766) 

FTE 46.00 1.00 

Detail of Senate changes to the executive budget includes: 

REDUCE ADJUST 
COMPENSATION HEALTH 

PACKAGE INSURANCE 
TO 2/2 COST 

Salaries and wages ($39,149) $9,978 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 
Grants 
Board of Animal Health (4,751 ) 855 
Ag mediation (8, 133) 1,996 
Ag in the classroom 
Anhydrous ammonia storage 
Waterbank program 
Pride of Dakota (468) 143 
Wildlife services 
Safe send (599) 143 
Noxious weeds 

Total all funds ($53,100) $13,115 

Less special funds (16,727) 4,601 

General fund ($36,373) $8,514 

FTE 0.00 0.00 

Senate changes narrative: 

SENATE 
VERSION 

$3,053,452 
828,957 

22,900 
161 ,700 
502,922 
851,681 

96 ,000 
8,154 

414,000 
151 ,516 
779,694 
553 ,907 

1 174 696 

$8,599,579 

4,068,216 

$4,531,363 

47.00 

DELAY 
MARKET 
SALARY 

ADJUSTMENTS 
TO 1/1/2001 

($17,907) 1,2 

($17,907) 

($17,907) 

0.00 

Module No: SR-30-3039 
Carrier: Solberg 

Insert LC: 98031.0104 Title: .0200 

AUTHORIZE 
REDUCE BOARD OF 
PLANT ANIMAL TOTAL 

SERVICES HEALTH SENATE 
PROGRAM POSITION CHANGES 

($30,000) 3 ($77,078) 

(3,896) 
(6, 137) 

(325) 

(456) 

($30,000) $0 ($87,892) 

(12,126) 

($30 ,000) $0 ($75,766) 

0.00 1.00 4 1.00 

In addition to the two percent annual salary increases, funding is included to provide the commissioner a market equity salary increase of $428.42 
per month for the final six months of the biennium. The statutory annual salary for the commissioner will be: 

Current salary 
July 1, 1999 
July 1, 2000 
January 1, 2001 

$57,120 
$58,262 
$59,428 
$64,569 

2 In addition to the two percent annual salary increases, funding is included to provide the deputy commissioner a market equity salary increase of 
$390.58 per month for the final six months of the biennium. 

3 Reduces funding for temporary and overtime salaries of the plant services program. 

4 Authorizes one FTE position for the Board of Animal Health . No additional funding is added for the position. 

Sections are added identifying the amounts being appropriated to the Agriculture Department from the environment and rangeland protection fund 
and the anhydrous ammonia storage inspection fund. 

(1) LC , (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM Page No. 2 SR-30-3039 
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SB 2009 - A bill for an act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the agriculture 
commissioner; and to amend and reenact section 4-01-21 of the ND Century Code, relating to the salary of 
the agriculture commissioner. 

CHAIRMAN WENTZ opened the hearing on SB 2009. 
IA: 1.0 ROGER JOHNSON, Agriculture Commissioner, testified in support of the bill and provided a review of 
the budget. (See testimony.) 
1 A: 14. 1 REP. CARLSON asked why the federal government funding had decreased so significantly. Mr. Johnson 
said that the budget agreement in Congress puts a cap on total agriculture spending. 
1 A: 23.0 REP. AARSVOLD asked about the potential financial costs if ND loses its TB-free status. Dr. Larry 
Schuler, State Veterinarian , said that there would be fees of $10-20 per head for testing cattle to meet other states' 
requirements. 
1 A: 25.5 MR. JOHNSON said that the federal government will indemnify producers of herds affected by TB. The 
state makes up the difference as to the value of the herd. There was discussion of the farmer whose herd was 
destroyed due to TB within the past few days. 
tA: 49.0 REP. NICHOLS asked about the increase in phytosanitary certificates. Dave Nelson, State Entomologist, 
said that there was an increase in the number of certificates necessary to move grain through Canada. The 
phytosanitary certificate has been replaced by the certificate of origin. 
1 B: 0. 1 BRIAN NIES testified in support of the bill. 
IB: 1.2 BEVERLY VOLLMER endorsed Ag mediation services and testified in support of the bill. 
1 B: 4.0 BONNIE WOODWORTH, President of ND Beekeepers Association, testified and asked the committee 
to remove the amendment of $30,000 for temporary funding salaries. 
1 B: 5.7 ROGER EMTER, Glen Ullin small business owner, testified in support of the Pride of Dakota program. 
1 B: 8. 7 DAROLD WALLS, Dakota Lake Products, Kensal, testified in support of the Pride of Dakota program. 
IB: 11.6 GARY KNUTSON endorsed project Safe Send and testified in support of the bill. 
1 B: 12.3 REP. JON NELSON, District 7, testified in support of the transfer of EARP funds into the Minor Use 
program. 
I B: 23.6 REP. LLOYD asked about the activity in other states with regard to the IR4 programs. Larry 
Kleingartner, Executive Director of ND Sunflowers Association, said that there are 8 sites in 5 other states. The 
residue sites are subsidized at $2500 each. 
1 B: 25.1 REP. DENNlS JOHNSON, District 12, testified in support of the Safe Send program. 
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IA: 25.9 REP. MONSON said that he is concerned about the canola pesticides. Barry Kollman, Northern Canola 
Growers Association , said that products have been sent to the EPA for testing. They will use this program again 
next year. 
I B: 31.8 MERLIN LIGHTHOLD, ND Weed Control Association, testified in support of the bill. 
I B: 36.4 BILL PFEIFER, ND Chapter of Wildlife Society, testified in support of the bill. 
I B: 41.8 LEO BRUNNER, Director of Parks for Minot Park District, testified in support of the bill. (See 
testimony.) 
CHAIRMAN WENTZ adjourned the meeting. The hearing remains open and will be continued on March 12, 
1999. 
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CHAIRMAN WENTZ opened discussion on SB 2009. 

Meter# 
8.8-44.9 

lA: 8.8 REP. LLOYD discussed amendments 0202. SB 2009 includes funds for Safesend (SB 2081) and Ag 
Mediation (SB 2289). He moved the amendments, and the motion was seconded by Rep. Nichols. 
IA: 20.2 REP. NICHOLS said he would resist the reduction of$120,000 from the general fund in Ag Mediation. 
There is already a terrible hit from the reduction in federa l funding, and it is wrong to hurt the fam1ers more. He 
moved to restore $120,000 to the general fund and designate the money for Ag Mediation . The motion was 
seconded by Rep. Aarsvold. 
IA: 23.5 REP. AARSVOLD said that by decreasing funds for Ag Mediation, they would be opening up the 
potential for more bankruptcies. 
lA: 24.7 A voice vote was taken and the motion failed. 
IA: 25.4 REP. AARSVOLD moved to amend the amendment by adding $100,000 to the Minor Use program in 
Section 7. The motion was seconded by Rep. Nichols. 
IA: 27.4 REP. MONSON said that he is a minor use pesticide user, but the amount of money he has seen coming 
to those groups from the check offs is very large. It is not necessary to add back in that area. 
IA: 28.5 REP. LLOYD asked which source the funds come from. Rep. Aarsvold replied that there are adequate 
resources in the EARP fund . Rep. Lloyd continued by saying that if the increase does not occur, there will only be 
$94,000 left in the EARP fund , which does not allow for $100,000 to go to Minor Use. 
I A: 30.5 A voice vote was taken and the motion failed . 
IA: 30.7 REP. AARSVOLD voiced his concern that whoever is on the conference committee will consider this. 



General Discussion 
Page 2 
House Appropriations, EE Division 
March 26, 1999 

IA: 31.5 REP. MONSON asked where the funds for Ag in the Classroom are coming from and what they are 
being used for. Rep. Boehm replied that the money comes from special funds , Farm Bureau, and Farmers Union. 
The money is used mainly to educate teachers. They are currently having trouble raising funds , but want the 
authority to spend it if they can raise it. 
IA: 32.9 REP. MONSON asked if PETA was involved. He had heard and seen things regarding PETA that ND 
kids should not be exposed to. Rep. Boehm replied that he does not think this is the case. He stated that the Farm 
Bureau and Farmers Union would not cooperate in any efforts with PETA. He would meet with board members to 
find out. 
IA: 35.8 A voice vote was taken on adopting amendment 0202. The motion carried. Rep. Aarsvold and Rep. 
Nichols voted no. 
IA: 36.6 REP. DALRYMPLE told the committee that he was considering offering a statement of legislative intent 
when the bill goes to full committee. The statement, regarding Safesend, said that the intent of Safesend was not to 
accept products from wholesalers and manufacturers unless they pay for the services. 
IA: 38.3 REP. CARLSON said he assumed the state was not picking up from wholesalers and manufacturers. 
Rep. Lloyd replied that they are listed in the data of where the products came from. He was told that some of these 
products came from farmers who do not want to be seen at the Safesend sight with materials they are dropping off. 
Getting rid of chemicals and materials is a cost of production for wholesalers and manufacturers and should not be a 
cost of the state. 
IA: 41.2 REP. AARSVOLD asked if ND has the potential of becoming a dumping ground because of the low cost 
disposal offered here. Rep. Lloyd said that this potential does exist. Some materials have crossed borders . 
IA: 43.0 REP. LLOYD moved for a Do Pass as amended. The motion was seconded by Rep. Boehm. A roll call 
vote was taken and the motion carried with 5 yeas and 2 nays. Rep. Lloyd will carry the bill to the full committee. 
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Chairman Dalrymple opened the discussion on Senate Bill 2009. 

Meter # 
12.4-32.6 

2B: 12.4 Rep. Lloyd discussion of amendment 98031.0202 to the committee. Rep. Lloyd 
moved to adopt the amendment. Rep. Poolman 2nd the motion. 

2B: 22.0 Rep. Aarsvold commented on concerns of cuts in budget. 

2B: 23.1 On a Voice Vote the motion carried to adopt the amendment. 

2B: 23.5 Rep. Dalrymple presented amendment 98031.0203 to committee. Brief discussion of 
amendment. Rep. Boehm moved to adopt the amendment. Rep. Monson 2nd the motion. On a 
Voice Vote the motion carried to adopt the amendment. 

2B: 26.2 Rep. Kerzman made a motion to further amend the bill and include $75 ,000 for the 
RCALF fund regarding Ag mediation. The money would come from general funds. The Senate 
hasn't found a source of money and would like to get into a conference committee regarding the 
issue. Rep. Aarsvold 2nd the motion. On a Voice Vote the motion failed . 
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General Discussion 
Page 2 
House Appropriations 
March 26, 1999 

2B: 31.3 Rep. Lloyd moved for a DO PASS AS AMENDED. Rep. Boehm 2nd the motion. On 
a Roll Call Vote the motion carried. 
15 voting YES 
4 voting NO 
1 voting ABSENT 
Carrier: Rep. Lloyd 
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Date April 2, 1999 
Tape Number 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Minutes: 

General Discussion 

□ Committee on Committees 

□ Rules Committee 

□ Confirmation Hearings 

□ Delayed Bills Committee 

~ House Appropriations 

□ Senate Appropriations 

□ Other 

Side A B Side 
X 

Meter # 
11 .3 -34.5 

lA: 11.3 Chairman Dalrymple opened the discussion on Senate Bill 2009. 

Two separate amendments to consider: .0206 & .0207. 
lA: 13.9 Rep. Lloyd explanation of amendments to bill as previously amended. Operating 
expenses are reduced by $100,000 instead of $200,000 to let the commissioner find $100,000 for 
Ag Mediation. Chairman Dalrymple asked about Ag Mediation language. 

lA: 15.7 Legislative Council explained the spending authority is restored in Ag Mediation line. 
It would allow them to make line item transfers without going to Emergency Commission. 

lA: 16.6 Rep. Gulleson commented this is not what she had in mind. Not sure that we've fixed 
anything here. There were questions regarding federal money being dropped. Moving the 
numbers to another line item is not the answer here by reducing the budget here, at all. 

lA: 17. 7 Rep. Aarsvold commented he would echo the same comments as Rep. Gulleson. 
Further commented on concern for industry and spending of funds and increase in registration 
fees . 
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General Discussion 
Page 2 
House Appropriations 
April 2, 1999 

lA: 18.4 Rep. Lloyd moved to adopt the amendments .0207. Rep. Boehm 2nd the motion. 

lA: 19.6 Rep. Byerly moved to Reconsider action on Senate Bill 2009. Rep. Wentz 2nd the 
motion. On a Voice Vote the motion carried. 

lA: 19.9 Rep. Hoffner asked with the amendment how many general fund dollars in line item. 
Legislative Council replied $776,681 . 

lA: 20.8 Rep. Dalrymple asked about restoration of position. Rep. Lloyd replied that with 
discussions the position was not that important compared to the $ for Ag Mediation. 

lA: 21.6 Rep. Gulleson commented throughout the session we have been trying to help out the 
Ag Sector which is one of the parts of our economy that needs the most focus right now. We 
come here and take $190,000 from the House side out of a $3 million budget and took a 
$150,000 total out of a $43 million Water Commission budget, and we took a $150,000 total out 
of a $9 million tax commission budget. It makes no sense to me and we are going in the absolute 
wrong direction. I don't understand it. Hoping it is not politics because if it is it's one of the 
worst kinds. 

lA: 22.6 Rep. Lloyd moved to add $100,000 of line item transfer authority to the entire budget. 
Rep. Boehm 2nd the motion. On a Voice Vote the motion carried . 
On a Voice Vote the amendment was adopted. 

lA: 25.6 Rep. Lloyd explanation of amendment .0206: assists in labeling and registration of 
chemicals that are being used in Canada, also enhances the labeling of products that are available 
in the United States but not being used on crops in ND. This is an opportunity to pursue this. 
Allows for a development of a committee: Chairman of Senate/House Ag committees and 
Governor appoints several people from the Ag Coalition to identify and prioritize the crop 
protection products and labeling needs. This will help with competitiveness and fairness. Rep. 
Lloyd moved the amendment. Rep. Wentz 2nd the motion. 

lA: 29.6 Rep. Aarsvold commented on the source of funding and jeapordization of relationship 
between private and public relationship. Hopes to defeat the amendment. 

lA: 32.0 Rep. Lloyd moved for a DO PASS AS AMENDED. Rep. Wentz 2nd the motion. On 
a Roll Call Vote the motion carried. 
15 voting YES 
5 voting NO 
Carrier: Rep. Lloyd 



98031 .0202 
Title . 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Lloyd 

March 26, 1999 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2009 

Page 1, line 2, replace "and" with "to provide for a transfer;", replace "section" with "sections" , 
and after "4-01-21" insert "and 19-18-04" 

Page 1, line 3 , after "commissioner" insert "and pesticide registration fees; and to declare an 
emergency" 

Page 1 , remove line 11 

Page 1, line 14, replace "828,957" with "758,957" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "851,681" with "676,681" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "553,907" with "573,907" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "8,599,579" with "8,374,579" 

Page 2, line 3, replace "4,068,216" with "4,033,216" 

Page 2, line 4, replace "4,531,363" with "4,341,363" 

Page 2, after line 11, insert: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 19-18-04 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

19-18-04. Registration - Fees. Any person before selling or offering for sale 
any pesticide for use within this state shall file biennially with the commissioner an 
application for registration of the pesticide. The application must: 

1. Give the name and address of each manufacturer or distributor. 

2. Give the name and brand of each product registered. 

3. Be accompanied by a current label of each product so registered. 

4. Be accompanied by a registration fee of tRfee four hundred dollars for each 
product registered. At the close of each calendar month, the commissioner 
shall transmit to the state treasurer all moneys received for the 
registrations. The state treasurer shall credit ~ sixty-seven dollars for 
each registered product to the general fund in the state treasury and the 
remainder of the registration fee for each registered product to the 
environment and rangeland protection fund. 

5. Be accompanied by a material safety data sheet. 

The commissioner may require an applicant or registrant to provide efficacy, 
toxicity, residue, and any other data necessary to determine if the pesticide will perform 
its intended function without unreasonable adverse effects on the environment. If the 
commissionerfinds. that the application conforms. to law, the commissioner.sbaU issue. 
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to the applicant a certificate of registration of the product. If after public hearing before 
the commissioner the application is denied, the product may not be offered for sale. 

Each registration covers a two-year period beginning January first and expiring 
December thirty-first of the following year. A certificate of registration may not be 
issued for a term longer than two years, and is not transferable from one person to 
another, or from the ownership to whom issued to another ownership, or from one place 
to another place or location. A penalty of fifty percent of the license or registration fee 
must be imposed if the license or certificate of registration is not applied for on or before 
January thirty-first following the expiration date, or within the same month the pesticides 
are first manufactured or sold within this state. Each product must go through a 
two-year discontinuance period in order to clear all outstanding products in the channel 
of trade. 

This section does not apply to a pesticide sold by a retail dealer if the 
registration fee has been paid by the manufacturer, jobber, or any other person, as 
required by this section." 

Page 2, after line 21, insert: 

"SECTION 6. ESTIMATED INCOME - GAME AND FISH FUND. The 
estimated income line item in section 1 of this Act includes the sum of $200,000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, from the game and fish department operating 
fund for the waterbank program for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending 
June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 7. TRANSFER. The office of management and budget shall transfer 
$85,000 from the environment and rangeland protection fund to the minor use pesticide 
fund for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 8. CONTINGENT APPROPRIATION - TRANSFER. If dual labeling 
of agricultural pesticides is approved, there is hereby appropriated the sum of $75,000, 
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from the environment and rangeland 
protection fund to the agriculture commissioner for the purpose of assisting in the 
creation of pesticide labels for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act 
and ending December 31, 2000. On January 1, 2001, the office of management and 
budget shall transfer an amount equal to the unspent appropriation authority remaining 
pursuant to the appropriation provided for in this section from the environment and 
rangeland protection fund to the minor use pesticide fund. 

SECTION 9. APPROPRIATION- BOARD OF ANIMAL HEALTH -1997-99 
BIENNIUM. There is hereby appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the 
state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $25,000, or so much of the sum 
as may be necessary, to the agriculture commissioner for the purpose of paying an 
indemnity and other expenses associated with destroying a herd of cattle infected with 
bovine tuberculosis for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and 
ending June 30, 1999. 

SECTION 10. EMERGENCY. Sections 8 and 9 of this Act are declared to be 
an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 602 - AGRICULTURE DEPARTMENT 

HOUSE - This amendment makes the following changes: 
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EXECUTIVE SENATE HOUSE HOUSE 
BUDGET VERSION CHANGES VERSION 

Salaries and wages $3,130,530 $3,053.452 $30,000 $3,083.452 
Operating expenses 828,957 828,957 (100,000) 728,957 

• 
Equipment 22.900 22,900 22,900 
Grants 161,700 161,700 161,700 
Board of Animal Health 506,818 502.922 502,922 
Ag mediation 857,818 851,681 (175,000) 676,681 
Ag in the classroom 96,000 96,000 96,000 
Anhydrous ammonia 8,154 8,154 8,154 
storage 

Waterbank program 414,000 414 ,000 414,000 
Pride of Dakota 151 ,841 151 ,516 151 ,516 
Wildlife services 779,694 779,694 779,694 
Safe Send 554 ,363 553 ,907 20,000 573,907 
Separate section - 75,000 75,000 

Dual labeling 
Noxious weeds 1,174,696 1 174,696 1,174,696 

Total all funds $8,687,471 $8,599,579 ($150,000) $8,449,579 

Less special funds 4,080,342 4,068,216 40,000 4,108,216 

General fund $4,607,129 $4,531 .363 ($190,000) $4,341 ,363 

FTE 46.00 47.00 (1 .00) 46.00 

Detail of House changes to the Senate version includes: 

RESTORE ADD 
FUNDING CONTINGENT 

FOR PLANT REDUCE REDUCE FUNDING ADD REMOVE AG 
SERVICES OPERATING AGRICULTURE FOR DUAL FUNDING FOR MEDIATION 
PROGRAM EXPENSES MEDIATION LABELING COMPUTERS NEGOTIATOR 

Salaries and wages $30,000 1 

Operating expenses ($100,000) 2 
Equipmen1 
Grants 
Board of Animal Health 
Ag mediation ($100,000) 3 ($75,000) 6 
Ag in the classroom 
Anhydrous ammonia 

storage 
Waterbank program 
Pride of Dakota 

• Wildlife services 
Safe Send $20,000 5 
Separate section - $75,000 4 

Dual labeling 
Noxious weeds 

Total all funds $30,000 ($100,000) ($100,000) $75,000 $20,000 ($75,000) 

Less special funds 75,000 20,000 (55,000) 

General fund $30,000 ($100,000) ($100,000) $0 $0 ($20,000) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (1.00) 

TOTAL 
HOUSE 

CHANGES 

Salaries and wages $30,000 
Operating expenses (100,000) 
Equipment 
Grants 
Board of Animal Heal1h 
Ag mediation (175,000) 
Ag in the classroom 
Anhydrous ammonia 

storage 
Waterbank program 
Pride of Dakota 
Wild life services 
Safe Send 20,000 
Separate section - 75,000 

Dual labeling 
Noxious weeds 

Total all funds ($150,000) 

Less special funds 40,000 

General fund ($190,000) 

• FTE (1.00) 

House changes narrative: 
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1 Restores funding reduced by the Senate for temporary and overtime salaries in the plant services 
program. 

2 Reduces operating expenses. The commissioner may determine the specific areas to reduce within 
this line item. 

3 Reduces agriculture mediation. The commissioner may determine the specific areas to reduce within 
this program. 

4 If dual labeling of pesticides is approved, an appropriation from the environment and rangeland 
protection fund is provided for creating the pesticide labels. Any of this funding that has not been 
spent by December 31, 2000, will be transferred to the minor use pesticide fund. 

5 Adds funding from the environment and rangeland protection fund for purchasing computers and 
related costs for the Safe Send program. 

6 Removes 1 FTE agriculture mediation negotiator position. 

A section is added providing for an $85,000 transfer from the environment and rangeland protection fund 
to the minor use pesticide fund. 

A section is added increasing the biennial pesticide registration fee from $300 to $400. Of the $400, $67 
is deposited in the general fund and $333 in the environment and rangeland protection fund. 

A section is added appropriating $25,000 from the general fund for the remainder of the 1997-99 
biennium for indemnifying the owner and paying other expenses associated with destroying a herd of 
cattle infected with bovine tuberculosis. · 
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Date: g ,}G ?(r 
Roll Call Vote #: / 

1999 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. ~ D(j q 

House Appropriations 

D Subcommittee on Education and Environment 

or 

D Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken 

Motion Made By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairperson Janet Wentz X 
Vice Chairman Ed Lloyd X, 
Rep. Ole Aarsvold X: 
Rep. James Boehm X 
Rep. Al Carlson ~ 
Rep. David Monson x:: 
Rep. Ronald Nichols )( 

' 

Total (Yes) 5 No d------------
Absent 

Floor Assignment ~ 
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Committee 

Yes No 
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Kerzman 0 
Lloyd v 
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Total (Yes) 1£6 No _ ___._1:1 ___ _ 
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Floor Assignment 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) 
March 29, 1999 3:43 p.m. 

Module No: HR-56-5890 
Carrier: Lloyd 

Insert LC: 98031.0205 Title: .0300 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2009, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Dalrymple, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (15 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING) . Engrossed SB 2009 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 2, replace the first "and" with "to provide a statement of legislative intent; to 
provide for a transfer;" , replace "section" with "sections", and after "4-01-21" insert "and 
19-18-04" 

Page 1, line 3, after "commissioner" insert "and pesticide registration fees ; and to declare an 
emergency" 

Page 1 , remove line 11 

Page 1, line 14, replace "828,957" with "758,957" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "851,681" with "676,681" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "553,907" with "573 ,907" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "8,599,579" with "8 ,374,579" 

Page 2, line 3, replace "4,068,216" with "4,033,216" 

Page 2, line 4, replace "4,531,363" with "4,341,363" 

Page 2, after line 11 , insert: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 19-18-04 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

19-18-04. Registration - Fees. Any person before selling or offering for sale 
any pesticide for use within this state shall file biennially with the commissioner an 
application for registration of the pesticide. The application must: 

1. Give the name and address of each manufacturer or distributor. 

2. Give the name and brand of each product registered. 

3. Be accompanied by a current label of each product so registered. 

4. Be accompanied by a registration fee of tl=tfee four hundred dollars for 
each product registered. At the close of each calendar month, the 
commissioner shall transmit to the state treasurer all moneys received for 
the registrations. The state treasurer shall credit fi#y sixty-seven dollars 
for each registered product to the general fund in the state treasury and 
the remainder of the registration fee for each registered product to the 
environment and rangeland protection fund. 

5. Be accompanied by a material safety data sheet. 

The commissioner may require an applicant or registrant to provide efficacy, 
toxicity , residue, and any other data necessary to determine if the pesticide will perform 
its intended function without unreasonable adverse effects on the environment. If the 
commissioner finds that the application conforms to law, the commissioner shall issue 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) 
March 29, 1999 3:43 p.m. 

Module No: HR-56-5890 
Carrier: Lloyd 

Insert LC: 98031.0205 Title: .0300 

to the applicant a certificate of registration of the product. If after public hearing before 
the commissioner the application is denied, the product may not be offered for sale. 

Each registration covers a two-year period beginning January first and expiring 
December thirty-first of the following year. A certificate of registration may not be 
issued for a term longer than two years, and is not transferable from one person to 
another, or from the ownership to whom issued to another ownership , or from one 
place to another place or location. A penalty of fifty percent of the license or 
registration fee must be imposed if the license or certificate of registration is not applied 
for on or before January thirty-first following the expiration date, or within the same 
month the pesticides are first manufactured or sold within this state. Each product 
must go through a two-year discontinuance period in order to clear all outstanding 
products in the channel of trade. 

This section does not apply to a pesticide sold by a retail dealer if the 
registration fee has been paid by the manufacturer, jobber, or any other person, as 
required by this section." 

Page 2, after line 21, insert: 

"SECTION 6. ESTIMATED INCOME - GAME AND FISH FUND. The 
estimated income line item in section 1 of this Act includes the sum of $200,000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, from the game and fish department operating 
fund for the waterbank program for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending 
June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE INTENT- PROJECT SAFE SEND. It is the intent 
of the legislative assembly that the agriculture commissioner not accept products under 
project safe send from wholesalers or manufacturers unless the full cost of disposal is 
recovered from the wholesaler or manufacturer. It is also the intent of the legislative 
assembly that products which are not a direct danger to the public should be disposed 
of by the owner in a proper manner. The agriculture commissioner may distribute 
educational materials on the proper and safe disposal of appropriate materials by the 
original purchaser for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 8. PROJECT SAFE SEND - FEES. The agriculture commissioner 
may charge wholesalers and manufacturers a fee for the disposal of pesticides located 
in North Dakota. The fee may be no less than the cost of disposal. All fees collected 
under this section must be deposited in the environment and rangeland protection fund 
for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 9. TRANSFER. The office of management and budget shall transfer 
$85,000 from the environment and rangeland protection fund to the minor use pesticide 
fund for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 10. CONTINGENT APPROPRIATION - TRANSFER. If dual 
labeling of agricultural pesticides is approved, there is hereby appropriated the sum of 
$75,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from the environment and 
rangeland protection fund to the agriculture commissioner for the purpose of assisting 
in the creation of pesticide labels for the period beginning with the effective date of th is 
Act and ending December 31, 2000. On January 1, 2001 , the office of management 
and budget shall transfer an amount equal to the unspent appropriation authority 
remaining pursuant to the appropriation provided for in this section from the 
environment and rangeland protection fund to the minor use pesticide fund . 

SECTION 11. APPROPRIATION - BOARD OF ANIMAL HEALTH - 1997-99 
BIENNIUM. There is hereby appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the 
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state treasury , not otherwise appropriated , the sum of $25 ,000 , or so much of the sum 
as may be necessary , to the agriculture commissioner tor the purpose of paying an 
indemnity and other expenses associated with destroying a herd of cattle infected with 
bovine tuberculosis tor the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and 
ending June 30 , 1999. 

SECTION 12. EMERGENCY. Sections 10 and 11 of th is Act are declared to 
be an emergency measure. " 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 602 - AGRICULTURE DEPARTMENT 

HOUSE - This amendment makes the following changes: 

EXECUTIVE SENATE HOUSE HOUSE 
BUDGET VERSION CHANGES VERSION 

Salaries and wages $3,130,530 $3,053,452 $30.000 $3.083.452 
Operating expenses 828,957 828,957 {100,000) 728,957 
Equipment 22,900 22,900 22,900 
Grants 161 ,700 161 ,700 161 ,700 
Board of Animal Health 506,818 502,922 502,922 
Ag mediation 857,818 851 ,681 (175,000) 676,681 
Ag in the classroom 96,000 96,000 96,000 
Anhydrous ammonia 8,154 8,154 8,154 

storage 
Waterbank program 414.000 414,000 414,000 
Pride of Dakota 151 ,841 151,516 151,516 
Wildlife services 779,694 779,694 779,694 
Safe Send 554,363 553,907 20,000 573,907 
Separate section - 75,000 75 ,000 

Dual labeling 
Noxious weeds 1,174,696 1,174,696 1,174,696 

Total all funds $8,687.471 $8,599,579 {$150,000) $8,449,579 

Less special funds 4,080,342 4,068,216 40,000 4,108,216 

General fund $4,607,129 $4,531 ,363 {$190,000) $4,341,363 

FTE 46.00 47.00 (1.00) 46.00 

Detail of House changes to the Senate version includes: 

RESTORE ADD 
FUNDING CONTINGENT 

FOR PLANT REDUCE REDUCE FUNDING ADD REMOVE AG 
SERVICES OPERATING AGRICULTURE FOR DUAL FUNDING FOR MEDIATION 
PROGRAM EXPENSES MEDIATION LABELING COMPUTERS NEGOTIATOR 

Salaries and wages $30,000 1 
Operating expenses ($100,000)2 
Equipment 
Grants 
Board of Animal Health 
Ag mediation ($100,000) 3 ($75,000) 6 
Ag in the classroom 
Anhydrous ammonia 

storage 
Waterbank program 
Pride of Dakota 
Wildlife services 
Safe Send $20,000 5 
Separate section - $75,000 4 

Dual labeling 
Noxious weeds 

Total all funds $30,000 ($ 100,000) ($100,000) $75,000 $20,000 ($75,000) 

Less special funds 75,000 20,000 (55,000) 

General fund $30,000 ($1 00,000) ($100,000) $0 $0 ($20,000) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (1.00) 
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Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 
Grants 
Board of Animal Health 
Ag mediation 
Ag in the classroom 
Anhydrous ammonia 

storage 
Waterbank prog ram 
Pride of Dakota 
Wi ld life services 
Safe Send 
Separate section -

Dual labeling 
Noxious weeds 

Total all funds 

Less special funds 

General fund 

FTE 

TOTAL 
HOUSE 

CHANGES 

$30,000 
(100,000) 

(175,000) 

20,000 
75,000 

($150,000) 

40,000 

($190,000) 

(1.00) 

House changes narrative : 

Module No: HR-56-5890 
Carrier: Lloyd 

Insert LC: 98031.0205 Title: .0300 

Restores funding reduced by the Senate for temporary and overtime salaries in the plant services 
program. 

2 Reduces operating expenses. The commissioner may determine the specific areas to reduce within 
this line item. 

3 Reduces agriculture mediation. The commissioner may determine the specific areas to reduce within 
this program. 

4 

5 

If dual labeling of pesticides is approved, an appropriation from the environment and rangeland 
protection fund is provided for creating the pesticide labels. Any of this funding that has not been 
spent by December 31 , 2000, will be transferred to the minor use pesticide fund . 

Adds funding from the environment and rangeland protection fund for purchasing computers and 
related costs for the Safe Send program. 

6 Removes 1 FTE agriculture mediation negotiator position. 

Sections are added providing that the Agricultural Commissioner may charge wholesalers and 
manufacturers for the actual costs of disposing of their products under project Safe Send and that 
products which are not a direct danger to the public should be disposed of by the owner in a proper 
manner rather than under project Safe Send. 

A section is added providing for an $85,000 transfer from the environment and rangeland protection fund 
to the minor use pesticide fund . 

A section is added increasing the biennial pesticide registration fee from $300 to $400. Of the $400, $67 
is deposited in the general fund and $333 in the environment and rangeland protection fund . 

A section is added appropri ating $25,000 from the general fund for the remainder of the 1997-99 
biennium for indemnifying the owner and paying other expenses associated with destroying a herd of 
cattle infected with bovine tuberculosis. 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
House Appropriations 

April 2, 1999 

HOUSE AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2009 APP 4-5-99 

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on pages 1056-1060 of the House 
Journal, Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2009 is amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, replace the first "and" with "to provide for crop protection product task force; to 
provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide for a transfer;", replace "section" with 
"sections", and after "4-01-21" insert "and 19-18-04" 

Page 1, line 3, after "commissioner" insert "and pesticide registration fees; and to declare an 
emergency" 

Page 1 , remove line 11 

Page 1, line 13, replace "3,053,452" with "3,083,452" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "828,957" with "628,957" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "851,681" with "776,681" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "553,907" with "573,907" 

HOUSE AMENIMENTS 10 ENGROSSED SENATE BILL ID. 2009 APP 4-5-99 

• 

• 

Page 2, line 2, replace "8,599,579" with "8,374,579" 

Page 2, line 3, replace "4,068,216" with "4,033,216" 

Page 2, line 4, replace "4,531,363" with "4,341,363" 

Page 2, after line 11, insert: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 19-18-04 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

19-18-04. Registration - Fees. Any person before selling or offering for sale 
any pesticide for use within this state shall file biennially with the commissioner an 
application for registration of the pesticide. The application must: 

1. Give the name and address of each manufacturer or distributor. 

2. Give the name and brand of each product registered. 

3. Be accompanied by a current label of each product so registered. 

4. Be accompanied by a registration fee of #wee four hundred dollars for each 
product registered. At the close of each calendar month, the commissioner 
shall transmit to the state treasurer all moneys received for the 
registrations. The state treasurer shall credit My sixty-seven dollars for 
each registered product to the general fund in the state treasury and the 
remainder of the registration fee for each registered product to the 
environment and rangeland protection fund . 

5. Be accompanied by a material safety data sheet. 

Page No. 1 98031.0209 
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The commissioner may require an applicant or registrant to provide efficacy, 
toxicity , residue, and any other data necessary to determine if the pesticide will perform 
its intended function without unreasonable adverse effects on the environment. If the 
commissioner finds that the application conforms to law, the commissioner shall issue 
to the applicant a certificate of registration of the product. If after public hearing before 
the commissioner the application is denied, the product may not be offered for sale. 

Each registration covers a two-year period beginning January first and expiring 
December thirty-first of the following year. A certificate of registration may not be 
issued for a term longer than two years, and is not transferable from one person to 
another, or from the ownership to whom issued to another ownership, or from one place 
to another place or location. A penalty of fifty percent of the license or registration fee 
must be imposed if the license or certificate of registration is not applied for on or before 
January thirty-first following the expiration date, or within the same month the pesticides 
are first manufactured or sold within this state. Each product must go through a 
two-year discontinuance period in order to clear all outstanding products in the channel 
of trade. 

This section does not apply to a pesticide sold by a retail dealer if the 
registration fee has been paid by the manufacturer, jobber, or any other person, as 
required by this section." 

Page 2, line 14, replace "$1,860,576" with "$1,880,576" 

Page 2, after line 21, insert: 

"SECTION 6. ESTIMATED INCOME - GAME AND FISH FUND. The 
estimated income line item in section 1 of this Act includes the sum of $200,000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, from the game and fish department operating 
fund for the waterbank program for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending 
June 30, 2001 . 

SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE INTENT- PROJECT SAFE SEND. It is the intent 
of the legislative assembly that the agriculture commissioner not accept products under 
project safe send from wholesalers or manufacturers unless the full cost of disposal is 
recovered from the wholesaler or manufacturer. It is also the intent of the legislative 
assembly that products which are not a direct danger to the public should be disposed 
of by the owner in a proper manner. The agriculture commissioner may distribute 
educational materials on the proper and safe disposal of appropriate materials by the 
original purchaser for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 8. PROJECT SAFE SEND - FEES. The agriculture commissioner 
may charge wholesalers and manufacturers a fee for the disposal of pesticides located 
in North Dakota. The fee may not be less than the cost of disposal. All fees collected 
under this section must be deposited in the environment and rangeland protection fund 
for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001 . 

SECTION 9. TRANSFER. The office of management and budget shall transfer 
$85,000 from the environment and rangeland protection fund to the minor use pesticide 
fund for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30 , 2001 . 

SECTION 10. LINE ITEM TRANSFERS. Notwithstanding section 54-16-04, 
the director of the office of management and the state treasurer shall make transfers of 
funds between line items in section 1 of this Act of up to a cumulative sum of $100,000 
as may be requested by the agriculture commissioner for the biennium beginning 
July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001 . 

SECTION 11. CROP PROTECTION PRODUCT TASK FORCE -
MEMBERSHIP - DUTIES. The crop protection product task force consists of the 
agriculture commissioner , the chairman of the house agriculture committee , the 

Page No. 2 98031.0209 
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chairman of the senate agriculture committee, and three individuals appointed by the 
governor. The governor shall call the task force together for its initial meeting, at which 
time the task force members shall select a member to be chairman. Every meeting 
thereafter is at the call of the chairman. The task force shall: 

1. Identify and prioritize crop protection product labeling needs; 

2. Determine which crop protection compounds should be considered for 
registration by this state and submitted for environmental protection agency 
approval and allocate funds, as needed, to accomplish the registration and 
approval; and 

3. Work in a coordinated and cooperative fashion with the manufacturers of 
crop protection products to ensure prompt and consistent labeling of 
products for use in the United States, Canada, and Mexico. 

SECTION 12. APPROPRIATION. There is hereby appropriated out of any 
moneys in the environment and rangeland protection fund in the state treasury, not 
otherwise appropriated, the sum of $300,000, or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, to the crop protection product task force for the purpose of addressing crop 
protection product registration and labeling as provided for in section 11 of this Act for 
the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 13. APPROPRIATION- BOARD OF ANIMAL HEALTH -1997-99 
BIENNIUM. There is hereby appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the 
state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $25,000, or so much of the sum 
as may be necessary, to the agriculture commissioner for the purpose of paying an 
indemnity and other expenses associated with destroying a herd of cattle infected with 
bovine tuberculosis for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and 
ending June 30, 1999. 

SECTION 14. EMERGENCY. Section 13 of this Act is declared to be an 
emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 602 - AGRICULTURE DEPARTMENT 

HOUSE - This amendment makes the following changes: 
EXECUTIVE SENATE HOUSE HOUSE 

BUDGET VERSION CHANGES VERSION 

Salaries and wages $3,130 ,530 $3,053,452 $30,000 $3,083,452 
Operating expenses 828,957 828,957 (200,000) 628,957 
Equipment 22,900 22,900 22,900 
Grants 161,700 161,700 161 ,700 
Board of Animal Health 506,818 502,922 502,922 
Ag mediation 857,818 851 ,681 (75,000) 776,681 
Ag in the classroom 96,000 96,000 96,000 
Anhydrous ammonia 8,154 8,154 8,154 

storage 
Waterbank program 414,000 414,000 414,000 
Pride of Dakota 151,841 151 ,516 151,516 
Wildlife services 779,694 779,694 779,694 
Safe Send 554,363 553 ,907 20,000 573,907 
Noxious weeds 1,174,696 1,174,696 1,174,696 

Total all funds $8,687,471 $8,599,579 ($225,000) $8,374,579 

Less special funds 4,080,342 4,068,216 {35,000) 4,033,216 

General fund $4,607,129 $4,531,363 ($190,000) $4,341,363 

FTE 46.00 47.00 (1 .00) 46.00 

Page No. 3 98031.0209 
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Detail of House changes to the Senate version includes: 

RESTORE 
FUNDING 

FOR PLANT REDUCE ADD REMOVE AG TOTAL 
SERVICES OPERATING FUNDING FOR MEDIATION HOUSE 
PROGRAM EXPENSES COMPUTERS NEGOTIATOR CHANGES 

Salaries and wages $30,000 1 $30,000 
Operating expenses ($200,000) 2 (200,000) 
Equipment 
Grants 
Board of Animal Health 
Ag mediation ($75,000)4 (75,000) 
Ag in the classroom 
Anhydrous ammonia 

storage 
Waterbank program 
Pride of Dakota 
Wildlife services 
Safe Send $20,000 3 20,000 
Noxious weeds 

Total all funds $30,000 ($200,000) $20 ,000 ($75,000) ($225,000) 

Less special funds 20,000 (55,000) (35,000) 

General fund $30,000 ($200,000) $0 ($20 ,000) ($190,000) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 (1.00) (1.00) 

House changes narrative: 

1 Restores funding reduced by the Senate for temporary and overtime salaries in the plant services 
program. 

yetfJf 

2 Reduces operating expenses. The commissioner may determine the specific areas to reduce within 
the budget. A section is added authorizing the Agriculture Commissioner to transfer up to $100,000 of 
appropriation authority between line items without Emergency Commission approval. 

3 Adds funding from the environment and rangeland protection fund for purchasing computers and 
related costs for the Safe Send program. 

4 Removes 1 FTE agriculture mediation negotiator position. 

Sections are added providing that the Agriculture Commissioner may charge wholesalers and 
manufacturers for the actual costs of disposing of their products under project Safe Send and that 
products which are not a direct danger to the public should be disposed of by the owner in a proper 
manner rather than under project Safe Send. 

A section is added providing for an $85,000 transfer from the environment and rangeland protection fund 
to the minor use pesticide fund. 

A section is added increasing the biennial pesticide registration fee from $300 to $400. Of the $400, $67 
is deposited in the general fund and $333 in the environment and rangeland protection fund . 

A section is added appropriating $25,000 from the general fund for the remainder of the 1997-99 
biennium for indemnifying the owner and paying other expenses associated with destroying a herd of 
cattle infected with bovine tuberculosis. 

Sections are added establishing a crop protection task force and appropriating $300,000 from the 
environment and rangeland protection fund to the task force for addressing crop protection product 
registration and labeling issues . 

Page No. 4 98031.0209 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) 
April 5, 1999 7:51 a.m. 

Module No: HR-61-6414 
Carrier: Lloyd 

Insert LC: 98031.0209 Title: .0400 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2009, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Dalrymple, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (15 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2009 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on pages 1056-1060 of the House 
Journal, Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2009 is amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, replace the first "and" with "to provide for crop protection product task force; to 
provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide for a transfer;" , replace "section" 
with "sections", and after "4-01-21" insert "and 19-18-04" 

Page 1, line 3, after "commissioner" insert "and pesticide registration fees; and to declare an 
emergency" 

Page 1 , remove line 11 

Page 1, line 13, replace "3 ,053,452" with "3,083,452" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "828,957" with "628,957" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "851,681" with "776,681" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "553,907" with "573,907" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "8 ,599,579" with "8,374,579" 

Page 2, line 3, replace "4,068,216" with "4,033,216" 

Page 2, line 4, replace "4,531,363" with "4 ,341 ,363" 

Page 2, after line 11, insert: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 19-18-04 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

19-18-04. Registration - Fees. Any person before selling or offering for sale 
any pesticide for use within this state shall file biennially with the commissioner an 
application for registration of the pesticide. The application must: 

1. Give the name and address of each manufacturer or distributor. 

2. Give the name and brand of each product registered. 

3. Be accompanied by a current label of each product so registered. 

4. Be accompanied by a registration fee of #tt:ee four hundred dollars for 
each product registered. At the close of each calendar month, the 
commissioner shall transmit to the state treasurer all moneys received for 
the registrations. The state treasurer shall credit ##y sixty-seven dollars 
for each registered product to the general fund in the state treasury and 
the remainder of the registration fee for each registered product to the 
environment and rangeland protection fund . 

5. Be accompanied by a material safety data sheet. 

{1) LC , (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM Page No. 1 HR-6 1-6414 
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The commissioner may require an applicant or registrant to provide efficacy, 
toxicity , residue, and any other data necessary to determine if the pesticide will perform 
its intended function without unreasonable adverse effects on the environment. If the 
commissioner finds that the application conforms to law, the commissioner shall issue 
to the applicant a certificate of registration of the product. If after public hearing before 
the commissioner the application is denied, the product may not be offered for sale. 

Each registration covers a two-year period beginning January first and expiring 
December thirty-first of the following year. A certificate of registration may not be 
issued for a term longer than two years, and is not transferable from one person to 
another, or from the ownership to whom issued to another ownership, or from one 
place to another place or location. A penalty of fifty percent of the license or 
registration fee must be imposed if the license or certificate of registration is not applied 
for on or before January thirty-first following the expiration date, or within the same 
month the pesticides are first manufactured or sold within this state. Each product 
must go through a two-year discontinuance period in order to clear all outstanding 
products in the channel of trade. 

This section does not apply to a pesticide sold by a retail dealer if the 
registration fee has been paid by the manufacturer, jobber, or any other person, as 
required by this section." 

Page 2, line 14, replace "$1,860,576" with "$1,880,576" 

Page 2, after line 21, insert: 

"SECTION 6. ESTIMATED INCOME - GAME AND FISH FUND. The 
estimated income line item in section 1 of this Act includes the sum of $200,000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, from the game and fish department operating 
fund for the waterbank program for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending 
June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - PROJECT SAFE SEND. It is the intent 
of the legislative assembly that the agriculture commissioner not accept products under 
project safe send from wholesalers or manufacturers unless the full cost of disposal is 
recovered from the wholesaler or manufacturer. It is also the intent of the legislative 
assembly that products which are not a direct danger to the public should be disposed 
of by the owner in a proper manner. The agriculture commissioner may distribute 
educational materials on the proper and safe disposal of appropriate materials by the 
original purchaser for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30 , 2001. 

SECTION 8. PROJECT SAFE SEND - FEES. The agriculture commissioner 
may charge wholesalers and manufacturers a fee for the disposal of pesticides located 
in North Dakota. The fee may not be less than the cost of disposal. All fees collected 
under this section must be deposited in the environment and rangeland protection fund 
for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 9. TRANSFER. The office of management and budget shall transfer 
$85,000 from the environment and rangeland protection fund to the minor use pesticide 
fund for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30 , 2001. 

SECTION 10. LINE ITEM TRANSFERS. Notwithstanding section 54-16-04, 
the director of the office of management and the state treasurer shall make transfers of 
funds between line items in section 1 of this Act of up to a cumulative sum of $100 ,000 
as may be requested by the agriculture commissioner for the biennium beginning 
July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

(1) LC, (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM Page No. 2 HR-61-6414 
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SECTION 11. CROP PROTECTION PRODUCT TASK FORCE -
MEMBERSHIP - DUTIES. The crop protection product task force consists of the 
agriculture commissioner, the chairman of the house agriculture committee , the 
chairman of the senate agriculture committee , and three individuals appointed by the 
governor. The governor shall call the task force together for its in itial meeting , at which 
time the task force members shall select a member to be chairman. Every meeting 
thereafter is at the call of the chairman. The task force shall: 

1. Identify and prioritize crop protection product labeling needs ; 

2. Determine which crop protection compounds should be considered for 
registration by this state and submitted for environmental protection 
agency approval and allocate funds , as needed, to accomplish the 
registration and approval; and 

3. Work in a coordinated and cooperative fashion with the manufacturers of 
crop protection products to ensure prompt and consistent labeling of 
products for use in the United States , Canada, and Mexico. 

SECTION 12. APPROPRIATION. There is hereby appropriated out of any 
moneys in the environment and rangeland protection fund in the state treasury , not 
otherwise appropriated , the sum of $300 ,000 , or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, to the crop protection product task force for the purpose of addressing crop 
protection product reg istration and labeling as provided for in section 11 of this Act for 
the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30 , 2001. 

SECTION 13. APPROPRIATION - BOARD OF ANIMAL HEALTH - 1997-99 
BIENNIUM. There is hereby appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the 
state treasury , not otherwise appropriated , the sum of $25,000 , or so much of the sum 
as may be necessary, to the agriculture commissioner for the purpose of paying an 
indemnity and other expenses associated with destroying a herd of cattle infected with 
bovine tuberculosis for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and 
ending June 30 , 1999. 

SECTION 14. EMERGENCY: Section 13 of this Act is declared to be an 
emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 602 - AGRICULTURE DEPARTMENT 

HOUSE - This amendment makes the fol lowing changes: 
EXECUTIVE SENATE HOUSE HOUSE 

BUDGET VERSION CHANGES VERSION 

Salaries and wages $3.130,530 $3,053,452 $30 ,000 $3,083,452 
Operating expenses 828,957 828,957 (200 ,000) 628,957 
Equipment 22,900 22,900 22,900 
Gran ts 161 ,700 161,700 161,700 
Board of Animal Health 506,818 502,922 502,922 
Ag mediation 857,818 851 ,681 (75,000) 776,681 
Ag in the classroom 96,000 96,000 96.000 
Anhydrous ammonia 8,154 8,154 8,154 

storage 
Waterbank program 414,000 414,000 414.000 
Pride of Dakota 151 ,841 151 ,516 151 .516 
Wildlife services 779,694 779,694 779,694 
Safe Send 554,363 553,907 20,000 573,907 
Noxious weeds 1,174,696 1,174,696 1,174,696 

Total all funds $8,687,471 $8,599 ,579 ($225,000) $8,374,579 

(1) LC, (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM Page No. 3 HR-61-6414 
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Less special funds 

General fund 

FTE 

4,080,342 

$4,607,129 

46.00 

4,068,216 

$4,531,363 

47.00 

(35,000) 

($ 190,000) 

(1.00) 
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4,033,216 

$4,341,363 

46.00 

HR-61 -6414 
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Detail of House changes to the Senate version includes: 

RESTORE 
FUNDING 

FOR PLANT REDUCE ADD 
SERVICES OPERATING FUNDING FOR 
PROG RAM EXPENSES COMPUTERS 

Salaries and wages $30,000 1 
Operating expenses ($200,000) 2 
Equipment 
Grants 
Board of Animal Health 
Ag mediation 
Ag in the classroom 
Anhydrous ammonia 

storage 
Waterbank program 
Pride of Dakota 
Wildlife services 
Safe Send $20,000 3 
Noxious weeds 

Total all funds $30,000 ($200,000) $20,000 

Less special funds 20,000 

General fund $30,000 ($200,000) $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

House changes narrative: 

Module No: HR-61-6414 
Carrier: Lloyd 
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REMOVE AG TOTAL 
MEDIATION HOUSE 

NEGOTIATOR CHANGES 

$30,000 
(200,000) 

($75,000) 4 (75,000) 

20,000 

($75,000) ($225,000) 

(55,000) (35,000) 

($20 ,000) ($190,000) 

(1.00) (1.00) 

Restores funding reduced by the Senate for temporary and overtime salaries in the plant services 
program. 

2 Reduces operating expenses. The commissioner may determine the specific areas to reduce within 
the budget. A section is added authorizing the Agriculture Commissioner to transfer up to $100,000 
of appropriation authority between line items without Emergency Commission approval. 

3 Adds funding from the environment and rangeland protection fund for purchasing computers and 
related costs for the Safe Send program. 

4 Removes 1 FTE agriculture mediation negotiator position. 

Sections are added providing that the Agriculture Commissioner may charge wholesalers and 
manufacturers for the actual costs of disposing of their products under project Safe Send and that 
products which are not a direct danger to the public should be disposed of by the owner in a proper 
manner rather than under project Safe Send . 

A section is added providing for an $85,000 transfer from the environment and rangeland protection fund 
to the minor use pesticide fund. 

A section is added increasing the biennial pesticide registration fee from $300 to $400. Of the $400, $67 
is deposited in the general fund and $333 in the environment and rangeland protection fund . 

A section is added appropriating $25,000 from the general fund for the remainder of the 1997-99 
biennium for indemnifying the owner and paying other expenses associated with destroying a herd of 
cattle infected with bovine tuberculosis . 

Sections are added establishing a crop protection task force and appropriating $300,000 from the 
environment and rangeland protection fund to the task fo rce for addressing crop protection product 
registration and label ing issues. 

(1) LC , (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM Page No. 5 HR-61-6414 
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X 3.5-44.0 

X 0-1670 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Opened the onference committee earing on SB2009. 

ROLL CALL: Present; Senator Solberg, Sena o , enator Tomac, Representative 
Lloyd, Representative Boehm, Representative Nichols. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Asked Representative Lloyd to go over the changes the House made 
to SB2009. 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: In Section 3, numeral 4, the registration fee was increased 
from $300-$400 for each product registered and the accompanying $67 for each registered 
product is in line with current language in the statute, I think it's 25%. Page 2, Section 6, is the 
$200,000 that was transferred from the Game and Fish Department operating funds for the Water 
Bank program. The Section 7, is the continuation of the Legislative Intent for Project Safe Send. 
Section 8, is a new section that says the Ag Commissioner may charge the wholesalers and 
manufacturers of feed, if in fact if they deliver pesticides or other chemicals to Safe Send. The 
discussion was whether the materials come directly from a wholesaler or manufacturer which 
would have been used in the normal course of doing business as opposed to materials that would 
have been dropped off by a farmer at that business to be delivered to Safe Send. That was the 
discussion that prompted this section to be included. Section 9, is transferring $85,000 from the 
Environmental and Rangeland Protection fund to the Minor Use Pesticide fund. They had used 
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Page 2 
Senate Appropriations Committee 
Bill/Resolution Number SB2009C.lwp 
Hearing Date April 7, 1999 

$160,000 of the $350,000 that was allocated last biennium. Last biennium, they came with a 
request of $250,000 and the House Appropriations added $100,000 to that request. They had 
spent $160,000 this biennium with a carry over of $190,000. We added $85 ,000 in their which 
brought it up to $265 ,000 of spendable of funds for Minor Use Pesticide research. Section 11 , is 
the Crop Protection Project Task Force. This is new language that was put in by the House 
Appropriations Committee to promote and develop registration and prioritization principally of 
crop materials, protection materials that were currently either used in Canada or the United States 
which would assist North Dakota farmers in being more competitive as far as their farming 
activities are concerned. The embellishment is that it would have a committee involved in this, 
made up of two Ag Committee Chairman from the House and Senate, the Commissioner of 
Agriculture and three individuals from the Ag Coalition who are appointed to the committee by 
the Governor. This committee of six would identify and prioritize the crop protection products 
for labeling needs. That fits with dual labeling that's been discussed, where by Canada has a 
label on a product that the United States doesn ' t currently have and it's been deemed that the 
product would benefit our farmers and the Commissioner could then create a label to use for the 
purpose of relabeling materials in Canada that could be brought across the boarder and used in 
North Dakota. At the same time, we ' re looking at the crop protection compounds which could 
be considered for registration by the State, which might be used on other crops in North Dakota 
and Canada that would benefit our farmers in being competitive both cost wise and additional 
protection wise because of the nature of the chemical involved. It ' s very important that this 
committee work closely and in very good cooperation with the manufacturers involved. To go 
out on a limb and just do it themselves, I think it would be wrong. It has to be a cooperative 
effort between the trade and the task force to accomplish the goals to a mutual benefit of the 
parties involved or it won' t work. It really will benefit all three countries because of the NAFTA 
agreement. There has been some recent research done which was submitted to EPA for the 
purpose of registration of a fungicide in Canada, US and Mexico. We are already progressing in 
that direction and felt this would be a good opportunity to enhance it from a North Dakota 
perspective. Section 12, we added $300,000 of appropriated money from ERP for the purpose of 
use by the committee. Section 13, appropriation for the Board of Animal Health at $25 ,000 for 
the purpose of assisting the farmers involved in Tuberculosis detection. This is basically for 
indemnification. The salaries and wages of $30,000 increased as a result of testimony which 
indicated that this actually was beekeepers money at $.15 a hive, $78,000 a biennium and that 
these people felt they should be able to use their money since they pay fees for this purpose and 
made a request those funds should be restored. We were pleased to do that in that regard. Under 
operating expenses, there was $100,000 removed from the General funds out of operating and 
then a second $100,000 was removed to assist in supporting Ag Mediation. The $75 ,000 in the 
Ag Mediation line was the removal of the FTE negotiator, it did not affect a mediator is was a 
negotiator. They would still have two negotiators. Under Safe Send, there was $20,000 added 
and this came Environmental Rangeland Protection fund, specifically for the purpose of 
augmenting the departments computer assistance. Some computers still have 3 .1 DOS and they 
needed a laptop. The computers will be for Safe Send. Section 11 , is a transfer authority for the 
Ag Commissioner to take from any line item from his budget as he wishes up to $100,000, 
principally to augment Ag Mediation in that regard. 
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SENATOR SOLBERG: Distributed the latest update on the Tuberculosis situation from the 
department (attached). We have a lot of work to do on this yet. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Let's start with Section 3. This will increase the regristration fee from 
$300-$400 on all products, insecticides, registrations, an increase of $50-$67 that goes into the 
General fund. I feel that's a pretty size bump at one time and we've heard so much about the Ag 
problems. We can't control a whole lot of what the Ag sector is going to receive as far as prices 
but, hopefully we're trying to work a little bit on the input costs. I don ' t know of any chemical 
company that's going to eat this, it's going to be passed on to the user. 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: There 's been a study of a comparision of the surrounding 
State's and Minnesota was being paid $500 for the same thing we were getting $300. South 
Dakota was $350; Montana $300; and Minnesota was $500 minimum with .5% of gross sales. 
When I made my request to the Council I was asking for $50 a year and when I received the 
amendment it was to late and we left it at $100 per year. I was hoping it would be questioned 
here. 

SENATOR TOMAC: The reason for the increase is to pay for Section 11? 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: That's correct. 

SENATOR TOMAC: Sections 3, 11 and 12 are all related. $300,000 for a study, how did you 
come to that figure? 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: We had to come to some figure and it's a starting point. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: What is the estimated income total on the $100 increase on 
registrations? 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: About $700,000 total. 

SENATOR TOMAC: Did you ever determine what products are labeled, are they crop or 
livestock products? 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: I did not. The products that are labeled are more than just crop 
protection. Some household, livestock and etc. 

SENATOR TOMAC: Can we get a breakdown of the labeled products, that would be of some 
use to us. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: We' ll see ifwe can get that. 

SENATOR NAADEN: I visited with a pet store owner and she was pretty excited because there 
was a lot of those on this list and you'd be raising the fees for them quite high. 
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REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: For Roundup Ultra, in all four State ' s , the price per gallon is 
$32.27. There is not difference in State ' s going from $500 in Minnesota to $300 in North 
Dakota. Tardon has a $.86 difference and Treflan a difference of $.03. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Do you feel if this would happen, that we put this increase in. I 
wonder how many chemicals would then drop to the minor use chemical. We have some now 
that do not register because of the minor use. that is why our minor use funds come in to register 
them so they can be used. Is that not right? If we add the 3 3 % increase on, will 18 more drop 
down, drop the registration and bring us down to the minor use category? 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: The answer to that would be No. Because the chemical is not 
fit for minor use and targeted at the value of the crop and not the actual chemical. Targeted at 
what your return is to place that chemical on a crop. It is a matter of the crops that would be 
registered on, not the chemical itself. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Then my question would be, why do we have any minor use? 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: An instance would be dry beans are considered a minor use 
crop, and if they don' t feel that dry beans are worth the risk of registration, then the chemical 
company will not apply for registration on that crop, because of the crop return is not adequate to 
cover the cost. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: As we continue to go more into diversification and minor crops, will 
we not see more minor use of chemicals? 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: You will see more crops that will be requiring chemicals 
which will have more need for registration on those crops, that is correct, it is the crops. As we 
diversify our cropping programs we then will more than likely encounter needs which we 
currently have not had. That is my concern here, is to have some of that occur. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Lets go to Section 11. I do not understand this task force right now. 
Where and what are they going to be doing for this $300,000? We have quite a few task force 
and quite a few interim committees and I don ' t know anybody spending 150 Grand a year doing 
anything right now. 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: I envision along with the things we identified, prioritizing the 
ones that need to be done and the opportunities for doing that, some of that money will be spent 
in physically assisting the Ag Department in doing it's job of the developing a US label in 
concert with the manufacturer for a crop. I see those funds being used side-by-side with minor 
use. In other words it just not for travel and meals, it's for getting the job done, have a few 
meetings and being able to specifically evaluate what needs to be done. A couple of trips to 
Canada, physically go up there and work with these people. We don ' t want to keep our distance, 
we have to work with them. Send one person to DC once or something. 
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SENATOR NAADEN: There doesn' t seem to be anybody on this committee that's a specialist. 
You take the Ag Commissioner, the Ag Committee Chairman and three other people. I'd think 
that if we were going to determine some of these things, you should at least have someone from 
the Agricultural College that works with these chemicals all the time. 

SENATOR TOMAC: Maybe I don ' t fully understand the harmonization issue and that is what 
this speaks to, is that correct? 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: Yes. 

SENA TOR TO MAC: To me the harmonization issue is of a political nature and not a technical 
nature. I say it's a political nature because, Canadian regristration process something that's been 
proven up here. Apparently the EPA in the United States is different and if we can resolve those 
differences and convince the EPA that we except there tests and registrations. We need to come 
to an understanding and do research, on in the political arena. I think a task force does have 
some merit and I wouldn't oppose a couple of thousand dollars for a task force so we can get 
these group of individuals to travel so we have a clearer understanding of that. But, when we 
talk about putting money in specific chemicals and getting those cleared, that goes beyond my 
understanding of the problem . 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: I feel that there is some direct association with minor use and 
with this $300,000 here. I also see that there is additional opportunity for some products that are 
labeled in the United States as well , besides just Canada. 

SENATOR TOMAC: There is a lot of confusion on the issue, that's why I'm saying a task 
force may be but, I'm not sure if I'm quite ready to bite into a 33% increase to pay for that kind 
of a study. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Before we adjourn, I want to go over the Tuberculosis handout, I have 
some work to do and will update you. We stand in recess until the call of the Chairman. 

=============~~ {J 
4/8/99 Tape 1, Side A, Meter 1550-4382 \\I 
SENATOR SOLBERG: Reopened the conference committee hearing on SB2009. 

ROLL CALL: Present; Senator Solberg, Senator Naaden, Senator Tomac, Representative 
Lloyd, Representative Boehm, Representative Nichols. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: I thought we'd take a look at each section and see if they're is any 
disagreement. Section 6, $200,000 from the Game & Fish for the Water Bank program. Who's 
funds are these are and how would they be used? 
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REPRESENTATIVE NICHOLS: As is stands now, the previous biennium there was 
$500,000 of funds from the Game & Fish Department used for this project. Those funds were 
used primarily in the Devils Lake area, now this biennium we've taken out the priority wording 
with regard to the area and let that be used statewide which was what both Game & Fish and the 
Ag Department wanted to be able to utilize it. The $200,000 will be used to put together with 
some additional Federal funds for the Water Bank program. The Game & Fish Commissioner 
does sign off on the use of the funds on this $200,000 and they did that the previous biennium 
and it seemed to work fine. In our visits, both Game & Fish and Ag felt ok with this agreement. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Section 8, Project Safe Send fees , I believe this is a new section. 
Sections 7 & 8 are tied together. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Are the companies now using this to get rid of chemicals that they need 
to get rid of? 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Along with that in Section 8, who determines the cost, it says the fee 
may not be less than the cost of disposal. 

ALLEN KNUDSON: Legislative Council. This is a new section that the Commissioner may 
charge the wholesalers and manufacturers from disposing of there unused or old pesticides . 

SENATOR SOLBERG: No determination on what that cost may be? 

ALLEN KNUDSON: It would depend on the contract the Ag Commissioner has with the 
company that disposes of the chemicals. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Any recollection on the House on that Section? 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: There wasn't a lot of discussion on the actual fee itself. The 
disposal fees have come down from over $9 a pound and now they're down around $1 a pound. 
It was understood that based upon the cost of disposing is what the fee would be. 

SENATOR TOMAC: Ifl understand what the House tried to do is, Safe Send has evolved into 
something slightly different than what the original idea was. The original idea was you would 
dispose of chemicals you had no where else to go with. The philosophical difference is, do we 
use Safe Send to get rid of any and all environmentally harmful chemicals or do we force the 
manufacturer to except those back like we do the oil companies? I'm not sure I'm not ready for a 
requirement of that but, I think it's an issue that needs further study. 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: Your understanding is quite correct. It's sort of a dual issue. 
About 12 1/2 % of the material disposed in 1998 was 2-4D and 2-4D even if frozen can be 
reconstituted and utilized. That seems like an excess amount being disposed of, that was my 
concern. Other House members concern was that there might be material that were damaged at 
the wholesalers, etc. and those somehow got into the chain of going to Safe Send. That's a 
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matter of in the course of doing business. That's two different issues that both may apply in this 
case. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Well, if the object of Safe Sent is to do away with chemicals that can' t 
be used, why do we want put a fee on it? The object is to get rid of it. Why do we want to start 
differentiating between the retailer and the farmer? They do it in a systematic way. Why do we 
want to start throwing up obstacles in that direction? Is it to raise money, or do we want a safe 
place for those chemicals to be taken care of? 

SENATOR SOLBERG: SenatorNaaden, I tend to agree with that. It concerns me that ifwe 
are going to start determining if a retailer or wholesaler selling these chemicals comes in are you 
going to start weighing this out; cost, load and etc. 

SENATOR TOMAC: I tend to concur with you but, I do feel the House is trying to address the 
minor abuses of this program. The concern that they have is if these abuses continue and I think 
it's a justifiable concern. I don't think it warrants Section 7 and 8, however, I do think it may 
warrant some type of study. Would the House be interested in compromising language that 
would allow the Legislative Council to study that. 

SENATOR NAADEN: The chemical companies are paying for this program through 
regristration. The main object of this program is to get rid of chemicals as safely as we can. you 
have to look at, what is the goal of the program, the goal is to get rid of the chemicals as safely as 
possible. 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: The principal objection was that they weren't able to discern 
the difference between compounds that a farmer would bring to a local retailer because, the 
farmer didn ' t want to be seen bringing them to Safe Send versus the local retailer transferring 
product that maybe was damaged into Safe Send. That was the principal concern that created the 
amendment. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: The retailers than, if you've got some people a little paranoid about 
Government taking down their name, you may not have these people even coming and disposing 
of their chemical either, along with the retailers and wholesalers. So it could really back fire. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Section 9, on the Minor Use. If we' re going to increase the 
regristration fees, it concerns me that we may have more chemicals registering under the Minor 
Use program and this in turn, the $85 ,000, this might be enough there. 

REPRESENTATIVE NICHOLS: I would like to see us increase this by $100,000 in the 
amount your transferring from the ERP fund for the Minor Use Pesticide fund. I think with all 
the specialty crops that we are going to need to have more money in this fund . 

SENATOR SOLBERG: In 1997/1999, there was $350,000 in that and wasn' t used. In the 
1999/2000 budget there was $160,000 and the House took it down to $85 ,000. 
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REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: The carryover was $190,000 of the $350,000 and the House 
added $85 ,000 back in bringing it to $265 ,000. I do understand that it did take sufficient time to 
organize the process so they couldn't really get started at day one. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: So they used $160,000 in this biennium. 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: That' s correct. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Representative Nichols, do you feel satisfied with that? 

REPRESENTATIVE NICHOLS: I would like to see it raised to $365,000 at least as much as 
last biennium. Primarily because it took so long to get things in motion that possible for half on 
the biennium, did not use any or very much of the money. I feel there is going to be more 
demand. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Evidently, your committee felt that the $265 ,000 was sufficient? 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: We judged that it might be adequate with the initial 
information. The information since then would augment the support of the additional $100,000 . 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Section 1, 10, 11 and 12, anybody have any information to shed on 
these that we didn ' t have yesterday? I passed out the HB 1052. 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: We' ll be making some additional motion as soon a I get the 
language to modify Sections 11 and 12, bringing forth amendments. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Did you have a hearing on those sections? 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: Yes. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Did you have the companies come in and testify for or against it? 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: We did not have the companies come in and testify. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Then you didn' t have a hearing on it. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Representative Lloyd, is there any type of a budget set up on the 
$300,000 or is it just a lose figure to have something in place. 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: I have asked for that budget to be developed and provided to 
me. 

SENATOR TOMAC: The conference committee that we were on with Game & Fish, we did 
add $20,000 to the Wildlife Deprivation and I'm not sure if it needs to be put into this also and 
authority needs to be given to the Department of Ag. 



Page 9 
Senate Appropriations Committee 
Bill/Resolution Number SB2009C.lwp 
Hearing Date ltpr il 7, 199.9 

ALLAN KNUDSON: I'll check on it but, I believe Game & Fish contracts directly with the 
Federal Agency that does that. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: We ' ll stand in recess until the call of the Chair. 

~------------
)' 

4/9/99 Tape 1, Side A, Meter 1-3704 ~/q_ 
SENATOR SOLBERG: Passed out a listing of the registered pesticides and etc. , from the Ag 
Depai1ment. 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: Passed out proposed amendment, .0210 to SB2009 and 
explained (attached (tape 1, side A, meter 160-375). Moved for it's adoption. 

REPRESENTATIVE BOEHM: Seconded the motion. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: What would think of a four year sunset on all three of these sections? 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: I think that it would be appropriate. They should be able to 
accomplish it in two biennium's. 

SENATOR TOMAC: Why do we need $50,000 to fund this and why does $25 ,000 have to 
come out of the General fund? I think we can take this out of the ERP fund to fund this 
committee. $50,000 for a two year study committee is pretty lavish. Do you have some type of 
a budget of what we 'd spend that money for? 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: I've actually requested that but haven' t received that yet. It ' s 
going to take time to prioritize and technical issues with regard to which products we want to 
look at and working closely with manufacturers . Also, products that might be needed or 
available that we haven 't evaluated up to this point. There has been some talk about the need to 
have an expert on this committee, an outside expert. My position is that those people are at the 
call of the committee, there public employees and their wages and travel is paid already. They 
can come in as consultants anytime they wish. I don't think they need to be members of the 
committee. That ' s why I tend to agree with the sunset. The $50,000, I feel is appropriate, there 
might be some travel involved. The $25 ,000 out of the General fund , I think is appropriate 
because, there was some resistance by the industry for the $300,000. We were going to put 
$25 ,000 out of General fund to support it and industry said, they still want to cooperate with us 
on these matters and that was there suggestion to bring in the other $25,000 as a match from 
them for our General fund moneys. That already shows real promise as a cooperative effort. 

SENATOR TOMAC: I don' t disagree, I think we're pretty close. I'm ok with this ifwe put the 
sunset on. 
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SENATOR SOLBERG: Any problem with the amendment as presented with the sunset? So, 
there is an agreement with the committee members that Section 3, 11 and 12 are appropriate as 
adopted on the amendment .0210 with a four year sunset on. No problems with Section 6. 
Section 7 & 8, Senator Naaden. 

SENATOR NAADEN: I think the object of project Safe Send is to get rid of chemicals that 
can't be used anymore and I can't see why we want to start to putting fees or restrictions on 
getting rid of those products. I doesn't make much difference whether there from a dealer or 
from a farmer. We still want to get rid of them. I' 11 move to strike Sections 7 & 8. 

SENATOR TOMAC: Seconded the motion. 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: This came out of the House Appropriations Committee and 
we 've expressed our concerns. There isn't any money attached to it so, I think if you in terms of 
justifying this, I think that if Senator Naaden would go back over his major reasons in wishing to 
delete them, I think we could bend in that direction. 

SENATOR NAADEN: I think the reasons for this whole project is to get rid of chemicals as 
easily and safely as we can and that's why the program is put together. I don't know why we 
want to go in after all the chemical companies are paying for it anyway in the fees that we charge 
and why we want to now put restrictions on who can take it there without a fee or whatever. 
Let' s just leave it as it is, the project is working wonderfully. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: I heard some comment of individuals that would rather bring their 
chemicals to the wholesaler/retailer rather than Safe Send. I guess they don ' t like Government 
making a list of names. I guess I can see their point. I would hate to discourage getting rid of 
these in any form. We may have some misuse to a point, maybe it's better to get rid of some that 
shouldn' t and not get rid of some that should. 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: There is an issue with regard to other chemicals which are still 
out on some of the farmsteads. I would like to pose a challenge that we make a little better effort 
to collect those from those farmsteads. I think that was part of the original intent of Safe Send to 
do some environmental cleanup concept and those that are still left on the abandoned farmsteads 
pose somewhat of a threat. I agree with Representative Nichols who presented it to us in our 
committee. 

REPRESENTATIVE NICHOLS: I don ' t think I have any easy answer as to how we could 
accomplish it because it would certainly have to be coordinated with the current owners. There 
are a lot of abandoned building on these old farmsteads and many cases some old dangerous 
products stored in these buildings. I don' t know if it could be a township association type of 
effort or a county effort with the help of the extension agent but, I would like to see some type of 
a project to clean these up . 
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SENATOR SOLBERG: It's a good of an idea as any. We have a motion to delete that, are we 
all in favor. Ok, we are in agreement. Section 9, this is the Minor Use Fund and there was some 
concern yesterday on the funds not being enough. 

REPRESENTATIVE NICHOLS: In our earlier visit, I talked about the possibility of at least 
putting another $100,000 into this because, we are going to have a lot of minor type crops 
growing. In visiting with Representative Lloyd, he thought that we should look at doubling that 
amount, making sure there is enough in that item to take care of any minor use projects. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Worked with the committee to make sure the funds were available. 

REPRESENTATIVE NICHOLS: I move that we add $200,000 to what is currently 
appropriated for Minor Use. 

REPRESENTATIVE BOEHM: Seconded the motion. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Any comments or problems with this, ok. $285,000 additional in 
Minor Use plus the carryover. Everyone is in agreement. Section 10, Alan. 

ALAN KNUDSON: That was put in when the House reduced the operating expensed by 
$100,000 and they wanted the Commissioner to have the ability to make those reductions from 
anywhere within his budget, so this was added to be able to transfer between the line items. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Section 13, the Tuberculosis situation, I'm going to ask the 
department to give us verification of the numbers that were given to us regarding the charges, 
page 2. The reduction in operating of $200,000. 

REPRESENTATIVE BOEHM: I move to reinstate $100,000 in the operating line item. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: The $200,000 that was taken out, there was no determination where 
the $200,000 would come from? 

REPRESENTATIVE BOEHM: We didn't specify where from. 

SENATOR TOMAC: I didn't understand the cut at $275,000. I think I would take the Senate's 
position and the Senate cut $30,000, the House reinstated that, I would say we should add back 
in at least $170,000 to the operating. The cuts are all General fund cuts and within the operating 
line item, cutting 25% of that, all of that is not General fund. That's pretty deep for any agency. 

SENATOR NAADEN: I would suggest that we leave the $100,000 there and put the $75 ,000 in 
Ag Mediation . 

SENA TOR SOLBERG: Ag Mediation, that $75 ,000 was an FTE? 

REPRESENTATIVE BOEHM: That' s correct. 
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SENATOR SOLBERG: The $200,000 in operating cuts, the $100,000 out of general operation 
and $100,000 ag mediation? 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: The $100,000 out of ag mediation was actually put back in 
because of the $100,000 opportunity for transfer authority. 

SENATOR NAADEN: They haven' t got anymore money. You can transfer all you want but, if 
you haven ' t got anymore money, what good is it going to do? 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: That's why we made the motion of $100,000. 

SENATOR TOMAC: My concern on ag mediation, the $75 ,000, my understanding, and I 
visited with Representative Lloyd on this, $55 ,000 in Federal funds and $20,000 in General 
funds and that's what we do by eliminating that one position. I understand the reasoning behind 
that, I don ' t necessarily agree with that. I think currently when we are looking at the situation we 
have in Ag, I think to have any mediators or negotiators out there that we can, especially if the 
Federal Government is going to pick up the bulk of the share, I think it makes sense for us to 
allow it. The Federal program has been cut substantially and this further cuts what the Fed is 
willing to give us. I would take the position that the whole $75 ,000 and the FTE go back in on 
the ag mediation. 

REPRESENTATIVE LLOYD: In 1980 when it started, I think it was really justified. As I 
look at farmers today and I started teaching farmers in 1968, their wealth and knowledge has 
escalated on an increasing curve and I don' t think we appreciate that in North Dakota as much as 
it really has occurred. I see the bankers today, having a lot more acceptance and willing to work 
and be more cooperative as well. I judge this as a change and in that view, I think that lessening 
the benefits of ag mediation has occurred whether we maybe don ' t recognize it fully. That's 
part of the justification for the cut. They would still have two negotiators which are really the 
individuals who work with the mediators, farmers and bankers. Your mediators are still out in 
the field working with individuals. It appears to me they would have adequate individuals and I 
appreciate the $55 ,000 are Federal funds and only $20,000 are State funds. I guess I look at it 
from both sides as my taxes go to pay Federal funds as well. 

REPRESENTATIVE NICHOLS: The FIE that was cut, is one of the people that are out in the 
field working directly with farmers , lenders, supplier and etc. , I think there has been some mix up 
about that. There was already one mediator position which are the positions that help once you 
get to a situation where you, the banker, farmer and the suppliers get together and work out a 
plan of repayment. These are where the two mediators come in and there was one mediator 
position cut already that was dropped. The negotiator position that we took out of with our 
amendment is actually one of the people out in the field working directly with farmers and 
ranchers. Even though times have changed from the 80 ' s, I really can' t see where we 're going to 
have any less need in the next couple of years for the people that are out in the field working with 
farmers and ranchers regardless of the ability of production. When you get into financial 
problems, your into financial problems. The negotiation process, you have an individual that 
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isn' t hired by a banker, supplier or the farmer, so it is a third non-biased opinion. The Federal 
level has cut back to the individual states because there are so many more states in the same need 
we have put together their own programs, dispersing it to more states. For the year 2000, there is 
more money available Federally. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Representative Boehm, your motion will continue to be on the table 
till the next meeting. 

REPRESENTATIVE BOEHM: Since there was a lot of discussion with this mediation, along 
with that motion, I would give the Ag Commissioner the option to do with the $100,000, leave 
that transfer authority in there. If he wanted to do it in ag mediation as part of that, part of that 
he could get Federal dollars plus he could use the General dollars that he needs so, it would give 
him $80,000 to do whatever. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: I have a question, we will address the next time we get together, the 
$20,000 to the computer. The last biennium, we spent quite a bit of dollars to bring the 
computers systems up to speed and I thought that included the Safe Send also. We stand in 
recess until the call of the Chair. d\ U\ 
4/10/99 Tape 3, Side A, Meter 0-3776 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Reconvened the conference committee meeting of SB 2009. 
ROLL CALL: All committee members present. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Yesterday, we left off with a motion on the floor, that is still there, 
from Rep. Boehm to restore $100,000 to the budget. 

REP. NICHOLS: Sen. Naaden had questioned what good is it to move $100,000 from one place 
to another if there isn't operating dollars to move. My question to Rep. Lloyd is to give an 
example of where those costs could be moved from. Even with $100,000 added this is a pretty 
severe blow to the budget. 

REP. LLOYD: The $100,000 addition to the operating line would augment the budget. 

SENATOR TO MAC: Where did $100,000 come from? Why did the House choose this cut? 

REP. LLOYD: The original $100,000 that was cut in mediation. It was resurrected by a 
$100,000 transfer. The $100,000 in operating was made in Appropriations and was brought to 
the House. The bill passed the House on the first vote because of misinterpretation. And, then 
was rereferred to the House Appropriations Committee with the amendments passed. We felt the 
funds in the Commissioner's budget were adequate to accomplish what we'd discussed. We took 
from the operating fund. We don't like to use state funds to augment federal cuts . 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Was the motion to restore $100,000 overall, or are you looking at a 
certain area of restoration? 
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REP. BOEHM: That is an overall cut to allow them to do what they felt is necessary. 

SENATOR TOMAC: I'd resist the motion. That is a substantial cut. This wouldn't restore cuts 
to mediation. We need to be $275 ,000 spending authority plus 1 FTE. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: The motion is one I-line item and to reduce that by $100,000. We've 
agreed to restore $30,000 to the beekeepers. Project Safe-Send will tie into this other portion. 
Let's discuss the ag mediation. 

REP. NICHOLS: The FTE is a position that would be cut is a negotiator out in the fields- not 
one of the 2 mediators. I'd resist elimination of that position. 

REP. LLOYD: What is the difference between negotiator and mediator? There is nothing here 
that shows the difference. I need to have some clarification. 

SENATOR TOMAC: My understanding is this individual was in the field. 

ROGER JOHNSON: Commissioner of Agriculture. The position that I believe is at stake is a 
western field negotiator that works directly with farmers. A negotiator works directly with the 
farmers. When you get to the final stages before foreclosure , it would go into mediation. 

REP. LLOYD: The negotiator is the person who works with the mediator, the farmer, and the 
banker. That is apparently the mediator. 

ROGER JOHNSON: Actually the first statement you made was true and so was the second 
statement. 

SENA TOR TO MAC: The differences may not be clear and may be inappropriately named. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: I thought one person took this all the way through. 

REP. LLOYD: The discussions and the understanding that I got through our meeting with the 
Commissioner of Agriculture and his staff, through our subcommittee on Appropriations. My 
interpretation in that discussion is that the mediator worked with the farmer in the field and may 
include the banker, and if they can't resolve it, a negotiator steps in and assists the mediator and 
the farmer and the banker. I didn't intent to cut anybody in the field. 

SENATOR TOMAC: The mediation process has evolved. And, in 1985, we literally had to beg 
bankers to come and testify. Now we have bankers testifying for the positions. The process is 
largely federally funded. Mediators and negotiators, I believe have a dual purpose. It would be a 
mistake to cut these positions. Banks recognize the value of this process. We need to capitalize 
on available federal funds. 
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REP. LLOYD: The terminology may need changing. A position that matched this description 
was put into the 95% budget cut of the Governor. It was placed in the budget by the 
Commissioner, but to my knowledge, that was not restored by the Governor. (tape A, 1535) 

SENATOR SOLBERG: We're still going to leave your motion on the table, Rep. Boehm, along 
with the discussion about the ag mediation. But, I think we have a situation setting up this Board 
that we need to talk about. Of course, if we do not do that, I'm not going to go along with raising 
the registration because this was in the agreement on the chemical companies. And, if we don't 
do that, we'll have to look at the minor use funds, etc. 

SENATOR NAADEN: The Pesticide Control Act is a board made up of the Ag Commissioner, 
Director of Extension, and Director of Ag Research. I think those people can take care of 
anything that this Crop Protection Task Force can take care of. I see no reason to put a tax on the 
chemical companies to add $90,000 to the state treasury. If the purpose in the increase in 
registration is to get more money in the minor use fund, and I think if we wanted to push that 
Pesticide Control Board a little bit to encourage them to provide more use of the minor use fund. 
I think the bottleneck right now in minor use funds in registration of chemicals is the fact that we 
don't have someone in the office to write the rules and regulations to get those chemicals in use. 
The person who has been there is leaving, and they are going to have trouble putting someone 
new in there. If the purpose of the increase in registration is to increase the use of the minor use 
fund , let's put our money there rather than to have another board. We have hired people whose 
job it is to do this ought to be doing this. We ought to write intent in to get them to do this. They 
can even privatize those funds to allow private groups to apply for those funds and get a 
chemical label. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: The purpose of this was to bring HB 1252 into play in the 
harmonization of chemicals between Canada the US to do labeling. When we put more money 
yesterday in the minor use in a couple of areas because of the excess money coming in from the 
extra $50 licensing. 

REP. LLOYD: You are correct in that interpretation. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: The agreement we had yesterday was between the drafters ofHB 1252 
and the chemical companies. 

REP. LLOYD: I'm aware of the Board. I look at the Board as policy making rather than an 
actively working board. They bring concerns to their Board discussions, perhaps from their own 
personnel in extension and research. I don't view them as being a cooperative working Board 
with industry at this point. It is judicious to bring these groups together in this policy-making 
board. I didn't check to see if there was an addition to the general fund of the portion of the new 
earth moneys that will be brought in. I think the Commissioner was going to check it out, too. I 
thought it was an actual percentage. When the drafters created it, I didn't query them on it in 
regard to why they increased the general fund portion. I assumed it was based on a percent, but I 
didn't check. 
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SENA TOR SOLBERG: Rep. Lloyd, you're still with the task force? 

REP. LLOYD. Yes. 

SENATOR NAADEN: What do we want to accomplish with the additional money charged to 
the chemical companies? 

SENATOR SOLBERG: I believe the initial charge was for this task force on the harmonization 
of chemicals. I have no idea what it is going to cost to reliable these chemicals. 

SENATOR NAADEN: The actual applications they fill out to EPA to get these chemicals 
licensed or registered. There is only 1 person there doing that work. If we need another person to 
help with the work, that's what we need to do. It doesn't do us any good to have another Board 
sitting out here, why do we want to have a $50,000 task force that still doesn't know how to fill 
out these applications? 

SENA TOR SOLBERG: The task force will be working with EPA, ND industries, Canadian 
officials, etc. for these minor use projects. 

REP. LLOYD: There are many advantages ... most importantly involving industry in 
determining what we need to do in ND. Commodity groups are a great benefactor. I don't think 
there will be enough money in the minor use fund to accomplish these goals within the biennium. 
It is unfortunate that the need for this individual didn't come out in the testimony. I think we 
could have addressed it at that time. (tape A, 2700) 

SENATOR NAADEN: Who heard of harmonization until this session?: We haven't asked the 
Pesticide Board to do anything about this issue. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: There has been a lot of talk in communities along the Canadian 
Border. Nothing has been done about it during that time. HB 1252 and a couple of other bills 
presented in this session have brought it to life. We've gotten a lot of action on this during the 
past 2 months. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Conversations have been mostly since the last session. We can tweak 
the Pesticide Control Board to do a lot of this. If you put another person in that position to write 
those minor use registration forms for chemicals, we would be a lot better off. You aren't going 
to get those chemicals okayed until that's done. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: We aren't going to settle this today. Monday we're going to finalize 
this along with the Board of Animal Health. 

DR. SCHOLAR: State Veterinarian. In regards to the TB testing, basically we haven't got too 
much new to report. I got some numbers yesterday as far as the trace backs. We've traced sales 
out of the herd for the past 8 years. They've averaged about 50 head a year so we're looking at 
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400 head that have been so ld ou t of the herd . Not all or these wi ll require follow-up. We're 
look ing at doing testing in another 70-75 herds within the state. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Cost-wi se, we're about vvherc ,,ve we re last time. 

DR. SCHULLER: Those costs do not include testing these 75 herds. 

SENATOR NAADEN: I think we should know hO\v much increased funding is going into the 
general fund. 

ALLEN KNUDSON: (LC) The estimate is that $68,000 would go into the general fund. That is 
the increase from $50 to $58.50. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: That wou ld be a net effect of $43,000. 

REP. LLOYD: Distributed proposed amendment #98031.0213 for consideration on Monday. 

REP. BOEHM: Distributed proposed amendment #98031 .02 12 for consideration on Monday. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Adjourned the conference committee. 
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18: 3.5 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG : On the table was the motion by Rep. Boehm to restore $100,000 to the budget. 
1 B: 3.8 REP. BOEHM: I would like to make that motion, and also further amend that to include the $75 ,000 for 
Ag Mediation, and restore that FTE. 
1 B: 4.2 REP. LLOYD: Second 
IB: 4.4 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: Does everybody understand that? The motion is to restore $100,000 to the 
operating line, $75 ,000 in Ag Mediation, and the FTE. Is that right Rep. Boehm? 
18: 4.7 REP. BOEHM: That's right Mr. Chairman. 
1 B: 4.9 SEN. TOMAC: Just to generate some discussion on this, I' d resist this yet. We ' re getting warmer. I think 
the Senate took the correct approach , and we're still $100,000 off plus or minus . I know the House reinstated the 
$30,000, but that actually went into salaries and wages, so that isn ' t out ofoperating. They did do $20,000 on 
computers, so we ' re still $80,000 apart. If the motion recognizes that we need to put in Ag Mediation, that's the 
correct step. We're still cutting pretty deep in the operating. 
1 B: 6.2 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: We' ll take a roll call vote. 
1 B: 6.3 ROLL CALL VOTE: Sen. Solberg, aye; Sen. Naaden, aye ; Sen. Tomac, no; Rep. Boehm, yes ; Rep. 
Nichols, no; Rep. Lloyd, aye. 
I B: 6.4 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: That motion passes. We ' re pretty much set on the budget then except for the 
$20,000 in SafeSend . That in my opinion will come down in Sections 3, 11 , and 12. We should decide now exactly 
how that is going to be. Sen. Naaden I know where you're coming from on the discussion of the funds on the task 
force. Let ' s throw this open and see where we ' re at. Correct me if I' m wrong, Rep . Lloyd, but the chemical 
companies went along with the revised situation on this. Is that right? 
1 B: 7.5 REP. LLOYD: That's correct. They ' ve gone along with the revisions that have been made with this 
amendment, and they ' ve also gone along with HB 1252. I think, from talking with them, that they would kind of 
resist any additional changes because this is the right route to go to achieve the things that they ' re interested in with 
regard to North Dakota. 
1 B: 8.0 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: Is there something we can do to help the department as far as registration and 
labeling? I' m not sure how we can do it. 
1 B: 8.5 SEN NAADEN: The Pesiticide Control Board has control of the Minor Use funds . All monies in this fund 
are appropriated on a continuing basis to the board. Why don ' t we use that board? 
I B: 9.0 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG : I think we are, but what this task force is proposed to do is different from what 
the control board is doing. 
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18: 9.3 REP. LLOYD: Mr. Chairman you are I 00% right on that. They will augment the board and take it a step 
further than what the current board does. I view the current board as more policy makers. I don't think the Director 
of Extension and the Director of the RE Station have the time to get involved in the types of things this task force 
should get involved in. I want some action. I want the industry involved. The task force has an industry person, 
farmers , and legislative individuals who will all be proactive. 
I 8: 10.3 SEN. NAADEN: Why don ' t we do away with the Pesticide Board then? 
18: 10.5 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: How often does the board meet? 
I 8: 10.7 SEN. NAADEN: It 's at the call of the chair. 
I B: 10.8 REP. LLOYD: I believe that's right. It ' s at the call of the chair, which is the Commissioner of 
Agriculture. 
I B: I 0.9 SEN. NAADEN : I' m sure there are people within the Ag Research and the Ext. Service that spend an 
awful lot of time in this area. We ' re calling on them to step up their activity. That's what we should be doing, rather 
than disregard them and start a new board. If these people are there for a reason let ' s make them work, not hire 
another bunch of people to do it. 
1 B: 11.5 SEN. TOMAC: Those are valid points. Ifwe look at the Pesticide Act and the duplication, we all 
struggle with deficiencies in government. It seems to me that this is an enhanced pesticide board. Ifwe can ' t fund 
the current department with the funding request the Governor gave them, then the new initiative is kind of 
duplicating. 
1 B: 12.5 REP. LLOYD: I have to disagree. I don 't think adding more money to that board is going to make a 
difference unless it was totally remodified. I'm not sure that ' s what we want to do with that board because they have 
been making some very specific policy making decisions which influence their employees. Those employees are 
pretty much well-employed at this time. Even though they might become involved, I don ' t think that the total 
activity by those employees will be sufficient. 
I B: 13.4 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: What areas would the task force work in? We need to know if we're 
duplicating. 
1 B: 14.3 REP. LLOYD: In amendment 0210, page 3, I think #3 may be a valid one. That particular board may or 
may not have been active in this in the past, but if they have been and they had the authority they haven't functioned 
adequately in that area. Item #4 has not been done adequately. They might have discussed some minor use issues. I 
question if they have discussed going another step further and interacting with the manufacturers and processors of 
crop protection products. I think they haven't explored opportunities with Ag Canada at the level this other board 
will be able to take that to . While I'm sure there are individuals in the NDSU Research Department that have been 
involved with EPA, I don ' t know if they have participated at the level that we ' re looking for now. My real concern 
is the plight of the ND farmer. We've been looking at this issue for at least 10 to 12 years. That is, having a fair 
situation that the products are available to farmers in ND and Canada. Without that embellishment, the state board 
wouldn ' t be able to do that. 
I B: 17.3 SEN. NAADEN : I think both of those are covered under the Pesticide Act. lfwe want to determine what 
research is necessary to fulfill the data, we can use commodity groups to encourage it. We still have to go to our Ag 
Research or Extension Service. This committee certainly doesn ' t have any expertise in that area. 
18: 18.2 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: What ifwe would amend 4-35-02 to include what we have in section 11 as far 
as add ing to that board. In that subsection we would sunset that in four years and add to 4-35-04 the five areas that 
we have in the explanation of the board and sunset that. That would put together the Pesticide Control Board with 
what we ' re proposing for the task force. That way we would have one board working together. I would also 
possibly look at a ½ time FTE with registration of Minor Use pesticides. 
18: 20.4 SEN. NAADEN :I think we should look at the budget for this whole thing. If all the money we take in in 
Minor Use funds goes into this fund , we should have a budget drawn up out of that. What happens to that money. 
We need to provide another person to put the proposals together. 
I B: 22.0 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: We're looking at $85 ,000 that the House put in, and the carry over of 
$ I 90,000. So $475 ,000 in minor use. It seems to me that ' s more than adequate, when we used $160,000 this 
biennium. 
1 B: 22.0 REP. LLOYD: I agree that $475 ,000 is going to help a lot. I would hope that they would spend it all. The 
need is there for that purpose. The melding of the board and the task force may be beneficial. The most important 
pal1 of having a task force is that it has a strong vested interest in its outcome. Anytime that you have individuals in 
charge of a program and they don ' t have a personal investment, rarely do you see it succeed in four years. It's really 
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important we have individuals on this task force that want to see it succeed, then it will move forward at a pace 
that ' s going to get the work done . That's been a problem in the past. The board has been working more on the 
regulatory and political side, than being proponents of the whole program. 
18: 24.0 SEN. NAADEN: The House put in $85,000, there was a$ 190,000 carry over, and what did they add? 
18: 24.2 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: $200,000 from the additional EARP funds from the additional $50 for 
registration. $25,000 of that went to the task force. 
18: 25.7 REP. NICHOLS: Regarding the $50,000 that the task force has at their disposal, what are they going to 
use it for? Would they have meetings and travel to the extent that they would need $50,000? 
I B: 26.3 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: Rep. Lloyd do you have any comment on that? We 've brought it down ¼ 
mi llion so far . I would say there will be meetings, travel, contacts with Ag Canada, EPA. I don ' t think there would 
be a lot of nuts and bolts work. There would be more ifwe combined the task force and the board. I haven't seen a 
specific budget. I don't know if there is one. 
18: 27.0 REP. LLOYD: No, not at this time. 
1 B: 27.4 SEN. NAADEN: That's one ofmy big problems. We have no idea what they're going to spend the money 
on. I would much rather see the $50,000 put a couple people on the Pesticide Board. I want to see the budget. How 
can we cut it down from $300,000 to $50,000, and we don't know what they're doing with it. 
1 B: 27.9 REP. LLOYD: That cut was from a major change in direction . $250,000 would've been used for actual 
duty work instead of committee work. The industry was in objection to the use of that fund, because of their 
endeavors of registration. That ' s an apple and an orange difference. The $50,000 is certainly appropriate for a 
committee of this size to meet for a biennium and to achieve its goals . I don't see that as inappropriate funding at 
all. Quite frankly, if you put in a little bit of travel and requesting some investigative research I don't think that's 
inappropriate at all. The fact is, I think they ' ll spend it very wisely. For that amount of money they ' ll need a very 
detailed budget. 
IB: 30.0 SEN. TOMAC: The fiscal note you handed out with HB 1252, is that current in concert with the bill? The 
fiscal note is dated 3-30-99. It takes $100,000 of EARP funds. Is that old or is that what it's going to cost? Then 
we're talking about more money yet to this whole thing. 
1 B: 30.4 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: What 1252 is now is strictly an enabling institute, and the fiscal note was 
basically taken off and was transferred over into here . Is that correct Rep. Lloyd? 
18: 30.8 REP. LLOYD: That's what I thought. 
1 B: 32.2 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: What are the disadvantages and the advantages of putting the board and the 
task force together? 
1 B: 32.5 REP. LLOYD: I would have to study it to some extent. What we don ' t want is for the task force to get 
involved with the board issues . The board works with revising policy issues. 
18: 36.5 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: Could Dr. Schuler provide us with some more information? Regarding the 
costs for the TB issue with the cattle. Dr. Schuler? 
18: 37.3 DR. SCHULER, State Veterinarian: (presented a chart of expenses due to the TB issue) The funds for 
the Estimated Suspect Appraisal haven't been used yet. These are actual expenses today. 
18: 39.3 REP. LLOYD: What is the target date for knowing the results of the test? Do we know that? 
18: 39.6 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: I think that ' s just a cushion in case we run into any more reactors. 
18: 40.5 REP. NICHOLS: On this chart, why are the 30 cows separated out? 
18: 40.8 DR. SCHULER: There were 30 cow and calf pairs that were sold out in 1997, and we're trying to locate 
them to purchase them back. 
18: 41.5 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: Does the Federal government treat those as infected also? 
18: 41.6 DR. SCHULER: Yes. 
18: 41.8 REP. LLOYD: I' ct like to add a sentence at the end of amendment 0213 that would read " In support of 
the Rancher's and Cattlemen's Action Legal Foundation". The intent is that the money will be used for that purpose. 
1 B: 43.9 SEN. NAADEN: Is this a difference between the House and the Senate? 
1 B: 44.2 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: No. This would be an add-on . 
18: 44.5 SEN. NAADEN: I was informed that you couldn't bring up anything that wasn ' t a difference between the 
House and the Senate. 
I B: 46.3 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG: We have another amendment by Rep. Boehm, amendment 0212. Do you want 
to explain that? 
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I B: 46.5 REP. BOEHM: This amendment is very simple, and just relates to tax exemptions for the indemnity of 
the cattle of Mr. Fried. 
I B: 47.0 SEN. NAADEN: I have no problem with that. That ' s directly related to what we ' re discussing. 
I B: 47.2 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG : That exempts Mr. Fried from state income tax for two years, is that correct 
Rep. Boehm? 
I B: 47.4 REP. BOEHM: That's correct Mr. Chairman. 
I B: 47.5 CHAIRMAN SOLBERG : ls there any objection to that? All right, we'll accept that. 

Meeting adjourned 
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SENATOR SOLBERG: Reopened the conl"erence committee on SB 2009. 
ROLL CALL: Present: Senators Solberg. Naaden. Tomac: Representatives Lloyd. Boehm, 
Nichols 

SENATOR SOLBERG: l'd like to go section by section , to know which ones we have covered, 
if there are any changes. and we can do that quickly to get down to sections 3, 11, and 12. 
Sections 3 and 4 of the amendment # 0212 by Rep. Boehm on the tax situation on the farm that 
had the buyout of the TB cattle, are we okay on that one? Section 6 - okay. Sections 7 & 8 we're 
going to reject that's the Safe Send \\hereby retailers/wholesale could not bring chemicals in 
from Project Safe Send. Section 9, Minor Use, I think we were going to keep that open until we 
settle Sections 3, IL and 12 to see what is· Jeft over in there. Let me go over the figures we have in 
Minor Use - The estimated income on the added regi stration is $350,000. We're putting $200.000 
to the minor use labeling; $68 ,000 general fund; $25,000 to the task force; and $20,000 Safe 
Send computer equipment for a total of $313 ,000; and an estimated income of $350,000. So the 
$37,000 balance we'd either put that into an area or that stays with the EARP fund. (tape A. B, 
160) 
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SENATOR SOLBERG: If we add sections 3, 11 , and 12 - $25,000 of that would go to the task 
force , and $25,000 out of general is the way its drawn now. Section 10 is the line item transfers 
and that would be down to $100,000 now with what was approved the other day as far as the 
monetary appropriations on the department. We still want to leave that up to the Commissioner 
to move that around in anyway he would wish. I would like to put an amendment on there 
excluding the line item of animal health. The reason being that when we moved that over 3 years 
ago when it was a stand alone, it's part of the department but still has a basic line item. (tape B, 
525) 

SENATOR NAADEN: I don't see why we need section 10 at all. It is just taken out of the 
operating expenses and it already gives the Ag Commissioner the authority to take it out where 
he wants to. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Shall we strike 10? 

SENA TOR TO MAC: I'm not in agreement, and I know we voted on the operating and I think 
the operating cuts are still too deep, but it seems to me that deep a cut in operating hasn't been 
justified given the current circumstances. The House didn't vote for it, only justification for that 
cut. The Senate's position was one of cutting $30,000 out of the special funds . From the Senate's 
position, I don't know that I've been given an explanation of why $100,000 was cut. If that cut 
remains in the budget, I think we need to give a cut that deep the flexibility of coming either 
from salaries or operating. I'm in agreement that it shouldn't come from the Board of Animal 
Health. I think if you expect to reduce the Ag Department's general fund operating by 20%, I 
think you need to allow them to take that from any of those line items--salaries, operating or 
wherever they need it. If it's going to be this Conference Committee's decision to continue to 
hold with the $100,000 cut, I think you need to give the Commissioner the ability to take those 
cuts from wherever they see fit. It's going to cut pretty deep into operating. I'd resist at this point, 
if we restore $100,000, I don't have any problem removing the line item authority. (tape B, 758) 

SENATOR NAADEN: I would tend to agree, but it shouldn't be just in operating. We should 
be able to cut salaries also. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Let's leave Section 10 in there for the time being. Section 13 - the 
Board of Animal Health. You have a copy of what Dr. Schuler State Veterinarian and Mr. 
Carlson put together for us . Are there questions? On the bottom of the first sheet with the 
estimated dollar amount, the estimate for suspect appraisal. That is kind of a cushion of $31,050, 
for 7 head that they may find suspect. I'd suggest we go the total expenses of about $63 ,000 to 
allow for additional testing if necessary. 

SENATOR TOMAC: You're suggesting $63,000 - why can't we pad that more. 

SENA TOR SOLBERG: If we run into another herd, I think by law they can go to the 
emergency fund , or they could go to the emergency commission for that funding. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Why don't we make that $65,000? (tape B, 1337) 
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SENATOR SOLBERG: Anything that is not used will be turned back. Sections 3, 11 , and 12. 
My understanding of the Pesticide Commission consisting of the Commissions, the Director of 
Ag Research and the Director of Extension, and this deals basically with 2 sections of the 
pesticide law: 1) The emergency use, and 2) Special needs. HB 1252 proponents still feel this is a 
needed section of law. 

SENATOR NAADEN: On Saturday we discussed the 2 provisions of section 11 that aren't 
covered in the Pesticide Act. Why can't we just add that to the Pesticide Act and add a section 
that asks that committee, and I have no problem of increasing the committee, and let them pa for 
that committee out of the minor use control fund, and have it cover HB 1252. (tape B, 1518) 

REP. LLOYD: I don't like to mix them. Prior duties and the way the Board ha been functioning 
may disrupt them . This task force is sufficiently different to require a different board. I don't 
want it to be bogged down on the regulatory side. We want it to be proactive with more vested in 
the outcome. 

SENA TOR NAADEN: Whatever they do has to go through the Pesticide Control Board for 
licensing. That's the board that controls this whole licensing, etc. (tape B, 1840) 

REP. LLOYD: We're not 100% sure about the licensing aspect regarding that whether they have 
to go through there or not, or how that would work at this point. I'm more concerned about the 
speed at which they will be working. I see the need for a group of people who really want to get 
something done, and I didn't want to put the regulatory aspect in their way as far as meeting with 
the committee. (tape B, 1980) 

SENATOR NAADEN: I know the cost of pesticides is not going to go down when you keep 
adding fees to the companies that are furnishing the pesticides. It's that simple. I think we can 
take care of the cost of this committee, and can add these duties to the Pesticide Control Board 
because as I see the Act, you haven't circumnavigated it a bit. That act is in full force right now 
and it will be after we pass another task force. They're going to have to go to this Pesticide 
Control Board to provide for anything they do. They don't have the authority to grant licenses to 
a new chemical in any way. If they want to set on that board and cause the Pesticide Control 
Board to be more proactive to allow the farmers in ND to be able to bring in chemicals from 
Canada for dual labeling, I think that's the proper place for it. I see no reason why they can't be a 
monitor on that board to get those people to hurry the process up. (tape B, 2190) 

REP. LLOYD: Another concern I have is the third partner in here which is the manufacturers of 
the pesticides. From our discussions with various members representing that industry, they favor 
going with the task force , and quite frankly have expressed objection to being part of the original 
board. I didn't specifically ask them why they objected, but I don't think they want to be involved 
with the regulatory aspect of it. If you don't have the manufacturers on board, nothing is going to 
come out of whatever we do. (tape B, 2258) 
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SENA TOR NAADEN: There's no reason a member of the industry can't be appointed to the 
Pesticide Control Act. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: I think that's the point. They don't want to sit on a board with a 
regulatory task. 

SENATOR NAADEN: I don't know why, if it allowed them to bring more chemicals to the 
farmers in the state, maybe cheaper, why they wouldn't want to sit on that board? 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Going back to HB 1252, the entire intent of that bill was for movement 
of harmonization of chemicals between the US and Canada. Nothing has been done in 2-3 years. 
I think out of frustration that nothing was being done, 1252 was introduced. There is a sunset on 
it. I feel $50,000 being spent by users of chemicals will return benefits. (tape B, 2600) 

REP. LLOYD: The manufacturers readily came forth to assist in matching any funds the 
legislature put into this particular task force. They see the value of it. I question whether they 
would see the same value with the current state board. 

REP BOEHM: You stated nothing has been done for years. We have a board, that hasn't done 
anything. That's why we created this task force to accomplish harmonization. (tape B, 2660) 

SENATOR NAADEN: My point is, you still have to go through that Pesticide Control Board to 
get any of this done. 

REP. BOEHM: We need someone to do the work. These people on the board do not have 
additional time. (tape B, 2702) 

SENATOR SOLBERG: We discussed adding a half-time FTE to help with the license labeling. 

REP. BOEHM: Moved adding $45,000 from the Environmental and Rangeland Protection 
Fund for a half-time FTE position for minor use product registration activities. This 
includes writing prepared federal section 18 and 24 of crop pesticide registration for minor 
use labeling. If the department feels they have a half-time on staff now they want to make 
full time, that is agreeable. 

REP. LLOYD: Seconded the motion. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: We'll leave that on for discussion. Rep. Boehm, is this motion a stand 
alone, or is it in addition to sections 3, 11 , and 12? 

REP. BOEHM: I suppose I could make it in addition to help support the other three 

SENATOR SOLBERG: If sections 3, 11 , and 12 fail , I'm not sure we'll have the extra funding 
for that. As I stated on the moneys coming in is the proposed buying of computer equipment for 
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Project Safe Send. If we don't have this whole thing come together, there will be stripping of 
others. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Let's vote on section 3, the added registration. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: There's no need for section 3, ifwe do not adopt sections 11 and 12. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Ifwe give that money to the Pesticide Control Board, and add a few 
people to it, they can go right ahead and accomplish the same thing. 

SENATOR TOMAC: Let's hold the vote until we have more time. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Everything is settled except sections 3, 11, and 12. We stand in recess 
(tape B, 3252) 

4/10/99 Tape 1, Side B, Meter 3.5-44.0 
Minutes physically attached - taken by House Appropriations Clerk, Casey 
Davis. Tape filed under House Appropriations Conference Committee, 
4/10/99 . 

1 4/12/99 p.m. tape 5, A, 0- (didn't record) 
/' 

---..~-R SOLBERG: Reopened the conference committee on SB 2009. 
ROLL CALL: Present: Senators, Solberg, Naaden, Tomac; Representatives Lloyd, Boehm, 
Nichols. 

SENATOR NAADEN: Proposed amendment #0215. 

ALLEN KNUDSON: (LC) Explained the amendment, noting first 5 sections are the same as 
Rep. Lloyds; Section 4 appropriates $15,000 to the minor use fund; $15,000 to the general fund; 
Section 5 changes use of the funds; Section 6 added legislative intent; Section 7 provides an 
expiration date. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: Senator Naaden, this doesn't increase fees? 

SENATOR NAADEN: That was not the intention. I intended to have Section 3 regarding fees 
included in this amendment. 

DISCUSSION: Regarding how the sections of this amendment fit in with the others that have 
been presented . 

SENATOR SOLBERG: We'll stand at ease to review this amendment. 
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Representative Lloyd 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2009 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1 097-1 099 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1159-1161 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2009 
be amended as follows : 

Page 1, line 2, replace the first "and" with "to provide for crop protection product task force; to 
provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide for a transfer;", replace "section" with 
"sections", and after "4-01-21" insert "and 19-18-04" 

Page 1, line 3, after "commissioner" insert "and pesticide registration fees ; and to declare an 
emergency" 

Page 1, remove line 11 

Page 1, line 13, replace "3,053-,452" with "~,083,452" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "828,957" with "628,957" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "851 ,681" with "776,681" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "553,907" with "573,907" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "8 ,599,579" with "8 ,374,579" 

Page 2, line 3, replace "4,068,216" with "4,033,216" 

Page 2, line 4, replace "4,531 ,363" with "4 ,341,363" 

Page 2, after line 11 , insert: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 19-18-04 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

19-18-04. Registration - Fees. 

1,_ Any person before selling or offering for sale any pesticide for use within 
this state shall file biennially with the commissioner an application for 
registration of the pesticide. The application must: 

+. a. 

2-:- b. 

&. C. 

+. d. 

Give the name and address of each manufacturer or distributor. 

Give the name and brand of each product registered. 

Be accompanied by a current label of each product so registered. 

Be accompanied by a registration fee of three hundred fifty dollars for 
each product registered. At the close of each calendar month, the 
commissioner shall transmit to the state treasurer all moneys rece ived 
for the registrations . The state treasurer shall credit AAy fifty-eight 
dollars and fifty cents for each registered product to the general fund 
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in the state treasury and the remainder of the registration fee for each 
registered product to the environment and rangeland protection fund. 

~ e. Be accompanied by a material safety data sheet. 

2. The commissioner may require an applicant or registrant to provide 
efficacy, toxicity, residue, and any other data necessary to determine if the 
pesticide will perform its intended function without unreasonable adverse 
effects on the environment. If the commissioner finds that the application 
conforms to law, the commissioner shall issue to the applicant a certificate 
of registration of the product. If after public hearing before the 
commissioner the application is denied, the product may not be offered for 
sale. 

3. Each registration covers a two-year period beginning January first and 
expiring December thirty-first of the following year. A certificate of 
registration may not be issued for a term longer than two years, and is not 
transferable from one person to another, or from the ownership to whom 
issued to another ownership, or from one place to another place or 
location. A penalty of fifty percent of the license or registration fee must be 
imposed if Jhe license or certificate of registration is not applied for on or 
before January thirty-first following the expiration date, or within the same 
month the pesticides are first manufactured or sold within this state. Each 
product must go through a two-year discontinuance period in order to clear 
all outstanding products in the channel of trade. 

4. This section does not apply to a pesticide sold by a retail dealer if the 
registration fee has been paid by the manufacturer, jobber, or any other 
person, as required by this section." 

Page 2, line 14, replace "$1,860,576" with "$1,880,576" 

Page 2, after line 21, insert: 

"SECTION 6. ESTIMATED INCOME - GAME AND FISH FUND. The 
estimated income line item in section 1 of this Act includes the sum of $200,000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, from the game and fish department operating 
fund for the waterbank program for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending 
June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - PROJECT SAFE SEND. It is the intent 
of the legislative assembly that the agriculture commissioner not accept products under 
project safe send from wholesalers or manufacturers unless the full cost of disposal is 
recovered from the wholesaler or manufacturer. It is also the intent of the legislative 
assembly that products which are not a direct danger to the public should be disposed 
of by the owner in a proper manner. The agriculture commissioner may distribute 
educational materials on the proper and safe disposal of appropriate materials by the 
original purchaser for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 8. PROJECT SAFE SEND - FEES. The agriculture commissioner 
may charge wholesalers and manufacturers a fee for the disposal of pesticides located 
in North Dakota. The fee shall be no less than the cost of disposal. All fees collected 
under this section must be deposited in the environment and rangeland protection fund 
for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 9. TRANSFER. The office of management and budget shall transfer 
$85,000 from the environment and rangeland protection fund to the minor use pesticide 
fund for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 
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SECTION 10. LINE ITEM TRANSFERS. Notwithstanding section 54-16-04 , 
the director of the office of management and the state treasurer shall make transfers of 
funds between line items in section 1 of this Act of up to a cumulative sum of $100 ,000 
as may be requested by the agriculture commissioner for the biennium beginning 
July 1, 1999, and ending June 30 , 2001. 

SECTION 11. CROP PROTECTION PRODUCT TASK FORCE -
MEMBERSHIP - DUTIES. The crop protection product task force consists of the 
agriculture commissioner , the chairman of the house agriculture committee , the 
chairman of the senate agriculture committee , and three individuals appointed by the 
governor, one of whom must be a representative of a crop protection product 
manufacturer. The governor shall call the task force together for its initial meeting , at 
which time the task force members shall select a member to be chairman . Every 
meeting thereafter is at the call of the chairman. The task force shall: 

1. Identify and prioritize crop protection product labeling needs; 

2. Explore the extent of authority given to this state under the federal 
Insecticide, Fungicide ,and Rodenticide Act; 

3. Identify the data necessary to enable registration of a use to occur in a 
timely manner; 

4. Determine what research, if any, is necessary to fulfill data requirements 
for activities listed in this section and communicate its findings to the 
agriculture commissioner; and 

5. Request the agriculture commissioner to pursue specific research funding 
options from public and private sources. 

SECTION 12. APPROPRIATION. There is hereby appropriated out of any 
moneys in the environment and rangeland protection fund in the state treasury, not 
otherwise appropriated, the sum of $25,000, or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary , and out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not 
otherwise appropriated, the sum of $25,000, or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, to the crop protection product task force for the purpose of addressing crop 
protection product registration and labeling as provided for in section 11 of this Act for 
the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 13. APPROPRIATION- BOARD OF ANIMAL HEALTH -1997-99 
BIENNIUM. There is hereby appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the 
state treasury, not otherwise appropriated , the sum of $25,000, or so much of the sum 
as may be necessary, to the agriculture commissioner for the purpose of paying an 
indemnity and other expenses associated with destroying a herd of cattle infected with 
bovine tuberculosis for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and 
ending June 30, 1999. 

SECTION 14. EMERGENCY. Section 13 of this Act is declared to be an 
emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Boehm 

April 10, 1999 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2009 

Page 1, line 2, replace "and" with "to create and enact a new subdivision to subsection 1 of 
section 57-38-01 .2 and a new subdivision to subsection 3 of section 57-38-30.3 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to an income tax exemption for indemnities 
received for destruction of cattle;" 

Page 1, line 3, after "commissioner" insert"; to provide an effective date; and to provide an 
expiration date" 

Page 2, after line 11 , insert: 

"SECTION 3. A new subdivision to subsection 1 of section 57-38-01 .2 of the 
1997 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows : 

Reduced by an amount equal to any indemnity received under this Act 
for the destruction of cattle infected or suspected of being infected 
with bovine tuberculosis. 

SECTION 4. A new subdivision to subsection 3 of section 57-38-30.3 of the 
1997 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows: 

An amount equal to any indemnity received under this Act for the 
destruction of cattle infected or suspected of being infected with 
bovine tuberculosis." 

Page 2, after line 21 , insert: 

"SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE- EXPIRATION DATE. Sections 3 and 4 of 
this Act are effective for the first two taxable years beginning after December 31 , 1998, 
and are thereafter ineffective." 

Renumber accordingly 
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April 10, 1999 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2009 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1097-1100 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1159-1162 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bi ll No. 2009 
be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "to provide for a transfer; to provide an appropriation 
to the governor;" 

Page 2, after line 4, insert: 

"SECTION 2. TRANSFER. The Bank of North Dakota shal l transfer the sum of 
$100,000 from uncommitted funds of the agricultural partnership in assisting community 
expansion fund to the governor's office operating fund for the purpose of investigating 
and analyzing beef industry trade issues for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and 
ending June 30, 2001 . 

SECTION 3. APPROPRIATION - GOVERNOR'S OFFICE. There is hereby 
appropriated from special funds derived from moneys in the governor's office operating 
fund, the sum of $100,000 , or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the 
governor for the purpose of investigating and analyzing beef industry trade issues for 
the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT101-GOVERNOR 

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE - This amendment provides an appropriation to the Governor of 
$100 ,000 from funds transferred from the Ag PACE fund for investigating and analyzing beef 
industry trade issues. 
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Prepared by the Legislative Counci l staff for 
Senator Naaden 

April 12, 1999 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2009 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1097-1100 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1159-1162 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2009 
be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "to create a legislative council commi ttee; to provide 
an appropriation to the legislative council; to provide a statement of legislative intent ;" 
and replace "section" with "sections 4-35-06.3 and" 

Page 1, line 3, after "to" insert "the minor use pesticide fund and" 

Page 2, after line 3, insert: 

"SECTION 3. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL- CROP HARMONIZATION 
COMMITTEE. The leg islative counci l shall create a crop harmonization committee 
consisting of the chairman of the house agriculture committee , the chairman of the 
Senate agriculture committee , and three other individuals appointed by the legislative 
council chairman, one of whom must represent the agriculture chemical industry. In 
consultation with the pesticide control board, the committee shall: 

1 . 

2 . 

3. 

4. 

Identify and priorit ize crop protection product labeling needs; 

Explore the extent of authority given to this state under the federal 
Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act ; 

Identify the data necessary to enable registration of a use to occur in a 
timely manner; 

Determine what research , if any, is necessary to fulfill data requirements 
for activities listed in this section and communicate its findings to the 
agriculture commissioner; 

5. Request the agriculture commissioner to pursue specific research funding 
options from public and private sources; and 

6. Request to the legislative council in the same manner as do other interim 
legislative council committees . 

SECTION 4. APPROPRIATION - LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. There is hereby 
appropriated out of any moneys in the minor use pesticide fund in the state treasury, not 
otherwise appropriated, the sum of $15,000, or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary , and out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury , not 
otherwise appropriated, the sum of $15,000, or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, to the legislative counci l for the purpose of addressing crop protection 
product registration and labeling as provided for in section 3 of this Act for the biennium 
beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 4-35-06.3 of the 1997 Supplement to the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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4_35_0fi .:I Minor use pesticide fund - Continuing appropriation. The minor use 
J i~e fund Ill ..i ca ted as a special fund in the state treasury. All moneys in the fund are 
~ Satlc riated 1111 : 1 wntmuI~g basis to the pesticide control board for the purpose of conducting 
c,~~~~missioi ii11tl :; tud1es , 1n~estigations, and evaluations regarding the registration and use of 
pesticldes for 11 11111 ir crops, minor uses, and emergency uses other uses as determined by the 

board. 

SECTION 6. LEGISLATIVE INTENT. It is the intent of the fifty-si xth legislative 
assembly that 1111 i ;1griculture commissioner, agricultural experiment statio~, and North Dakota 
state university ux tensIon service use resources available to them and register additional 
chemicals for usu in the North Dakota agriculture industry for the biennium beginning July 1, 
1999, and ending .June 30 , 2001 . 

SECTION 7. EXPIRATION DATE. Section 3 of this Act is effective through June 30 , 
2001 , and after tl1,1l date is ineffective." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 1 tiO - LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE - This amendment creates for the 1999-2000 interim an interim 
Crop Harmonization Committee and appropriates $30,000, $15,000 if which is from the general 
fund to the commill ee to address crop protection registration and labeling issues. 

Section 4-35-06. 3 is amended to allow funds in the minor use pesticide fund to be used for 
other uses of pesticides as determined by the board. 

A section of legisl :tlive intent is added providing that the Agriculture Department , Agricultural 
Experiment Statio11 , and NDSU Extension Service use resources available to them to register 
additional chemic;tl s for use in the North Dakota agriculture industry . 

Page No. 2 98031 .0215 



98031.0216 
Title.0500 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for qu7 
Senator Solberg . /'11 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2009 t,.fV 
CONF. COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS TO ENGR. SB 2009 APPROP. 4/13/99 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1097-1100 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1159-1162 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2009 
be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, replace the first "and" with "to create a legislative council committee; to provide 
an appropriation to the legislative council; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to 
provide for a transfer; to create and enact a new subdivision to subsection 1 of section 
57-38-01 .2 and a new subdivision to subsection 3 of section 57-38-30.3 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to an income tax exemption for indemnities received for 
destruction of cattle;", replace "section" with "sections", and after "4-01-21" insert", 
4-35-06.3, and 19-18-04" 

Page 1, line 3, after "to" insert "the minor use pesticide fund," and after "commissioner" insert", 
and pesticide registration fees; to provide an effective date; to provide an expiration 
date; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1 , remove line 11 

Page 1, line 13, replace "3,053,452" with "3,128,452" 

Page 1, .line 14, replace "828,957" with "778,957" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "851,681" with "801,681" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "553,907" with "573,907" 

CONF. COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS TO ENGR. SB 2009 

Page 2, line 2, replace "8,599,579" with "8,594,579" 

Page 2, line 3, replace "4,068,216" with "4,133,216" 

Page 2, line 4, replace "4,531,363" with "4,461,363" 

Page 2, after line 11, insert: 

APPROP. 4/13/99 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 4-35-06.3 of the 1997 Supplement to the 
North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

4-35-06.3. Minor use pesticide fund - Continuing appropriation. The minor 
use pesticide fund is created as a special fund in the state treasury. All moneys in the 
fund are appropriated on a continuing basis to the pesticide control board for the 
purpose of conducting or commissioning studies, investigations, and evaluations 
regarding the registration and use of pesticides for minor crops, minor uses, and 
en=teFgeney uses other uses as determined by the board. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 19-18-04 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

19-18-04. Registration - Fees. 
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.L Any person before selling or offering for sale any pesticide for use within 
this state shall file biennially with the commissioner an application for 
registration of the pesticide. The application must: 

~ a. 

~ b. 

~ c. 

4-: d. 

Give the name and address of each manufacturer or distributor. 

Give the name and brand of each product registered. 

Be accompanied by a current label of each product so registered. 

Be accompanied by a registration fee of three hundred fifty dollars for 
each product registered. At the close of each calendar month, the 
commissioner shall transmit to the state treasurer all moneys received 
for the registrations. The state treasurer shall credit fifty dollars for 
each registered product to the general fund in the state treasury and 
the remainder of the registration fee for each registered product to the 
environment and rangeland protection fund. 

& e. Be accompanied by a material safety data sheet. 

2. The commissioner may require an applicant or registrant to provide 
efficacy, toxicity, residue, and any other data necessary to determine if the 
pesticide will perform its intended function without unreasonable adverse 
effects on the environment. If the commissioner finds that the application 
conforms to law, the commissioner shall issue to the applicant a certificate 
of registration of the product. If after public hearing before the 
commissioner the application is denied, the product may not be offered for 
sale. 

3. Each registration covers a two-year period beginning January first and 
expiring December thirty-first of the following year. A certificate of 
registration may not be issued for a term longer than two years, and is not 
transferable from one person to another, or from the ownership to whom 
issued to another ownership, or from one place to another place or 
location. A penalty of fifty percent of the license or registration fee must be 
imposed if the license or certificate of registration is not applied for on or 
before January thirty-first following the expiration date, or within the same 
month the pesticides are first manufactured or sold within this state. Each 
product must go through a two-year discontinuance period in order to clear 
all outstanding products in the channel of trade. 

4. This section does not apply to a pesticide sold by a retail dealer if the 
registration fee has been paid by the manufacturer, jobber, or any other 
person, as required by this section. 

SECTION 5. A new subdivision to subsection 1 of section 57-38-01 .2 of the 
1997 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Reduced by an amount equal to any indemnity received under this Act 
for the destruction of cattle infected or suspected of being infected 
with bovine tuberculosis. 

SECTION 6. A new subdivision to subsection 3 of section 57-38-30.3 of the 
1997 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows: 

An amount equal to any indemnity received under this Act for the 
destruction of cattle infected or suspected of being infected with 
bovine tuberculosis." 

Page 2, line 14, replace "$1,860,576" with "$1,925,576" 
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Page 2, after line 21, insert: 

"SECTION 9. ESTIMATED INCOME • GAME AND FISH FUND. The 
estimated income line item in section 1 of this Act includes the sum of $200,000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, from the game and fish department operating 
fund for the waterbank program for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending 
June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 10. TRANSFER. The office of management and budget shall 
transfer $285,000 from the environment and rangeland protection fund to the minor use 
pesticide fund for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 11. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL - CROP HARMONIZATION 
COMMITTEE. The legislative council shall create a crop harmonization committee 
consisting of the chairman of the house agriculture committee, the chairman of the 
senate agriculture committee, and three other individuals appointed by the legislative 
council chairman, one of whom must represent the crop protection manufacturing 
industry. In consultation with the pesticide control board, the committee shall: 

1. Identify and prioritize crop protection product labeling needs; 

2. Explore the extent of authority given to this state under the federal 
Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act; 

3. Identify the data necessary to enable registration of a use to occur in a 
timely manner; 

4. Determine what research, if any, is necessary to fulfill data requirements 
for activities listed in this section and communicate its findings to the 
agriculture commissioner; 

5. Request the agriculture commissioner to pursue specific research funding 
options from public and private sources; and 

6. Report to the legislative council in the same manner as do other interim 
legislative council committees. 

SECTION 12. APPROPRIATION • LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. There is hereby 
appropriated out of any moneys in the minor use pesticide fund in the state treasury, not 
otherwise appropriated, the sum of $15,000, or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise 
appropriated, the sum of $15,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, and 
from special funds derived from grants or donation income, the sum of $150,000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, to the legislative council for the purpose of 
addressing crop protection product registration and labeling as provided for in 
section 11 of this Act for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 
2001. 

SECTION 13. LEGISLATIVE INTENT. It is the intent of the fifty-sixth legislative 
assembly that the agriculture commissioner, agricultural experiment station, and North 
Dakota state university extension service use resources available to them to assist in 
the registration of crop protection pesticides in cooperation with the crop protection 
industry for use in the North Dakota agriculture industry for the biennium beginning 
July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 14. APPROPRIATION- BOARD OF ANIMAL HEALTH -1997-99 
BIENNIUM. There is hereby appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the 
state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $65,000, or so much of the sum 
as may be necessary, to the agriculture commissioner for the purpose of paying an 
indemnity and other expenses associated with destroying a herd of cattle infected with 
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bovine tuberculosis for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and 
ending June 30, 1999. 

SECTION 15. BUDGET SECTION REPORT. The agriculture commissioner 
and the state veterinarian shall periodically report to the budget section on the status of 
the bovine tuberculosis disease in cattle and associated costs during the 1999-2000 
interim. 

SECTION 16. EFFECTIVE DATE - EXPIRATION DATE. Sections 5 and 6 of 
this Act are effective for the first two taxable years beginning after December 31 , 1998, 
and are thereafter ineffective. 

SECTION 17. EXPIRATION DATE. Section 4 of this Act is effective through 
June 30, 2001, and after that date is ineffective. 

SECTION 18. EMERGENCY. Section 14 of this Act is declared to be an 
emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 160- LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE - This amendment creates for the 1999-2000 interim an interim 
Crop Harmonization Committee and appropriates $180,000, $15,000 of which is from the 
general fund, $15,000 of which is from the minor use pesticide fund, and up to $150,000 of 
grants or donations to the committee to address crop protection registration and labeling 
issues. The House had established a crop protection task force and appropriated $300,000 
from the environment and rangeland protection fund to the task force for addressing these 
issues. 

DEPARTMENT 602 - AGRICULTURE DEPARTMENT 

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE - This amendment makes the following changes: 
CONFERENCE 
COMMITTEE 

CONFERENCE CONFERENCE COMPARISON 
EXECUTIVE SENATE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE HOUSE TO HOUSE 

BUDGET VERSION CHANGES VERSION VERSION VERSION 

Salaries and wages $3,130,530 $3,053,452 $75,000 $3,128,452 $3,083,452 $45,000 
Operating expenses 828,957 828,957 (50,000) 778,957 628,957 150,000 
Equipment 22,900 22,900 22,900 22,900 
Grants 161 ,700 161 ,700 161,700 161,700 
Board of Animal Health 506,818 502,922 502,922 502,922 
Ag mediation 857,818 851,681 (50,000) 801,681 776,681 25,000 
Ag in the classroom 96,000 96,000 96,000 96,000 
Anhydrous ammonia storage 8,1 54 8,154 8,154 8,154 
Waterbank program 414,000 414,000 414,000 414,000 
Pride of Dakota 151,841 151,516 151,516 151,516 
Wildlife services 779,694 779,694 779,694 779,694 
Safe Send 554,363 553,907 20,000 573,907 573,907 
Noxious weeds 1,174,696 1,174,696 - 1,174.696 1.174.696 

Total all funds $8,687,471 $8,599,579 ($5,000) $8,594,579 $8,374,579 $220,000 

Less special funds 4,080.342 4.068,216 65.000 4.133,216 4.033.216 100.000 

General fund $4,607,129 $4,531,363 ($70,000) $4,461,363 $4,341,363 $120,000 

FTE 46.00 47.00 .0.50 47.50 46.00 1.50 

Detail of Conference Committee changes to the Senate version includes: 

RESTORE 
FUNDING ADD TOTAL 

FOR PLANT REDUCE REDUCE ADD AG CHEMICAL CONFERENCE 
SERVICES OPERATING AGRICULTURE FUNDING FOR REGISTRATION COMMITTEE 
PROGRAM EXPENSES MEDIATION COMPUTERS POSITION CHANGES 

Salaries and wages $30,000 1 $45,000 5 $75,000 
Operating expenses ($50,000) 2 (50,000) 
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Equipment 
Grants 
Board of Animal Health 
Ag mediation ($50,000) 3 (50,000) 
Ag in the classroom 
Anhydrous ammonia storage 
Waterbank program 
Pride of Dakota 
Wildlife services 
Safe Send $20,000 4 20,000 
Noxious weeds 

Total all funds $30,000 ($50,000) ($50,000) $20,000 

20,000 

$0 

0.00 

$45,000 

45,000 

$0 

0.50 

($5,000) 

65,000 

($70,000) 

0.50 

Less special funds 

General fund $30,000 

0.00 

($50,000) 

0.00 

($50,000) 

0.00 FTE 

Conference Committee changes narrative: 

1 Restores funding reduced by the Senate for temporary and overtime salaries in the plant services 
program, the same as the House version. 

2 Reduces operating expenses. The commissioner may determine the specific areas of reduction within 
this line item. The House had reduced the operating expenses line item by $200,000 and allowed the 
commissioner line item transfer authority of up to $100,000 without Emergency Commission approval. 

3 Reduces the agriculture mediation line item by $50,000 from the general fund. The House had 
reduced this line item by $75,000, $20,000 of which was from the general fund and had eliminated one 
FTE position. The conference committee did not remove an FTE position for agriculture mediation. 

4 Adds funding from the environment and rangeland protection fund for purchasing computers and 
related costs for Project Safe Send. 

5 Adds $45,000 from the environment and rangeland protection fund for a .5 FTE position for minor use 
product registration activities, including writing and preparing federal Sections 18 and 24 crop 
pesticide registrations for minor use labeling. The department may use this funding to increase a 
.5 FTE position to a one FTE position for performing these activities. 

Sections are added that: 

Expand the use of the minor use pesticide fund for registering pesticides on more than just minor 
crops. 

Increase the biennial pesticide registration fee from $300 to $350. The additional funds collected 
will be deposited in the environment and rangeland protection fund. The increase is effective 
only through June 30, 2001. The House had increased this fee by $100 and deposited $17 of the 
increase into the general fund and the remaining $83 into the environment and rangeland 
protection fund. 

Transfer $285,000 from the environment and rangeland protection fund to the minor use pesticide 
fund. The House had provided for a transfer of $85,000. 

Provide legislative intent that the Agriculture Department, the Agricultural Experiment Station, and 
the NDSU Extension Service use resources available to them to assist in the registration of crop 
protection pesticides in cooperation with the crop protection industry for use in North Dakota. 

Appropriate $65,000 from the general fund for the remainder of the 1997-99 biennium for 
indemnifying the owner and paying other expenses associated with destroying cattle infected with 
bovine tuberculosis. The House had appropriated $25,000 for this purpose. 

Provide for periodic reports to the Budget Section on the status of the bovine tuberculosis 
infection in cattle in North Dakota and associated costs during the 1999-2000 interim. 
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Allow an income tax exemption for 1999 and 2000 for any indemnity received as a result of the 
bovine tuberculosis infection in cattle herds in North Dakota. 

Sections added by the Hous~ are not included which would have provided that the Agriculture 
Commissioner charge wholesalers and manufacturers for the actual costs of disposing of their products 
under Project Safe Send and that products which are not a direct danger to the public should be 
disposed of by the owner in a proper manner rather than under Project Safe Send. 
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
SB 2009, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Solberg, Naaden, Tomac and 

Reps. Lloyd, Boehm , Nichols) recommends that the HOUSE RECEDE from the House 
amendments on SJ pages 1097-1100, adopt amendments as follows , and place 
SB 2009 on the Seventh order: 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1097-1100 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1159-1162 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2009 
be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, replace the first "and" with "to create a legislative council committee; to provide 
an appropriation to the legislative council; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to 
provide for a transfer; to create and enact a new subdivision to subsection 1 of section 
57-38-01 .2 and a new subdivision to subsection 3 of section 57-38-30.3 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to an income tax exemption for indemnities received for 
destruction of cattle;", replace "section" with "sections" , and after "4-01-21" insert ", 
4-35-06.3 , and 19-18-04" 

Page 1, line 3, after "to" insert "the minor use pesticide fund," and after "commissioner" insert 
", and pesticide registration fees; to provide an effective date; to provide an expiration 
date; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1, remove line 11 

Page 1, line 13, replace "3,053,452" with "3,128,452" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "828,957" with "778 ,957" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "851,681" with "801,681" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "553,907" with "573,907" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "8,599,579" with "8,594,579" 

Page 2, line 3, replace "4,068,216" with "4,133,216" 

Page 2, line 4, replace "4,531,363" with "4,461,363" 

Page 2, after line 11, insert: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 4-35-06.3 of the 1997 Supplement to 
the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

4-35-06.3. Minor use pesticide fund - Continuing appropriation. The minor 
use pesticide fund is created as a special fund in the state treasury. All moneys in the 
fund are appropriated on a continuing basis to the pesticide control board for the 
purpose of conducting or commissioning studies, investigations, and evaluations 
regarding the registration and use of pesticides for minor crops, minor uses, and 
emergency uses other uses as determined by the board. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 19-18-04 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

19-18-04. Registration - Fees. 
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L Any person before selling or offering for sale any pesticide for use within 
this state shall file biennially with the commissioner an application for 
registration of the pesticide. The application must: 

+; a. 

~ b. 

&. ~ 

4.- d. 

Give the name and address of each manufacturer or distributor. 

Give the name and brand of each product registered. 

Be accompanied by a current label of each product so registered. 

Be accompanied by a registration fee of three hundred fifty dollars for 
each product registered. At the close of each calendar month , the 
commissioner shall transmit to the state treasurer all moneys 
received for the registrations. The state treasurer shall credit fifty 
dollars for each registered product to the general fund in the state 
treasury and the remainder of the registration fee for each registered 
product to the environment and rangeland protection fund. 

6-:- ~ Be accompanied by a material safety data sheet. 

2. The commissioner may require an applicant or registrant to provide 
efficacy, toxicity , residue, and any other data necessary to determine if the 
pesticide will perform its intended function without unreasonable adverse 
effects on the environment. If the commissioner finds that the application 
conforms to law, the commissioner shall issue to the applicant a certificate 
of registration of the product. If after public hearing before the 
commissioner the application is denied , the product may not be offered for 
sale. 

3. Each registration covers a two-year period beginning January first and 
expiring December thirty-first of the following year. A certificate of 
registration may not be issued for a term longer than two years , and is not 
transferable from one person to another, or from the ownership to whom 
issued to another ownership, or from one place to another place or 
location. A penalty of fifty percent of the license or registration fee must be 
imposed if the license or certificate of registration is not applied for on or 
before January thirty-first following the expiration date, or within the same 
month the pesticides are first manufactured or sold within this state. Each 
product must go through a two-year discontinuance period in order to clear 
all outstanding products in the channel of trade. 

4. This section does not apply to a pesticide sold by a retail dealer if the 
reg istration fee has been paid by the manufacturer, jobber, or any other 
person , as required by this section. 

SECTION 5. A new subdivision to subsection 1 of section 57-38-01 .2 of the 
1997 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Reduced by an amount equal to any indemnity received under this 
Act for the destruction of cattle infected or suspected of being 
infected with bovine tuberculosis . 

SECTION 6. A new subdivision to subsection 3 of section 57-38-30.3 of the 
1997 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows: 
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An amount equal to any indemnity received under this Act for the 
destruction of cattle infected or suspected of being infected with 
bovine tuberculosis ." 

Page 2, line 14, replace "$1 ,860,576" with "$1 ,925 ,576" 

Page 2, after line 21 , insert: 

"SECTION 9. ESTIMATED INCOME - GAME AND FISH FUND. The 
estimated income line item in section 1 of this Act includes the sum of $200,000 , or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, from the game and fish department operating 
fund for the waterbank program for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending 
June 30 , 2001. 

SECTION 10. TRANSFER. The office of management and budget shall 
transfer $285,000 from the environment and rangeland protection fund to the minor use 
pesticide fund for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

SECTION 11. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL - CROP HARMONIZATION 
COMMITTEE. The legislative council shall create a crop harmonization committee 
consisting of the chairman of the house agriculture committee , the chairman of the 
senate agriculture committee , and three other individuals appointed by the legislative 
council chairman , one of whom must represent the crop protection manufacturing 
industry. In consultation with the pesticide control board, the committee shall: 

1. Identify and prioritize crop protection product labeling needs; 

2. Explore the extent of authority given to this state under the federal 
Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act ; 

3. Identify the data necessary to enable registration of a use to occur in a 
timely manner; 

4. Determine what research , if any, is necessary to fulfill data requirements 
for activities listed in this section and communicate its findings to the 
agriculture commissioner ; 

5. Request the agriculture commissioner to pursue specific research funding 
options from public and private sources; and 

6. Report to the legislative council in the same manner as do other interim 
legislative council committees. 

SECTION 12. APPROPRIATION - LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. There is hereby 
appropriated out of any moneys in the minor use pesticide fund in the state treasury , 
not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $15,000 , or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise 
appropriated, the sum of $15,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, and 
from special funds derived from grants or donation income, the sum of $150,000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, to the legislative council for the purpose of 
addressing crop protection product registration and labeling as provided for in 
section 11 of this Act for the biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 
2001. 

SECTION 13. LEGISLATIVE INTENT. It is the intent of the fifty-sixth 
legislative assembly that the agriculture commissioner, agricultural experiment station, 
and North Dakota state university extension service use resources available to them to 
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assist in the registration of crop protection pesticides in cooperation with the crop 
protection industry for use in the North Dakota agricu lture industry for the biennium 
beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30 , 200 1. 

SECTION 14. APPROPRIATION - BOARD OF ANIMAL HEALTH - 1997-99 
BIENNIUM. There is hereby appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the 
state treasury , not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $65,000 , or so much of the sum 
as may be necessary, to the agriculture commissioner for the purpose of paying an 
indemnity and other expenses associated with destroying a herd of cattle infected with 
bovine tuberculosis for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and 
ending June 30 , 1999. 

SECTION 15. BUDGET SECTION REPORT. The agriculture commissioner 
and the state veterinarian shall periodically report to the budget section on the status of 
the bovine tuberculosis disease in cattle and associated costs during the 1999-2000 
interim. 

SECTION 16. EFFECTIVE DATE - EXPIRATION DATE. Sections 5 and 6 of 
this Act are effective for the first two taxable years beginning after December 31 , 1998, 
and are thereafter ineffective. 

SECTION 17. EXPIRATION DATE. Section 4 of this Act is effective through 
June 30 , 2001 , and after that date is ineffective. 

SECTION 18. EMERGENCY. Section 14 of this Act is declared to be an 
emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 160 - LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE - This amendment creates for the 1999-2000 interim an interim 
Crop Harmonization Committee and appropriates $180,000 , $15,000 of which is from the 
general fund , $15,000 of which is from the minor use pesticide fund , and up to $150 ,000 of 
grants or donations to the committee to address crop protection registration and labeling 
issues. The House had established a crop protection task force and appropriated $300 ,000 
from the environment and rangeland protection fund to the task force for addressing these 
issues. 

DEPARTMENT 602 - AGRICULTURE DEPARTMENT 

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE - This amendment makes the following changes: 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 
Grants 
Board of Animal Health 
Ag mediation 
Ag in the classroom 
Anhydrous ammonia storage 
Waterbank program 
Pride of Dakota 
Wildlife services 
Safe Send 
Noxious weeds 

EXECUTIVE 
BUDGET 

$3,130,530 
828 ,957 

22,900 
161 ,700 
506 ,818 
857,818 

96,000 
8,154 

414 ,000 
151 ,841 
779,694 
554,363 

1,174,696 

SENATE 
VERSION 

$3 ,053 ,452 
828,957 

22 ,900 
161,700 
502,922 
851 ,68 1 

96,000 
8,154 

414,000 
151,516 
779,694 
553,907 

1,174,696 

CONFERENCE 
COMMITTEE 

CHANGES 

$75 ,000 
(50,000) 

(50,000) 

20,000 

Page No. 4 

CONFE RENCE 
COMMITTEE 

VERSION 

$3,128,452 
778,957 

22,900 
161,700 
502,922 
801,681 

96 ,000 
8,154 

414,000 
151,516 
779,694 
573,907 

1,174,696 

HOUSE 
VERSION 

$3,083 ,452 
628,957 

22,900 
161,700 
502,922 
776,681 

96,000 
8,154 

414,000 
151 ,516 
779,694 
573 ,907 

1,174,696 

CONFERENCE 
COMM ITTEE 

COM PARI SON 
TO HOUSE 
VERSION 

$45,000 
150,000 

25,000 
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Total all funds $8,687,471 $8,599,579 ($5,000) $8,594,579 $8,374,579 $220,000 

Less special funds 4,080 ,342 4,068,216 65,000 4,133,216 4,033,216 100,000 

General fund $4,607,129 $4,531 ,363 ($70,000) $4,461 ,363 $4,341 ,363 $120,000 

FTE 46.00 47.00 0.50 47.50 46.00 1.50 

Detail of Conference Committee changes to the Senate version includes : 

RESTORE 
FUNDING ADD TOTAL 

FOR PLANT REDUCE REDUCE ADD AG CHEMICAL CONFERENCE 
SERVICES OPERATING AGRICULTURE FUNDING FOR REGISTRATION COMMITTEE 
PROGRAM EXPENSES MEDIATION COMPUTERS POSITION CHANGES 

Salaries and wages $30,000 1 $45,000 5 $75,000 
Operating expenses ($50 ,000) 2 (50 ,000) 
Equipment 
Grants 
Board of Animal Health 
Ag mediation ($50,000) 3 (50 ,000) 
Ag in the classroom 
Anhydrous ammonia storage 
Waterbank program 
Pride of Dakota 
Wildlife services 
Safe Send $20,000 4 20 ,000 
Noxious weeds 

Total all funds $30,000 ($50,000) ($50,000) $20,000 $45,000 ($5,000) 

Less special funds 20 ,000 45,000 65,000 

General fund $30,000 ($50,000) ($50,000) $0 $0 ($70 ,000) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50 0.50 

Conference Committee changes narrative: 

1 Restores funding reduced by the Senate for temporary and overtime salaries in the plant services 
program, the same as the House version. 

2 Reduces operating expenses. The commissioner may determine the specific areas of reduction within 
this line item. The House had reduced the operating expenses line item by $200,000 and allowed the 
commissioner line item transfer authority of up to $100,000 without Emergency Commission approval. 

3 Reduces the agriculture mediation line item by $50,000 from the general fund. The House had 
reduced this line item by $75,000, $20,000 of which was from the general fund and had eliminated 
one FTE position. The conference committee did not remove an FTE position for agriculture 
mediation. 

4 Adds funding from the environment and rangeland protection fund for purchasing computers and 
related costs for Project Safe Send. 

5 Adds $45,000 from the environment and rangeland protection fund for a .5 FTE position for minor use 
product registration activities, including writing and preparing federal Sections 18 and 24 crop 
pesticide registrations for minor use labeling. The department may use this funding to increase a 
.5 FTE position to a one FTE position for performing these activities. 

Sections are added that: 

Expand the use of the minor use pesticide fund for registering pesticides on more than just minor 
crops. 
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Increase the biennial pesticide registration fee from $300 to $350. The additional funds collected 
will be deposited in the environment and rangeland protection fund. The increase is effective 
only through June 30, 2001. The House had increased this fee by $100 and deposited $17 of 
the increase into the general fund and the remaining $83 into the environment and rangeland 
protection fund. 

Transfer $285,000 from the environment and rangeland protection fund to the minor use 
pesticide fund. The House had provided for a transfer of $85,000. 

Provide legislative intent that the Agriculture Department, the Agricultural Experiment Station, 
and the NDSU Extension Service use resources available to them to assist in the registration of 
crop protection pesticides in cooperation with the crop protection industry for use in North 
Dakota. 

Appropriate $65,000 from the general fund for the remainder of the 1997-99 biennium for 
indemnifying the owner and paying other expenses associated with destroying cattle infected 
with bovine tuberculosis. The House had appropriated $25,000 for this purpose. 

Provide for periodic reports to the Budget Section on the status of the bovine tuberculosis 
infection in cattle in North Dakota and associated costs during the 1999-2000 interim. 

Allow an income tax exemption for 1999 and 2000 for any indemnity received as a result of the 
bovine tuberculosis infection in cattle herds in North Dakota. 

Sections added by the House are not included which would have provided that the Agriculture 
Commissioner charge wholesalers and manufacturers for the actual costs of disposing of their products 
under Project Safe Send and that products which are not a direct danger to the public should be 
disposed of by the owner in a proper manner rather than under Project Safe Send. 

Engrossed SB 2009 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar . 

Page No. 6 SR-67-7162 
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Did You Know? 

North Dakota farmers and ranchers 
annually produce: 

• Enough wheat for 108 billion 
sandwiches 

• Barley for 42 billion cans of 
beer 

• Potatoes for two billion servings of 
french fries 

• Durum for 93 servings of pasta 
for every American 

• Beef for two billion hamburgers 

• Wool for 640,000 sweaters 

• Enough milk for 1.6 billion 
glasses 

• Pork for 65 million porkchops 

•Sunflowers to fill over 400 
million bags of sunflower seeds 

Sponsored By: 

North Dakota Department of Agriculture 
Phone: 800-242-7535 
Mail: ND Department of Agriculture 

600 East Blvd. Ave., Dept. 602 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0020 

E-mail: ndda@pioneer.state.nd.us 
Website: www.state.nd.us/ agr 

North Dakota Farm Bureau 
Phone: 701-224-0330 
Mail: ND Farm Bureau 

PO Box 2793 
Bismarck, ND 5850 

E-mail: ndfarm@btigate.con 
Website: www.fb.com/ndfb 

North Dakota Farmers Union 
Phone: 800-366-6338 
Mail: ND Farmers Union 

PO box 2136 
Jamestown, ND 58402-2136 

'-I-.-=:~:;::,__, E-mail: ndfu@fm-net.com 

Website: www.ndfarmersunion.com 

North Dakota Ag Statistics Services 
Phone: 701-239-5306 
Mail: ND Ag Statistics Services 

Po Box 3166 
Fargo, ND 58108-3166 

E-mail: nass-nd@nass.usda.gov 
Website: www.nass.usda.gov/nd/ 

NoRTl-t DAl<oTA 

AGRiculTURE 

TliE TRUSTEd pRovidER 
of TliE liiGliEST OUAliTy 

food iN TliE woRld. 
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Agriculture is 
North Dakota's #1 Industry 

* More than 25% of North Dakota's 
population is employed directly by 
agriculture or in agriculture-related business. 

* With cash receipts of more than $3 
billion, agricultural production and 
manufacturing make up more than 
37% of North Dakota's economic base. 

* North Dakota consumers spend only 11% of 
their gross income on food, compared to 
25% in Germany and 37% in Ireland. 

* North Dakota farms provide food and habitat 
for 90% of the state's wildlife. 

* North Dakota has 31,000 family farms and 
ranches. The average size of a North Dakota 
farm is 1,274 acres. 

•More than 39.3 million acres - nearly 90% 
of North Dakota's land area - is in farms and 
ranches. 

* The average age of a North Dakota farmer is 
51.4 years old. 

* North Dakota value-added cooperatives have built 
nearly $800 million in facilities since 1990. 

* Value-added cooperatives account for more than 
600 new jobs in North Dakota. 

•Producers in North Dakota have invested $216 
million in equity dollars into value-added coopera­
tives, which in turn has stimulated growth in local 
economies. "-
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North Dakota's agricultural processing industry 
produces high quality products from farm and ranch 
commodities. These products include: 

► Flour ►· Pasta 
► Cereal ► Canola Oil 
► Ethanol ► Corn Sweetener 
► French Fries ► Straw Board 
► Gourmet Foods ► Potato Chips 
► Bread and Baked Goods ► Decorative Items 
► Snack Foods & Condiments ► Cheese & Ice Cream 

North Dakota ranks first in the nation 
in the production of the following 
commodities: 

1998 Percent of U.S. 

Durum Wheat 69% 
Spring Wheat 40% 

, Barley 30% 
Sunflowers 57% 

Pinto Beans 47% 
All Dry Edible Beans 32% 

Flaxseed 87% 

Oats 16% 

Navy Beans 45% 

Cano la 73% 

Rye 19% 

9- North Dakota's , 

Top Five 
'(/ Agricultural Exports 

Wheat & Products 
Feed Grains & Products 
Sunflowers & Oils 
Vegetables & Preparations 
Soybeans & Products 

Overall 

$459 million 
$152 million 
$128 million 
$102 million 
$95 million 

$t08 billion 
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The Department's Vision ... 

T o provide North Dakota agriculture with the services and 

leadership necessary to make North Dakota the trusted provider 

of the highest quality food in the world with prosperous family farms, 

thriving rural communities and world class stewardship of resources. 

The Department's Mission ... 

The North Dakota Department of Agriculture fosters the long-term well-being of North 
Dakota by promoting a healthy economic, environmental and social climate for agri­

culture and the rural community through leadership, advocacy, education, regulation and 
other services. To carry out its mandate, the Department of Agriculture is committed to 
the following responsibilities: 

~ Serving as an advocate for family farmers and for the rural community. 

~ Providing services that ensure safe, high-quality and marketable agricultural 
products. 

~ Developing and expanding markets for agricultural products. 

~ Reducing, the risk of financial loss to agricultural producers and to buyers and 
sellers of agricultural commodities. 

~ Ensuring compliance with laws administered by the North Dakota Department 
of Agriculture through understandable regulations, information, education and 
even-handed enforcement. 

~ Ensuring human safety and protecting the environment through proper use of 
pesticides. 

~ Providing services to reduce agricultural losses from noxious weeds, predatory 
animals, insects and diseases. 

~ Ensuring the quality of pesticides, fertilizers, veterinary medicines and animal 
feeds through testing and registration. 

~ Protecting and improving the health, welfare, quality and marketability oflive­
stock and other domestic animals. 

~ Gathering and disseminating information concerning agriculture to the general 
public. 

~ Providing fair and timely dispute resolution services to agricultural producers, 
creditors and others. 
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INTRODUCTION 

Ninety percent of North Dakota's land (more than 40.2 million acres) is in 
farms, making the state fourth in the nation in the percentage of total acres 
devoted to agriculture. North Dakota also ranks fourth in the nation in 
the percentage of economic base derived from agriculture. 

At 38 percent of the total, agriculture is the largest sector of the state's eco­
nomic base, generating more than $3 billion in revenue in 1997. North 
Dakota was 10th in agricultural exports earning $1.7 billion in FY 1996. 

North Dakota's principal agricultural products are wheat and cattle. The 
combination of wheat at 41.4 percent and cattle at 9.2 percent 

ROGER JOHNSON 

COMMISSIONER 

made up over one-half of the state's total agricultural receipts 
in 1996. These two enterprises were also among the hardest 
hit by recent weather disasters. In 1997, wheat production was 
down 33 percent from 1996. Disease and insect problems, 
coupled with poor prices, have led to a predicted decline of 
more than 1.5 million acres in 1998 wheat plantings. 

Net Return per Acre of Wheat 

Total cattle inventories have dropped 8 percent from a year ago, 
due largely to record winter-related losses and economic fac­
tors. As a percent of total inventory, the total cattle death loss 
in 1997 is the highest on record. 

Net returns per acre of wheat in North Dakota turned nega­
tive in 1997, with an average statewide loss of $16 per acre ( see 
top chart at right). 

Similarly, returns for beef cattle were net losses for many cattle 
producers during 1995 and 1996 (see middle chart at right). 

Low and negative net returns on wheat and cattle have led to 
declining net farm income. Net cash farm income has fallen 
from a per farm average of $50,091 in 1993 to just $15,190 in 
1997. Profitability for producers is virtually impossible in 
this situation, with family living expenses now exceeding 
average net cash farm income (see bottom chart at right). 

(nominal dollars) 

$20.00 

Net Return per Beef Cow 
(Nominal dollars) 

$250 .00 -------- ---­

$200.00 +-------=------ --

Net Farm Income vs . Family Living 
Expenses, North Dakota. 

Agriculture, North Dakota's number one industry, is pres­
ently experiencing economic adversity. During difficult 

times, people look to government for help. The four pro­
gram areas of the North Dakota Department of Agricul­
ture - Executive Services,Agricultural Mediation, Livestock 
Services and Plants Services - are committed to providing 
assistance to improve the situation for agricultural produc-

$50,000 +----------♦-------+ $50,000 

$40,000 ,------;;-<--::;;;=::::::~=:==--t $40,000 

- .··· .. -~ 

ers and others. 

$30,000 +------L::=.,..;,,,c.:..__ ___ -';--t $30,000 ..---;-
$20,000 +---~~------~--+, $20,000 . , 

I ,_ .,_, 

$10,000 +--,,------------;- $10,000 

I· · · Net Income ......... - Family Living Expenses I 
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I 
Executive Services 

Ken Junkert 

Commissioner of Agriculture 
Roger Johnson 

Deputy Commissioner 

Jeff Weispfenning 

Assistant to the Commissioner 
Joanne Beckman 

I 
l 

Plant Services 
Barry Coleman 

,_ Admistrative Secretary 
Bonnie Sundby 

... Administrative Assistant 
Elaine Sayler 
Cindy Wooldridge 

- Accounting ... Plant Protection 
Mavis Rath Dave Nelson 
Jet Collins Phillip Mason 

,_ Marketing Services 
Shannen Bernsen 
Sara Wagner 
Vacant 

'- Pesticide 

,_ Policy & Communications 
Patrice Eblen 
Ted Quanrud 

- Data Coordinator 
Roberta Tjaden 

Livestock Services 
Wayne Carlson 

... Administrative Secretary 
Tammy Celley 

... Dairy/Poultry 
Roger Scheibe 
Iris Stenerson 
John Ringsrud 
Kevin Misek 
Orville Paine 
Tracey Walth 

._ State Veterinarian 
Dr. Larry Schuler 
Dr. Susan Keller 

.... Wildlife Services 
John Paulson, et. al. 
(Federal employees) 

Gerry Thompson 
Dave Harsche 
Pat O'Neil 
Julie Tronson 
Garry Wagner 
Vacant 

,... Noxious Weeds 
John Leppert 
Cindie Fugere 

-- Apiary/Safe Send 
Judy Carlson 

Agricultural Mediation 
Jeff Knudson 

._ Administrative Assistant 
Betty Nelson 

._ Coordinator 
Tom Silbernagel 

.... Research Analyst 
Lane Landenberger 

._ Negotiators 
TonyWixo 
Patsy Otto 
Clarence Farber 

L Non-FTEs - 13 Temporary 
Employees 
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EXECUTIVE SERVICES 

The Executive Services program area provides administration, coordi­
nation, and support to all department program areas. The following 
services are provided: 

• Administration • Accounting • Ag in the Classroom 
• Communications • Computer Support • Marketing 
• Reception Services • Research & Policy Development 

Commissioner of Agriculture 
In addition to overseeing the programs and activities of the Depart­
ment of Agriculture, the Commissioner of Agriculture serves on nu­
merous boards and commissions, including: 

• N.D. Industrial Commission • North Dakota Water Commission 
• Board of Tax Equalization • Ag Products Utilization Commission 
• N.D. Dairy Promotion Commission • N.D. Barley Council 
• N.D. Seed Commission • N.D. Pesticide Control Board 
• N.D. Edible Bean Council • N.D. Potato Council 
• N.D. Oilseed Council • N.D. Soil Conservation Committee 
• N .D. Ag in the Classroom Council • N .D. Seed Arbitration Board 
• N.D. Disaster Emergency Board 
• USDA Food and Agriculture Council 
• Interstate Compact on Pest Control 

Marketing Services 
Marketing Services helps North Dakota companies obtain federal 
grants. The Department is a member of the Mid-America International 
Agri-Trade Council(MIATCO ). Through MIATCO, North Dakota food 
and ag businesses can apply for 50 percent reimbursement of export 
promotion expenses. Also, USDA's Federal-State Marketing Improve­
ment Program allocates funds through the State Department of Agri­
culture. 

Pride of Dakota is the centerpiece of Marketing Services activities. The 
program continues to generate increased sales of North Dakota prod­
ucts through joint marketing efforts by member companies. 

Increasing sales of North Dakota agricultural commodities and value­
added agricultural products in international, domestic, and local mar­
kets through education, promotion, and market enhancement is the 
principal task of Marketing Services. 

KEN JUNKERT 

PROGRAM MANAGER 

1999-2001 
Governor's Budget 
Funding Sources 

General 

■ Federal 

■ Special 

$1,594,460 

$61,700 

$98,831 
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Pride of Dakota members have made the pro­
gram a resounding success. The program has 
350 
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grown increasingly strong over the years. The 
membership has increased from 20 members 
in 1985 to more than 300 current members. 

In 1991, program funding was increased to 
$150,000 under the auspices of Growing 
North Dakota. Legislative intent directed the 
majority of the funds to be spent on out-of­
state marketing for member companies. 

Marketing Services has developed an Internet 
mall., providing Pride of Dakota companies 
an opportunity to reach out-of-state custom­
ers at a very low cost. This project is being 
funded in part by the USDA. 

The Commission on the Future of Agricul­
ture has recommended funding the develop­
ment of a state joint marketing venture that 
promotes North Dakota products under one 
name. The Commission also recommends 
funding a program that develops internation­
ally recognized standards of product quality 
and processing excellence that can be certi­
fied. The Commission recommends develop­
ment of these programs by NDDA. 

Agriculture in the Classroom 
The Agriculture in the Classroom program 
fosters a greater awareness by elementary and 
secondary school students of the importance 
of agriculture through development of edu­
cational materials and training of teachers. 

Activities include in-service training, for­
credit classes, a traveling classroom, and 
Internet and computer activities. 

The line item for this program authorizes the 
Department of Agriculture to raise the bud­
geted amount to conduct program activities. 
The state provides only spending authority 
for this program, although the Commission 
on the Future of Agriculture recommends 
funding further development of the program. 

Executive Services Budget Comparisons 
1997-1999 1999-2001 

Salaries $1,161,969 $1,193,446 

Operating $369,890 $242,704 

Equipment $9,300 $9,300 

Pride of Dakota $150,000 $151,841 

Ag in the Classroom $25,000 $96,000 

$1,716,159 $1,693,291 

FTEs 14.5 13.0 
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The North Dakota Agricultural Mediation Service (NDAMS) offers 
negotiation and mediation services to resolve differences among 
creditors, farmers and others. 

Negotiators help farmers and ranchers prepare financial and cash flow 
statements and loan applications. Negotiators also assist farmers in 
preparing information for solving non-credit disputes. Negotiators 
worked with 778 farmers in the last fiscal year ( see chart below). 

New and Active Clients 
State Fiscal Years (1994-1998) 

1000 ~---------------~ 
900 +----------
800 
700 
600 
500 
400 
300 
200 
100 

0 

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 

□ New 

■ Active 

NDAMS expects an increase in the number of clients in the upcom­
ing year because oflow cattle and commodity prices, which will make 
feasible farm operating plans difficult to project. 

Mediation is a voluntary process for farmers and private creditors; 
however, it is mandatory with FSA and FCS and is requested as a 
matter of policy by the Bank of North Dakota on delinquent loans. 
Mediators are trained as impartial third parties that serve as inter­
mediaries between farmers and others to resolve disputes outside 
court. Mediation is less costly and faster than formal appeals and 
litigation. It produces greater levels of satisfaction for the partici­
pants and allows the parties to deal with the entire problem. Media­
tion works. In farm credit cases that are otherwise headed to foreclo­
sure, agreements are reached most of the time. 

Most of the AMS field staff ( negotiators and mediators) have worked 

MEDIATION 

JEFF KNUDSON 

PROGRAM MANAGER 

Funding Sources 
1997-1999 

General $218,664 

■ Federal $931,387 

■ Special $227,486 

1999-2001 
Governor's Budget 
Funding Sources 

General $225,464 

■ Federal $283,631 

■ Special $348,723 
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Quarterly Mediation Requests 
Calendar Years ( 1994-1998) 

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 

AMS Employees 
Years-end (1994-1998) 

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 

ID Total Statrl 

for the Department for many years, yet do not 
have FTEs. As temporary employees, they are 
paid hourly wages and receive no benefits. 

The following chart shows that the number of 
AMS employees (FTEs and non-FTEs) has de­
creased from 23.55 to 19.0 in the past two years. 

Reduced federal funding results in a sharp de­
crease in the recommended budget. Conse­
quently, a budget enhancement request was 
submitted for additional general funds to sus­
tain current program activity. 

Enhancement Request 
The Agricultural Mediation Service requests a total budget en­
hancement of $579,702. The request includes $379,741 for salaries 
and $199,961 for operating expenses. The request restores one FTE 
and includes funding for database software conversion and field 
staff computer hardware. 

Mediation Budget Comparisons 

Salaries 

Operating 

Equipment 

FTEs 

1997-1999 

$952,668 

$405,774 

$19,095 

$1,377,537 

6.55 

1999-2001 

$697,236 

$159,810 

$772 

$857,818 

6.0 
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LIVESTOCK SERVICES 

Livestock Services is comprised of the Dairy/Poultry Services, the Live­
stock Division, Board of Animal Health and Wildlife Services. The main 
focus of the program area is regulations pertaining to North Dakota's 
livestock industry. A brief description of each program follows. 

Livestock Division 
The livestock industry traditionally ranks as one of the most impor­
tant sectors in North Dakota's economy. Current livestock numbers 
are 1. 75 million cattle, 110,000 sheep and 170,000 hogs with a total 
value of approximately $1.1 billion. 

The Livestock Division protects this industry by licensing livestock 
dealers and auction markets. Approximately 180 dealers and 16 auc­
tion markets are granted licenses after posting bond, filing financial 
statements and passing tests of financial responsibility. Field investi­
gations are routinely carried out to monitor financial conditions of 
dealers and auction markets and to discover unlicensed dealers. 

The Department of Agriculture and USDA Market News entered into 
a cooperative agreement to compile and disseminate prices and other 
market information for livestock in North Dakota. The Department is 
responsible for paying a contract person in the Dickinson area. USDA 
reimburses the Department for all costs incurred. 

The Department submitted a deficiency budget of $27,850 to cover 
the cost of the Department's work in the 1996-97 winter disaster. 0MB 
did not submit it to the Legislature for a deficiency appropriation. 

Dairy Services 
The main function of Dairy Services is to protect, encourage, promote, 
and enhance the marketability of North Dakota's dairy and poultry 
resources by assisting the industry in measuring compliance to stat­
utes and regulations. 

The division is administered by the director of dairy/poultry services 
with one staff /clerical person located in Bismarck. Three dairy in­
spectors visit the state's 843 ( 1998) dairy farms an average of 2.5 times 
a year. Each farm is inspected for cleanliness of equipment, proper us­
age and storage of drugs and water purity. 

The state's 12 dairy processing plants and nine milk transfer stations 
are inspected four times or more times annually. Distribution facili-

WAYNE CARLSON 

PROGRAM MANAGER 

1999-2001 
Governor's Budget 
Funding Sources 

General 

■ Federal 

■ Special 

$204,286 

$35,128 

$45,000 
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ties, farm bulk trucks and samplers/haulers 
are also inspected. 

One inspector performs the survey ( auditing) 
work of the Interstate Milk Shippers 
program(Grade A). This involves 38 milk 
producer groups, five plants, and four trans­
fer/receiving stations. The same individual 
performs USDA inspections of 12 manufac­
turing grade plants or transfer stations under 
a continuing contractual agreement. This in­
volves two or more visits, as required by the 
USDA manufacturing milk program. Area 
dairy inspectors visit these sites during alter­
nating quarters to do state inspections. 

Efforts to ensure a milk supply free of chemi­
cal/ drug residues continue to occupy a large 
amount of time and resources of the dairy 
division. For the first time, field staff con­
ducted 150 inspections of non-traditional 
livestock for the state veterinarian's office this 
year. 

Poultry services 

Dairy division personnel carry out all poul­
try division responsibilities. North Dakota 
currently has 12 licensed commercial egg pro­
ducers that are inspected once a year. One 
USDA hatchery in Minot is inspected quar­
terly. All in-state and out-of-state hatcheries 
are licensed and bonded. 

Board of Animal Health 
The State Board of Animal Health became a 
division of the Department of Agriculture in 
1995. Employees include two veterinarians 
and one support staff. The board consists of 
seven members as outlined in N.D. Century 
Code 36-01-01. 

The Board of Animal Health is charged with 
protecting the health of the domestic animals 
and nontraditional livestock of this state. The 

board also determines and employs the most 
efficient and practical means for the preven­
tion, suppression, control, and eradication of 
dangerous, contagious diseases among the 
domestic animals and nontraditional live­
stock of this state. The board must also pre­
vent the escape and release of animals injuri­
ous to or competitive with agriculture, horti­
culture, forestry, wild animals and other natu­
ral resources. Any matter relating to the 
health and welfare of domestic animals and 
nontraditional livestock that is not specifically 
assigned by statute to another entity is 
deemed to be within the board's authority. 

The livestock industry of North Dakota can 
be proud of its accomplishments in achiev­
ing the health status that is the envy of most 
states. This has been accomplished through 
hard work and cooperation of every facet of 
the livestock industry. It is imperative that 
surveillance and communication continue so 
that North Dakota can maintain the "disease 
free" status that we currently enjoy. This "dis­
ease free" status allows for easy exportation 
of livestock both on an interstate and inter­
national level with limited expenses to live­
stock producers in North Dakota. 

Animal waste management is an issue that is 
coming to the forefront in animal agriculture. 
Although it does not directly affect the health 
of the animals, it is important for the board 
to provide as much information to livestock 
producers as possible and to act as a spokes­
man for them when necessary. This is an is­
sue that will greatly affect the viability and 
future of animal agriculture. 

The Board of Animal Health needs to assist 
industry groups in trade negotiations with 
other countries. Many of the barriers to free 
trade between countries are animal health 
related and the board can provide the infor-
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mation necessary to appease the animal 
health concerns. 

Voluntary disease control programs provide 
the tools needed by livestock producers to 
eliminate diseases from their livestock. Vol­
untary disease control programs provide rec­
ognition for and certification of these efforts. 
Some of the voluntary programs being devel­
oped on the national level that could be initi­
ated in North Dakota are: 

• Johnes Disease in cattle 
• Scrapie in sheep • Leukosis in cattle 
• Chronic Wasting Disease in elk and deer 

With the coming of the free trade agreements, 
the movement of animals and animal prod­
ucts has been greatly enhanced. As a result, 
the potential for an emerging disease out­
break is greater. The state should develop an 
animal health emergency management plan 
to assure a quick and decisive response to 
such an outbreak. 

The short-term goals of the State Board of 
Animal Health focus primarily on improving 
the compliance with statutes and rules and 
delivering better service and developing bet­
ter communication with the people served. 

Historically, the board has been an agency 
that regulates the mandatory eradication pro­
grams set forth by the federal government. 
With the imminent declaration of the U.S. as 
brucellosis-free and psuedorabies-free, the 
board sees its future role as an agency that 
assists the people of North Dakota with vol­
untary disease control programs that can add 
value to their livestock. The board can also 
act as a spokesman for livestock producers on 
issues relating to animal agriculture. In the 
long term, the board will be more active in 
public health and food safety issues, educa­
tion, humane treatment of animals, nontra-

ditional livestock issues, and animal health 
emergency management. 

Wildlife Services 
Wildlife Services (WS) provides federal lead­
ership in managing problems caused by wild­
life to protect agriculture and public health 
and safety. WS recognizes that wildlife is a sig­
nificant public resource greatly valued by the 
people of North Dakota. By its very nature, 
however, wildlife is a highly dynamic and mo­
bile resource that can damage agriculture, 
property, pose risks to human health and 
safety, and affect natural and man-made re­
sources. The WS program carries out the fed­
eral responsibility in cooperation with the 
state to manage problems that occur when 
human activity and wildlife are in conflict. 

WS in North Dakota has traditionally been a 
partnership of state and federal funding and 
in special cases (i.e., rebuilding the WS air­
craft), individuals and other private entities. 
Additional funding is provided by cities, air­
port authorities, counties, water resource dis­
tricts, other federal agencies and individuals 
to manage a wide variety of wildlife problems. 

Coyote depredation on livestock, particularly 
calves and lambs accounts for the majority of 
predator related complaints received by WS. 
WS manages predator damage through the 
use of aerial and ground hunting, snares, 
traps, M-44's, and by providing technical as­
sistance when appropriate. 

Blackbirds annually cause an estimated 
$20-30 million damage to sunflowers, corn 
and small grain crops in North Dakota. WS 
manages blackbird depredation through re­
duction of habitat, particularly dense cattail 
stands, baiting projects, and technical assis­
tance. This major benefit to North Dakota 
farmers has a price tag of more than $400,000 
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annually, funded primarily by the Federal 
government. Additionally, WS research ex­
pends $350,000 annually to refine and de­
velop new methods to manage blackbird 
damage problems. 

WS to protect agriculture, natural resources, 
property, and to safeguard public health and 
safety. 

The proposed budget, including the addi­
tional funding request, will allow North Da­
kota WS to add two positions to the current 
field staff and increase services provided by 

WS is requesting a funding increase of 
$115,831 to add two positions to handle ur­
ban wildlife problems and to assist with the 
increased effort of managing blackbird dam­
age on sunflower, corn and small grains. 

Enhancement Request 
Livestock Services has requested the following three enhancements: 

• An FTE and funding for the position. The specialist will be respon­
sible for the development and enhancement of the state's livestock 
industries. This position will help enterprises with economic, finan­
cial, and regulatory problems they would encounter in the expansion 
or development of new or existing ideas. This would help diversify 
the state's agriculture economy by increasing the value of agricul­
tural production in the state. One FTE; Cost: $89,000. 

• Restore the funding for a clerical position that was eliminated during 
the merger of the Board of Animal Health with the Department of 
Agriculture. One FTE; Cost: $36,000. 

• Provide two urban specialists positions to be assigned primarily to 
non-rural wildlife damage management. These two specialists would 
also assist with blackbird damage management, particularly to the 
sunflower industry. Cost: $116,000. 

Livestock Services Budget Comparisons 
1997-1999 1999-2001 

Salaries $647,218 $610,398 

Operating $195,904 $224,504 

Equipment $1,100 $1,100 

Board of Animal Health $474,649 $506,818 

Wildlife Services ~779,694 ~779,694 

$2,098,565 $2,122,514 

FTEs 11 10 
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PLANT SERVICES 

Plant Services consists of Waterbank, Registration, Pesticides, Plant 
Protection, Noxious Weeds, Apiary, and Project Safe Send. 

Waterbank 
A cooperative effort of several state and federal agencies, the State 
Waterbank Program gives landowners financial incentives to pre­
serve wetlands. The program is very popular with landowners be­
cause it provides short-term leases that compensate them for the loss 
of agricultural production on acreage enrolled in the program. 

Funding for the program has been derived from a combination of 
state and federal monies and private sources through fundraising 
activities. 

Last session, the Legislature appropriated $500,000 for Waterbank 
agreements in the Devils Lake watershed. Twenty agreements have 
been finalized which total 2,203 acres, including 32 acres of restor­
able wetlands, 460 acres of wetlands, and 1,711 acres of uplands. 

Apiary 
The Apiary Division is responsible for the following services to the 
beekeeping industry: 

• Annual licensing of beekeepers • Registration of beeyards. 
• Inspection of colonies for diseases and parasites. 

The majority of beekeepers are migratory, moving their bees to 
warmer climes in the winter. Approximately one-third of North Da­
kota bees overwinter in Texas where inspections for migratory move­
ment are still required. North Dakota inspections are provided upon 
request of the beekeeper. Department personnel respond to com­
plaints by the public, by landowners and commercial pesticide ap­
plicators regarding placement of bee yards. 

Plant Protection 
The Plant Protection Division is responsible for issuing phytosanitary 
export certificates, nursery inspection, and plant pest prevention, 
detection, evaluation and suppression. 

Plants and plant products are certified to meet the quarantine re-

BARRY COLEMAN 

PROGRAM MANAGER 

1999-2001 
Governor's Budget 
Funding Sources 

General $745,302 

■ Federal $877,719 

■ Special $2,329,127 
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quirements of other states and foreign coun­
tries to facilitate the export of North Dakota 
agricultural products. 

Phvtosanitarv Exoort CCitificates 
Corn Borer Compliance 
Agreements to support movement 
of nrs>in com to the west coast 1 

Nursery Growers inspected and 
licensed 2 

Nursery Dealers Licensed and 
lnsoected 2 

Fees are charged for these setV1ces 
2 Nursery license fee $50 

1995 
585 

48 

43 

131 

1996 1997 1998 
823 898 1834 

60 66 66 

42 46 45 

125 127 133 

Pest surveys are conducted to provide pest 
distribution information necessary to support 
the certification of plant products for export. 
Surveys include Karnal bunt, flag smut, dwarf 
bunt, Khapra beetle, soybean cyst nematode, 
golden nematode of potato, cereal leaf beetle, 
and Japanese beetle. 

Because two years of intensive state survey 
efforts have demonstrated that North Dakota 
is free of Karnal bunt, it is anticipated that 
survey activity will substantially decrease in 
the future. As a result, the Department re­
quests authority to spend $20,000 in federal 
funds for Karnal bunt survey work in the up­
coming biennium, compared to $200,000 in 
1997-99. 

Nursery stock ( trees, shrubs, and woody vines 
for outdoor use) is inspected for insects and 
diseases to provide a healthy product to con­
sumers and prevent the introduction of pests 
into the state. 

Pesticide 
The Pesticide Division enforces state and fed­
eral laws regarding the use of pesticides, as 
mandated by the Federal Insecticide, Fungi­
cide and Rodenticide Act, while acting as an 
advocate for farmers and ranchers who de­
pend on agricultural chemicals. 

Inspection of pesticide dealers and applica­
tors is the division's primary means of ensur-

ing safe and proper use of pesticides. These 
inspections are aimed at preventing illegal 
residues in our state's commodities and re­
ducing damages from pesticide applications. 

The division continues the development of 
initiatives mandated by the U.S. Environmen­
tal Protection Agency. These include: 

• The Endangered Species Pesticide Manage-
ment Program 

• The Water Protection Strategy for Pesticides 
• The Worker Protection Program 

The division also administers the minor use 
pesticide grant program through the Pesticide 
Control Board. Three projects were approved 
in 1998 for approximately $95,000. Many new 
projects are upcoming for 1999 and beyond 
to assist with residue trials for minor use crops 
in North Dakota. Without these programs, 
pesticide use in North Dakota would be se­
verely restricted. The programs seek to pro­
vide farmers with as much flexibility and free­
dom as possible, while remaining in full com­
pliance with federal mandates. 

The division also prepares Section 18 emer­
gency exemption requests to EPA for pesti­
cides to address weed, disease, and pest out­
breaks in the state. In 1998, Section 18 ap­
provals were used to provide control on ap­
proximately 2,000,000 acres of crops consist­
ing of durum, potatoes, barley, sunflowers, 
canola, flax, dry beans, sugarbeets and hard 
red spring wheat. 

Project Safe Send, the division's program to 
help farmers and others get rid of unusable 
pesticides and empty pesticide containers, has 
collected more than 325 tons of hazardous 
and unusable chemicals in the past six years. 

The division is also responsible for enforcing 
the anhydrous ammonia safety inspection 
program for the state.Approximately, $73,973 
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has been requested out of the anhydrous fund 
for registration duties to adminster the pro­
gram. The governor's budget recommends 
increasing funding for pesticide registration 
and noxious weeds out of the EARP fund. 

The Pesticide Division is 85 percent funded 
by federal money. 

Noxious Weeds 
The Noxious Weeds Division coordinates in­
tegrated weed management programs. The 
three major programs available to landown­
ers include: 

The Landowner Assistance Program (LAP), 
administered by counties, continues to pro­
vide the foundation for controlling leafy 
spurge on private land in North Dakota. LAP 
provides a source of cost sharing to thousands 
of landowners in almost every county in 
North Dakota. Since 1992, participating 
counties have received an annual average of 
$383,000 in state funding. Tax Department 
records show the county weed boards annu­
ally levy more than $2 million dollars for their 
weed control programs. 

The North Dakota Biological Control Pro­
gram began to mass distribute insects for 
leafy spurge in 1992. Almost every county in 
the state now boasts a local biological control 
program with successful breeding popula­
tions of spurge-eating flea beetles. More than 
two dozen field days and collection events 
were held in 1998 at which over 42 million flea 
beetles were collected for redistribution, a 10-
fold increase in two years. The events were 
sponsored by local county weed boards, the 
U.S. Forest Service, The Bureau of Reclama­
tion, and the Department of Agriculture. 

The Weed Innovation Network (WIN) grant 
program encourages groups of people to 

work together to develop innovative ways to 
manage noxious and invasive weeds. Twelve 
WIN projects in ten counties have been pro­
vided funding to offset costs associated with 
large-scale weed control projects. 

The division assists counties in enforcing the 
Noxious Weed Law (NDCC §63-01.1), and 
serves as a liaison between landowners, coun­
ties, state and federal land managers, other 
states, and local and regional associations. 

Registration 
The Registration Division of the North Da­
kota Department of Agriculture is responsible 
for enforcing the provisions of the North Da­
kota Commercial Feed Law (Ch. 19-13.1), 
Livestock Medicines ( Ch.19-14), Insecticides, 
Fungicides, and Rodenticides ( Ch.19-18), and 
the Fertilizer and Soil Conditioner Law 
(Ch.19-20.1). 

Approximately 700 feed samples are collected 
each year for analysis. The state registers an 
estimated 2,970 pet foods and approximately 
6,775 commercial feeds. The Department li­
censes nearly 280 feed manufacturers and 310 
feed dealers. 

There are 1,283 registered livestock medicines 
in the state of North Dakota. Before anyone 
can sell a livestock medicine, it must be reg­
istered with the state. 

Approximately 7,657 pesticides, ranging from 
household/residential products to industrial 
and agricultural products, are registered in 
the state. 

This division is responsible for Special Local 
Needs permits, Experimental Use permits, 
and Supplemental Labeling permits. 

The state registers approximately 1,475 vari­
ous types of fertilizers for agricultural and 
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residential use. Approximately 511 fertilizer 
distributors are licensed to sell agricultural 
fertilizer. The department analyzes about 700 
to 800 fertilizer samples annually. 

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration con­
tracts the Department to perform tissue resi­
due investigations when a residue is found by 
USDA in a slaughter animal. Additionally, the 
FDA contracted the Department to conduct 
49 annual elevator inspections. 

Enhancement Request 
Plant Services has requested the following two enhancements: 

• $160,000 from the EARP Funds to restore the Minor Use Fund to its 
original amount of $350,000 appropriated during the previous legis­
lative session. 

• $100,000 to allow the state to match a portion of federal funds ap­
proved for the Waterbank program. An additional match amount of 
$200,000 will be needed. 

Plant Services Budget Comparisons 
1997-1999 1999-2001 

Salaries $1,214,625 $1,326,686 

Operating $532,092 $361,749 

Equipment $22,500 $12,500 

Waterbank $714,000 $414,000 

Safe Send $734,428 $554,363 

Anhydrous $20,444 $8,154 

Noxious Weeds ~1,174,696 ~1,174,696 

$4,412,785 $3,852,148 

FTEs 16 17 
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

The following items were distributed during the 1999-2001 Budget 
Presentation of the North Dakota Department of Agriculture to pro­
vide members of the Legislature with additional information about 
the Department's programs. 

• 1998 Pride of Dakota Membership Directory 

• Ag Mediation: Solving Problems; Resolving 
Disputes 

• North Dakota Dairy Producer Opinion Survey 

• North Dakota Dairy Diagnostic Advisory 
Team 

• Wildlife Services - Request for Technical 
Assistance to Manage Wildlife Damage 

• Project Safe Send: Report to the 1999 
Legislature 
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BUDGET REQUESTS 

1 Plant Services requests restoration of $30,000 to temporary salaries 
to support apiary services. 

2 Plant Services requests $160,000 from the EARP Fund to restore the 
Minor Use Fund to its original amount of$350,000 appropriated dur­
ing the previous legislative session. No general fund cost. 

3 The Agricultural Mediation Service requests a total budget enhance­
ment of $579,702. The request includes $379,741 for salaries and 
$199,961 for operating expenses. The request restores one FTE and 
includes funding for database software conversion and field staff com­
puter hardware. 

4 Livestock Services has requested funding to maintain the existing 
Wildlife Services program, to address increased urban and human 
health and safety demands and increase efforts to manage blackbird 
damage, particularly to the sunflower industry; Cost: $116,000. 

5 Executive Services requests $150,000 to develop curricula that bal­
ance agricultural and environmental concerns. The budget currently 
shows an increase in spending authority, but no general fund appro­
priation has been identified. 

6 Plant Services requests $100,000 from the EARP Fund to allow the 
state to match a portion of federal funds approved for the Waterbank 
program. 
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EXECUTIVE SERVICES 

Executive Services provides administration, coordination, and support 
to all department program areas. The following services are provided: 

• Administration • Accounting • Agriculture in the Classroom 
• Communications • Computer Support • Marketing 
• Reception Services • Research and Policy Development 

Commissioner of Agriculture 
In addition to overseeing the programs and activities of the Depart­
ment of Agriculture, the Commissioner of Agriculture serves on nu­
merous boards and commissions, including: 

• N.D. Industrial Commission • North Dakota Water Commission 
• Board of Tax Equalization • Ag Products Utilization Commission 
• N.D. Dairy Promotion Commission • N.D. Barley Council 
• N.D. Seed Commission • N.D. Pesticide Control Board 
• N.D. Edible Bean Council • Interstate Compact on Pest Control 
• N.D. Oilseed Council • N.D. Soil Conservation Committee 
• N.D. Agriculture in the Classroom Council • N.D. Potato Council 
• N.D. Seed Arbitration Board • N.D. Disaster Emergency Board 
• USDA Food and Agriculture Council 

Marketing Services 
Increasing sales of North Dakota agricultural commodities and value~ 
added agricultural products in international, domestic, and local mar­
kets through education, promotion, and market enhancement is the 
principal task of Marketing Services. 

Marketing Services helps North Dakota companies obtain federal 
grants. The Department is a member of the Mid-America International 
Agri-Trade Council( MIATCO). Through MIATCO, North Dakota food 
and ag businesses can apply for reimbursement of export promotion 
expenses.Also, USDXs Federal-State Marketing Improvement Program 
allocates funds through the North Dakota Department of Agriculture. 

Pride of Dakota is the centerpiece of Marketing Services activities. The 
program continues to generate increased sales of North Dakota prod-

KEN JUNKERT 

PROGRAM MANAGER 

1999-2001 
Governor's Budget 
Funding Sources 

ucts through joint marketing efforts by member companies. Pride of ■ 
Dakota has grown increasingly strong over the years. The membership ■ 
has increased from 20 members in 1985 to more than 300 current mem-

General 

Federal 

Special 

$1,594,460 

$61,700 

$98,831 

$1,754,991 

hers. 
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In 1991, program funding was increased to 
$150,000 under the auspices of Growing 
North Dakota. Legislative intent directed the 
majority of the funds to be spent on out-of­
state marketing for member companies. 

Marketing Services has developed an Internet 
mall, providing Pride of Dakota companies 
an opportunity to reach out-of-state custom­
ers at a very low cost. This project is being 
funded in part by the USDA. 

The Commission on the Future of Agricul­
ture has recommended funding the develop­
ment of a state joint marketing venture that 
promotes North Dakota products under one 

name. The Commission also recommends 
funding an NDDA program that develops in­
ternationally recognized standards of prod­
uct quality and processing excellence that can 
be certified. 

Agriculture in the Classroom 
Agriculture in the Classroom fosters a greater 
awareness by elementary and secondary 
school students of the importance of agricul­
ture through development of educational 
materials and training of teachers.Activities 
include in-service training, for-credit classes, 
a traveling classroom, and Internet and com­
puter activities. 

The line item for this program authorizes the 
Department of Agriculture to raise the bud­
geted amount to conduct program activities. 
The state provides only spending authority 
for this program, although the Commission 
on the Future of Agriculture recommends 
funding further development of the program. 

Additional Request 
Executive Services requests $150,000 to develop curricula that balance agricul­
tural and environmental concerns. The budget currently shows an increase in 
spending authority, but no general fund appropriation has been identified. 

Executive Services Budget Comparisons 
1997-1999 Governor's Senate 

Budget Budget 

Salaries $1,161,969 $1,193,446 $1,164,418 

Operating $369,890 $242,704 $242,704 

Equipment $9,300 $9,300 $9,300 

Pride of Dakota $150,000 $151,841 $151,516 

Ag in the Classroom $25,000 $96,000 $96,000 

Grants $111,700 $61,700 $61,700 

$1,827,859 $1,754,991 $1,725,638 

FTEs 14.5 13.0 13.0 
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AGRICULTURAL MEDIATION 

The North Dakota Agricultural Mediation Service (ND AMS) offers 
negotiation and mediation services to resolve differences among 
creditors, farmers and others. 

Negotiators help farmers and ranchers prepare financial and cash flow 
statements and loan applications. Negotiators also assist farmers in 
preparing information for solving non-credit disputes. Negotiators 
worked with 778 farmers in the last fiscal year (see chart below). 

New and Active Clients 
State Fiscal Years (1994-1998) 

1000 ~---------------~ 
900 -+---------
800 
700 
600 
500 
400 
300 
200 
100 

0 

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 

□ New 

II Active 

NDAMS expects an increase in the number of clients in the upcom­
ing year because oflow cattle and commodity prices, which will make 
feasible farm operating plans difficult to project. 

Mediation is a voluntary process for farmers and private creditors; 
however, it is mandatory with FSA and FCS and is requested as a 
matter of policy by the Bank of North Dakota on delinquent loans. 
Mediators are trained as impartial third parties that serve as inter­
mediaries between farmers and others to resolve disputes outside 
court. Mediation is less costly and faster than formal appeals and 
litigation. It produces greater levels of satisfaction for the partici­
pants and allows the parties to deal with the entire problem. Media­
tion works. In farm credit cases that are otherwise headed to foreclo­
sure, agreements are reached most of the time. 

Most of the AMS field staff ( negotiators and mediators) have worked 

JEFF KNUDSON 

PROGRAM MANAGER 

Funding Sources 
1997-1999 

General $218,664 

■ Federal 

■ Special 

$931,387 

$227,486 

$1,377,537 

1999-2001 
Governor's Budget 
Funding Sources 

General $225,464 

■ Federal $283,631 

■ Special $348,723 

$857,818 
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Quarterly Mediation Requests 
Calendar Years (1994-1998) 

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 

AMS Employees 
Years-end (1994-1998) 

30 ~------------, 
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1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 

ID Total Staffl 

for the Department for many years, yet do not 
have FTEs. As temporary employees, they are 
paid hourly wages and receive no benefits. 

The following chart shows that the number of 
AMS employees (FTEs and non-FTEs) has de­
creased from23.55 to 19.0 in the past two years. 

Reduced federal funding results in a sharp de­
crease in the recommended budget. Conse­
quently, a budget enhancement request was 
submitted for additional general funds to sus­
tain current program activity. 

Salaries 

Additional Request 
The Agricultural Mediation Service requests a total budget en­
hancement of $579,702. The request includes $379,741 for salaries 
and $199,961 for operating expenses. The request restores one FTE 
and includes funding for database software conversion and field 
staff computer hardware. 

Mediation Budget Comparisons 
1997-1999 Governor's Senate 

Budget Budget 

$952,668 $697,236 $691,099 

Operating $405,774 $159,810 $159,810 

Equipment $19,095 $772 ~772 

$1,377,537 $857,818 $851,681 

FTEs 6.55 6.0 6.0 
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LIVESTOCK SERVICES 

Livestock Services is comprised of the Livestock Division, Dairy/Poul­
try Services, Board of Animal Health and Wildlife Services. The main 
focus of the program area is regulations pertaining to North Dakota's 
livestock industry. A brief description of each program follows. 

Livestock Division 
The livestock industry traditionally ranks as one of the most impor­
tant sectors in North Dakota's economy. Current livestock numbers 
are 1.75 million cattle, 110,000 sheep and 170,000 hogs with a total 
value of approximately $1.1 billion. 

The Livestock Division protects this industry by licensing livestock 
dealers and auction markets. Approximately 180 dealers and 16 auc­
tion markets are granted licenses after posting bond, filing financial 
statements and passing tests of financial responsibility. Field investi­
gations are routinely carried out to monitor financial conditions of 
dealers and auction markets and to discover unlicensed dealers. 

The Department of Agriculture and USDA Market News entered into 
a cooperative agreement to compile and disseminate prices and other 
market information for livestock in North Dakota. The Department is 
responsible for paying a contract person in the Dickinson area. USDA 
reimburses the Department for all costs incurred. 

The Department submitted a deficiency budget of $27,850 to cover 
the cost of the Department's work in the 1996-97 winter disaster. 0MB 
did not submit it to the Legislature for a deficiency appropriation. 

Dairy Services 
The main function of Dairy Services is to protect, encourage, promote, 
and enhance the marketability of North Dakota's dairy and poultry 
resources by assisting the industry in measuring compliance to stat­
utes and regulations. 

The division is administered by the director of dairy/poultry services 
with one staff /clerical person located in Bismarck. Three dairy in­
spectors visit the state's 843 ( 1998) dairy farms an average of 2.5 times 
a year. Each farm is inspected for cleanliness of equipment, proper us­
age and storage of drugs and water purity. 

The state's 12 dairy processing plants and nine milk transfer stations 
are inspected four times or more times annually. Distribution facili-

WAYNE CARLSON 

PROGRAM MANAGER 

1999-2001 
Governor's Budget 
Funding Sources 

General $2,041,903 

■ Federal $35,611 

■ Special ~45,000 

$2,122,514 
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ties, farm bulk trucks and samplers/haulers 
are also inspected. 

One inspector performs the survey ( auditing) 
work of the Interstate Milk Shippers 
program(Grade A). This involves 38 milk 
producer groups, five plants, and four trans­
fer/receiving stations. The same individual 
performs USDA inspections of 12 manufac­
turing grade plants or transfer stations under 
a continuing contractual agreement. This in­
volves two or more visits, as required by the 
USDA manufacturing milk program. Area 
dairy inspectors visit these sites during alter­
nating quarters to do state inspections. 

Efforts to ensure a milk supply free of chemi­
cal/drug residues continue to occupy a large 
amount of time and resources of the dairy 
division. For the first time, field staff con­
ducted 150 inspections of non-traditional 
livestock for the state veterinarian's office this 
year. 

Poultry services 

Dairy division personnel carry out all poul­
try division responsibilities. North Dakota 
currently has 12 licensed commercial egg pro­
ducers that are inspected once a year. One 
USDA hatchery in Minot is inspected quar­
terly. All in-state and out-of-state hatcheries 
are licensed and bonded. 

Board of Animal Health 
The State Board of Animal Health became a 
division of the Department of Agriculture in 
1995. Employees include two veterinarians 
and one support staff. The board consists of 
seven members as outlined in N.D. Century 
Code 36-01-01. 

The Board of Animal Health is charged with 
protecting the health of the domestic animals 
and nontraditional livestock of this state. The 

board also determines and employs the most 
efficient and practical means for the preven­
tion, suppression, control, and eradication of 
dangerous, contagious diseases among the 
domestic animals and nontraditional live­
stock of this state. The board must also pre­
vent the escape and release of animals injuri­
ous to or competitive with agriculture, horti­
culture, forestry, wild animals and other natu­
ral resources. Any matter relating to the 
health and welfare of domestic animals and 
nontraditional livestock that is not specifically 
assigned by statute to another entity is 
deemed to be within the board's authority. 

The livestock industry of North Dakota can 
be proud of its accomplishments in achiev­
ing the health status that is the envy of most 
states. This has been accomplished through 
hard work and cooperation of every facet of 
the livestock industry. It is imperative that 
surveillance and communication continue so 
that North Dakota can maintain the "disease 
free" status that we currently enjoy. This "dis­
ease free" status allows for easy exportation 
of livestock both on an interstate and inter­
national level with limited expenses to live­
stock producers in North Dakota. 

Animal waste management is an issue that is 
coming to the forefront in animal agriculture. 
Although it does not directly affect the health 
of the animals, it is important for the board 
to provide as much information to livestock 
producers as possible and to act as a spokes­
man for them when necessary. This is an is­
sue that will greatly affect the viability and 
future of animal agriculture. 

The Board of Animal Health needs to assist 
industry groups in trade negotiations with 
other countries. Many of the barriers to free 
trade between countries are animal health 
related and the board can provide the infor-
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mation necessary to appease the animal 
health concerns. 

Voluntary disease control programs provide 
the tools needed by livestock producers to 
eliminate diseases from their livestock. Vol­
untary disease control programs provide rec­
ognition for and certification of these efforts. 
Some of the voluntary programs being devel­
oped on the national level that could be initi­
ated in North Dakota are: 

• Johnes Disease in cattle 
• Scrapie in sheep • Leukosis in cattle 
• Chronic Wasting Disease in elk and deer 

With the coming of the free trade agreements, 
the movement of animals and animal prod­
ucts has been greatly enhanced. As a result, 
the potential for an emerging disease out­
break is greater. The state should develop an 
animal health emergency management plan 
to assure a quick and decisive response to 
such an outbreak. 

The short-term goals of the State Board of 
Animal Health focus primarily on improving 
the compliance with statutes and rules and 
delivering better service and developing bet­
ter communication with the people served. 

Historically, the board has been an agency 
that regulates the mandatory eradication pro­
grams set forth by the federal government. 
With the imminent declaration of the U.S. as 
brucellosis-free and psuedorabies-free, the 
board sees its future role as an agency that 
assists the people of North Dakota with vol­
untary disease control programs that can add 
value to their livestock. The board can also 
act as a spokesman for livestock producers on 
issues relating to animal agriculture. In the 
long term, the board will be more active in 
public health and food safety issues, educa­
tion, humane treatment of animals, nontra-

ditional livestock issues, and animal health 
emergency management. 

Wildlife Services 
Wildlife is a significant public resource greatly 
valued by the people of North Dakota. It is, 
however, a highly dynamic and mobile re­
source that can damage agriculture and prop­
erty, endanger human health and safety, and 
adversely affect natural and economic re­
sources. The Wildlife Services program man­
ages problems that occur when human activ­
ity and wildlife are in conflict. 

Cooperatively funded by state and federal 
governments, Wildlife Services takes an inte­
grated approach to solving a variety of hu­
man-wildlife conflicts in a manner that pro­
tects resources without significant impacts on 
wildlife. 

Coyote depredation oflivestock, particularly 
calves and lambs, accounts for the majority 
of predator-related complaints received by 
Wildlife Services. This damage is controlled 
by aerial and ground hunting, snares, traps, 
M-44s and by providing technical assistance 
on fencing, guard animals, electronic guards 
and other non-lethal methods. 

Blackbirds annually cause an estimated 
$20-30 million damage to sunflowers, corn 
and small grain crops in North Dakota. 
Wildife Services manages blackbird depreda­
tion through reduction of habitat, particularly 
dense cattail stands, baiting projects and tech­
nical assistance. Additionally, Wildlife Ser­
vices research expends $350,000 annually to 
refine and develop new methods to reduce 
blackbird damage. 

In 1998, Wildlife Services responded to 153 
rabies in wildlife requests, up from 26 requests 
in 1994. In 1998, Wildlife Services provided 
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protection of timber resources and pasture 
land and road structures from beaver dam­
age, after verifying $331,328 in damages. 

The proposed budget including the addi­
tional funding request will allow Wildlife Ser­
vices to continue to protect agriculture, natu­
ral resources and property, and to safeguard 

public health and safety. Wildlife Services is 
requesting a funding increase of $116,000 to 
maintain the existing program, to address in­
creasing urban wildlife problems associated 
with rabies and other human wildlife conflicts 
and to increase efforts to manage blackbird 
damage on sunflower and other crops. 

Additional Request 

Salaries 

Livestock Services has requested funding to maintain the existing Wild­
life Services program, to address increased urban and human health 
and safety demands and increase efforts to manage blackbird dam­
age, particularly to the sunflower industry; Cost: $116,000. 

Livestock Services Budget Comparisons 
1997-1999 Governor's Senate 

Budget Budget 

$647,218 $610,398 $604,710 

Operating $195,904 $224,504 $224,504 

Equipment $1,100 $1,100 $1,100 

Board of Animal Health $474,649 $506,818 $502,922 

Wildlife Services ~779,694 ~779,694 ~779,694 

$2,098,565 $2,122,514 $2,112,930 

FTEs 11 10 11 
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PLANT SERVICES 

Plant Services consists of Waterbank, Registration, Pesticides, Plant 
Protection, Noxious Weeds, Apiary, and Project Safe Send. 

Waterbank 
A cooperative effort of several state and federal agencies, the State 
Waterbank Program gives landowners financial incentives to pre­
serve wetlands. The program is very popular with landowners be­
cause it provides short-term leases that compensate them for the loss 
of agricultural production on acreage enrolled in the program. 

Program funding has been derived from a combination of state and 
federal monies and private sources through fundraising activities. 

Last session, the Legislature appropriated $500,000 for Waterbank 
agreements in the Devils Lake watershed. Twenty agreements have 
been finalized which total 2,203 acres, including 32 acres of restor­
able wetlands, 460 acres of wetlands, and 1,711 acres of uplands. 

Apiary 
The Apiary Division is responsible for the following services: 

• Licenses 200 beekeepers and registers 8,600 bee yards 

• Facilitates migratory movement of bees by providing inspections 
required by importing states. 

• Inspects colonies for diseases and parasites upon beekeeper request 

The majority of beekeepers are migratory and many move their bees 
to states that require inspection certificates. Three new threats to the 
bee industry have recently emerged: an antibiotic-resistant bacterial 
disease, a miticide-resistant bee mite, and an exotic hive beetle. De­
partment personnel respond to complaints by the public and land­
owners, and assist commercial pesticide applicators in locating bee 
yards. Beekeepers pay approximately $76,000 per biennium in license 
fees which go into the general fund. 

Plant Protection 
The Plant Protection Division is responsible for issuing phytosanitary 
export certificates, nursery inspection, and plant pest prevention, 
detection, evaluation and suppression. 

DAVID NELSON 

PROGRAM MANAGER 
(I NTERIM) 

1999-2001 
Governor's Budget 
Funding Sources 

General $745,302 

■ Federal $877,719 

■ Special $2,329.127 

$3,952,148 
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Plants and plant products are certified to meet 
the quarantine requirements of other states 
and foreign countries to facilitate the export 
of North Dakota agricultural products. 

Phvtosanitarv Exoort Certificates 
Com Borer Compliance 
Agreements to support movement 
of'""";" com to the west coast 1 

Nursery Growers inspected and 
licensed 2 

Nursery Dealers Licensed and 
I Tn=ected ' 

Fees arc charged for these serVIces 
2 Nursery license fee $50 

1995 
585 
48 

43 

131 

1996 1997 1998 
823 898 1834 

60 66 66 

42 46 45 

125 127 133 

Pest surveys are conducted to provide pest 
distribution information necessary to support 
the certification of plant products for export. 
Surveys include Karnal bunt, flag smut, dwarf 
bunt, Khapra beetle, soybean cyst nematode, 
golden nematode of potato, cereal leaf beetle, 
and Japanese beetle. 

Because two years of intensive state survey 
efforts have demonstrated that North Dakota 
is free of Karnal bunt, it is anticipated that 
survey activity will substantially decrease in 
the future. As a result, the Department re­
quests authority to spend $20,000 in federal 
funds for Karnal bunt survey work in the up­
coming biennium, compared to $200,000 in 
1997-99. 

Nursery stock ( trees, shrubs, and woody vines 
for outdoor use) is inspected for insects and 
diseases to provide a healthy product to con­
sumers and prevent the introduction of pests 
into the state. 

Pesticide 
The Pesticide Division enforces state and fed­
eral laws regarding the use of pesticides, as 
mandated by the Federal Insecticide, Fungi­
cide and Rodenticide Act, while acting as an 
advocate for farmers and ranchers who de­
pend on agricultural chemicals. 

Inspection of pesticide dealers and applica­
tors is the division's primary means of ensur­
ing safe and proper use of pesticides. These 
inspections are aimed at preventing illegal 
residues in our state's commodities and re­
ducing damages from pesticide applications. 

The division continues the development of 
initiatives mandated by the U.S. Environmen­
tal Protection Agency. These include: 

• The Endangered Species Pesticide Manage-
ment Program 

• The Water Protection Strategy for Pesticides 
• The Worker Protection Program 

The division also administers the minor use 
pesticide grant program through the Pesticide 
Control Board. The program seeks to assist 
producers in obtaining federal registration of 
pesticides for minor use crops. Without this 
program, pesticide availability in North Da­
kota would be severely restricted. Projects 
generally receive substantial funding from 
other outside sources. Project grants totaling 
$160,000 are expected to be funded in 1998-
1999. 

Minor Use Projects Funded in 1998 

• Authority herbicide on Sunflower 
• Fungicides for Sclerotinia control on 

Canola 
• Herbicides on Borage and Camelina 

Minor Use Projects under review for 1999 
• Valor herbicide on Sunflower 
• Imi Herbicides on Sunflower 

The division also prepares Section 18 emer­
gency exemption requests to EPA for pesti­
cides to address weed, disease, and pest out­
breaks in the state. In 1998, Section 18 ap­
provals were used to provide control on ap­
proximately 2 million acres of durum, pota­
toes, barley, sunflowers, canola, flax, dry 
beans, sugarbeets and hard red spring wheat. 
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Project Safe Send, the division's program to 
help farmers and others get rid of unusable 
pesticides and empty pesticide containers, has 
collected more than 325 tons of hazardous 
and unusable chemicals in the past six years. 

The division is also responsible for enforcing 
the anhydrous ammonia safety inspection 
program for the state.Approximately, $73,973 
has been requested out of the anhydrous fund 
for registration duties to adminster the pro­
gram. The governor's budget recommends 
increasing funding for pesticide registration 
and noxious weeds out of the EARP fund. 

The Pesticide Division is 85 percent funded 
by federal money. 

Noxious Weeds 
The Noxious Weeds Division coordinates in­
tegrated weed management programs. The 
three major programs available to landown­
ers include: 

The Landowner Assistance Program (LAP), 
administered by counties, continues to pro­
vide the foundation for controlling leafy 
spurge on private land in North Dakota. LAP 
provides a source of cost sharing to thousands 
of landowners in almost every county in 
North Dakota. Since 1992, participating 
counties have received an annual average of 
$383,000 in state funding. Tax Department 
records show the county weed boards annu­
ally levy more than $2 million dollars for their 
weed control programs. 

The North Dakota Biological Control Pro­
gram began to mass distribute insects for 
leafy spurge in 1992. Almost every county in 
the state now boasts a local biological control 
program with successful breeding popula­
tions of spurge-eating flea beetles. More than 
two dozen field days and collection events 

were held in 1998 at which over 42 million flea 
beetles were collected for redistribution, a 10-
fold increase in two years. The events were 
sponsored by local county weed boards, the 
U.S. Forest Service, The Bureau of Reclama­
tion, and the Department of Agriculture. 

The Weed Innovation Network (WIN) grant 
program encourages groups of people to 
work together to develop innovative ways to 
manage noxious and invasive weeds. Twelve 
WIN projects in ten counties have been pro­
vided funding to offset costs associated with 
large-scale weed control projects. 

The division assists counties in enforcing the 
Noxious Weed Law (NDCC §63-01.1), and 
serves as a liaison between landowners, coun­
ties, state and federal land managers, other 
states, and local and regional associations. 

Registration 
The Registration Division of the North Da­
kota Department of Agriculture is responsible 
for enforcing the provisions of the North Da­
kota Commercial Feed Law (Ch. 19-13.1), 
Livestock Medicines ( Ch.19-14), Insecticides, 
Fungicides, and Rodenticides ( Ch.19-18), and 
the Fertilizer and Soil Conditioner Law 
(Ch.19-20.1). 

Approximately 700 feed samples are collected 
each year for analysis. The state registers an 
estimated 2,970 pet foods and approximately 
6,775 commercial feeds. The Department li­
censes nearly 280 feed manufacturers and 310 
feed dealers. 

There are 1,283 registered livestock medicines 
in the state of North Dakota. Before anyone 
can sell a livestock medicine, it must be reg­
istered with the state. 

Approximately 7,657 pesticides, ranging from 
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household/residential products to industrial 
and agricultural products, are registered in 
the state. 

This division is responsible for Special Local 
Needs permits, Experimental Use permits, 
and Supplemental Labeling permits. 

The state registers approximately 1,475 vari­
ous types of fertilizers for agricultural and 
residential use. Approximately 511 fertilizer 

distributors are licensed to sell agricultural 
fertilizer. The department analyzes about 700 
to 800 fertilizer samples annually. 

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration con­
tracts the Department to perform tissue resi­
due investigations when a residue is found by 
USDA in a slaughter animal.Additionally, the 
FDA contracted the Department to conduct 
49 annual elevator inspections. 

Environment and Rangeland 
Protection (EARP) Fund 

Recommendations 

Beginning Balance 

Total Revenue 

Expenditures 

Noxious Weed Operating 

Noxious Weed Line 
Safe Send 

Registration 

Pesticide Operating 

Groundwater 

Minor Uses 

Noxious Weeds 

Waterbank 

Total Expenditures 

Ending Balance 

1997-1999 

$812,335 

$1,926,600 

$176,691 

$574,188 
$552,133 

$66,000 

$90,890 

$200,000 

$350,000 
$215,167 

$ -

$2,225,069 

$513,866 

1999-2001 

$513,866 

$1,900,000 

$187,2051 

$886,3551 

$554,3631 

$108,3851 

$113,0821 

$200,0002 

$160,0003 

$ -
i100,0003 

$2,309,390 

$104,476 

1 SB2009 

2 HB1004 

3 SB2009 
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Additional Requests 
Plant Services has the following three requests: 

• $160,000 from the EARP Fund to restore the Minor Use Fund to its 
original amount of $350,000 appropriated during the previous legis­
lative session. 

• $100,000 from the EARP Fund to allow the state to match a portion of 
federal funds approved for the Waterbank program. 

• Restore $30,000 to temporary salaries to support apiary services. 

Plant Services Budget Comparisons 

1997-1999 Governor's Senate 
Budget Budget 

Salaries $1,214,625 $1,326,686 $1,284,324 

Operating $532,092 $361,749 $361,749 

Equipment $22,500 $12,500 $12,500 

Waterbank $714,000 $414,000 $414,000 

Safe Send $734,428 $554,363 $553,907 
Anhydrous $20,444 $8,154 $8,154 

Noxious Weeds $1,174,696 $1,174,696 $1,174,696 

Grants $450,000 $100,000 $100.000 

$4,862,785 $3,952,148 $3,909,330 

FTEs 16 17 17 
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Specific 
objectives 
and action 
steps for 
each goal: 

Goal 1 
Make North Dakota 

agricultural products 

synonymous with high 

quality, dominating the 

premium markets. 

Objective 1 

Develop a recognized family of brands 

that provides commensurate net returns. 

a. We recommend initial efforts be 

directed toward those products for 

which North Dakota has the greatest 

comparative advantage. 

b. We recommend that cost-effective joint 

marketing be undertaken as multiple 

lmmcb become viable or marketing 

pools of differentiable products cm hr 

identified. 

Objective 2 

Establish, promote, and implement 

internationally recognized stmdards of 

product quality and processing e\ccllcnce 

that can be certified by an independent 

entity. 

a. We recommend that the North Dakota 

Department of Agriculture promote 

the cooperation of appropriate certi­

fying agencies with all relevant 

producer and processor groups to 

develop standards for their products 

and to develop systems for monitoring 

adherence to these standards. 

b. We recommend that the North Dakota 

quality crop and livestock products frotr 

No rth Dakota. 

a. We recommend th,tt thC' l i.S. 

Congress and the State Legislat1m: 

provide adequate resc:1rch funding 

to North Dakota for emerging 

disC,L'>es of plants and :111imals. 

' b. We recommend that public support 

for resrarch rl'lated to crops and 

livestock grown in l\orth Dakota 

be gradually increased to 2 percent 

of gross farm income lo the state. 

c. We recommend that a major 

bench-marking effort he under­

iakcn for key 1orth Dakota 

agricu ltural products so ~,s to 

quantify the greatest product 

advantages and areas requiring 

augmentation. • 

Mill and Elevator establish a model for ' 
Objective 4 

developing standards for wheat. 
l;et producers to buy equity in and 

commit production to North Dakota-based 

Objective J processing and marketing enterprises. 

Conduct the necessary animal and crop I a. \Ve recommend that the Cooperative 

research to differentiate and market high Development Cen ter technical 

assistance services to producers be 

strengthened and expanded. ♦ 

''Let us ponder the rat~er remarkable 
, I f '-)... ' I 

;. document the commission has 'given . , 
us, and lei the discil;sk>n begin: ~;:~~\~i ·_.· 
'J"-tH•., "? ,.._._..,,... ---~~--......,..__ I'.-..,,.'-"".•~-~,.,~,.., 

· Bismarck Tribune, June i 4,1998 
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(';oal 2 
Increase value-added 

agricultural processing. 

Objective 1 
Provide and promote oppo111milies 

for producers to invest in value-added 

agricultural processing through 

incentives. 

a. We recommend that the U.S. Congress 

and the North Dakota Legislature pro­

vide tax incentives for investors in 

value-added agricultural processing. 

Objective 2 
Improve and strengthen the Agricultural 

Products Utilization Commission (APUC). 

a. We recommend that the legislature 

assure a permanent funding source to 0 support value-added research and 
development through APUC. 

b. We recommend that APUC remain 

under the control of fam1ers, with six 

appointed members to be selected 

from names recommended by agricul­

tural organizations. 

c. We recommend that APUC be able to 

negotiate repayment of grants through 

preferred stock, intellectual property, 

and other methods. 

d. We recommend that APUC assist in the 

commercialization of innovations and 

patentable technologies discovered in 

publicly assisted research. 

Objective 3 

Provide and promote favorable 

finance programs for value-added agricul­

tural processing busjncsses. 

-a. We recommend improvements in the 

cooperative stock purchase program 

to include stronger incentives for low­

equity fam1ers and improved loan 

terms for other farmers. 

b. We recommend the creation of an 

additional capital fund, pa11ly funded 

by profits from the Bank of North 

Dakota, to make equity investments in 

value-added ag1icultural ventures 

within the state. 

Objective 4 

Promote innovative financial tools 

for non-farm North Dakota residents to 

invest in value-added agricultural pro­

cessing projects with their farmer 

neighbors. 

a. We recommend that a mutual fund 

capital pool be developed to attract 

farm and non-farm investments in 

No11h Dakota value-added processing 

projects. 

b. We recommend that existing coopera­

tives be encouraged to create and cap­

italize a fund to be used to encourage 

farmers to invest in diversification and 

value-added projecl'i. 

Objective 5 

Locate value-added food businesses in 

rural areas, where economically feasible 

and sustainable, with a high preference for 

North Dakota locations. 

a. We recommend tl1at tl1e legislature 

approp1iate funds for a targeted 

Partnershjp in Assisting Community 

Expansion (PACE) program \vitl1 lower 

matching reqwrements for value-added 

processing project<; . ♦ 



Goal 3 
Diversify and increase 

the value of agricul­

tural production. 

Objective 1 
Develop and implement an aggressive 

plan for increasing animal agriculture 
within the state. 

a. We recommend that the 1999 legisla­
ture change the fam1 property tax 

structure to encourage investment in 
animal agriculture facilities. 

b. We recommend the promotion of 
value-added animal agriculture 
production, including quality 
assurance standards and safe food 
animal processing. We recommend 
that the state government explore the 
possibility of creating a partnership 
with the USDA Northern Great Plains 
Research Center to expand its mission 
to include this component. 

c. We recommend significant local and 
state involvement in the formulation 
and implementation of appropriate 
environmental regulations. 

Objective 2 
Focus research on new and emerging 

crops, livestock species, and appropriate 
technology that is suitable for production 

and processing of food, fiber, energy, and 
other industrial products. 

a. We recommend that research be con­
ducted in partnership with land grant 
universities, industry, farmers and 
non-profit organizations. The results 
of this research should be disseminat­
ed in a format that will optimize its use 
among fanners and processors. 

Objective 3 
To retain the ownership and 

control of production ag1iculture in 

_ the hands of family farms. 

a. We recommend that the North Dakota 
Legislature strengthen the family 
farming statute by allowing the num­
ber of possible shareholders related 
in some way to the "farmer" (as stat­
ed in the statute) to be increased to 
30 members. We support the spirit 
and intent of North Dakota's family 
farming statute, which was established 
to preserve and maintain farm owner­
ship and control in the hands of fami­
ly farmers. The law should also make 
some allowances for no more than 
two full-time unrelated (to the 
"farmer") employees of the family 
corporation to become members of 
the farm family corporation. To 
qualify for such inclusion, the 
employee must have at least three 
years employment history with the 
family farm corporation, and upon 
leaving the employment of the farm, 

the employee would be required to 
liquidate his/her shares. (,l,: 

Objective 4 
Reduce transportation costs for North 

Dakota agricultural commodities and 
food products. 

iJ ··· 

a. We recommend that the State Legisla­
ture appropriate funding to the Depart­
ment of Transportation to analyze 
methods of reducing transportation 
cosl<; of No11h Dakota produced and 
processed commodities and product<; 
and to develop a strategic transporta­
tion plan for the state. 

b. We recommend that the State Depa11-
ment of Transportation harmonize 
requirements among North Dakota, 
other states, and Canadian provinces. 

Objective 5 
Create and implement an aggressive 

plan to develop and conserve water • 
resources within the state. 

a. We recommend that the formulation 
of a strategic plan for economic devel­
opment through inigation be 
prepared by the High Value Irrigated 
Crops Task Force, in cooperation with 
NDSU, with state funding. 

b. We recommend that the USDA North­
ern Great Plains Research Center 
establish a Dryland Farming Institute 
to develop more drought-resistant 
crops and moisture-conserving farm­
ing practices. 

Objective 6 
Establish an agricultural marketing 

web site to Link buyers and sellers of 
North Dakota produced and processed 
commodities and products. 

a. We recommend that the North Dakota 
Department of Agriculture establish~ 
maintain a user-friendly web site th~ 
can be accessed by aJJ North Dakota 
producers and processors as well as 
domestic and international buyers . ♦ 



j 

~oal4 
Increase farm and 

non-farm cooperation 

that supports thriving 

rural communities and 

enhances our natural 

resources. 

Objective 1 
Increase the connectivity to and 

availability of information in rural 
communities. 

a. We recommend that the North Dakota 
Legislature provide incentives to 
establish an advanced telecommuni­
cations network that provides afford­
able service to all areas of the state. 

Objective 2 

ODevelop broad-based support for agri­
tural education from elementary 

through adult levels. 

a. We recommend that the North Dakota 
Legislature provide adequate funding 
for agricultural education at the post­
seconda1y level as weU as for estab­
lishing vocational education courses 
in high schools. 

b. We recommend that the No11h Dakota 
Legislature provide adequate funding 
to the Board for Vocational Education: 

G 

♦ To support as many adult farm 
management programs as demand 
requires; 

♦ To support the expansion of the 
curriculum to emphasize market­
ing education for farmers; 

♦ To encourage the creation and 
expansion of marketing clubs as 
adjuncts to new and existing Adult 
Farm Management Programs, and 

♦ To align the Extension Service, the 
Board for Vocational Education, 
and the university system to 

Commission on the Future of Agriculture• 1998 

develop agricultural and rnral 

enterprise education through 
electronic means such as e-mail , 
internet web sites, and interacti ve 

video network classes. 

Objective 3 
Design and implement entrepreneuri ­

al and work force recrnitment and train­

ing incentive programs which wiU retain 

and attract people to rural North Dakota 
communities. 

a. We recommend a program of tuition 
rebates in partnership with local 
communities for university system 
students who work in rural North 

Dakota for a minimum of five years 
following graduation. 

b. We recommend that Job Service North 
Dakota expand its prospect list by 

lending its support to "Project Back 
Home" to increase the impact of the 
program statewide. 

Objective 4 
Provide for a work force that has a 

vested interest in the business. 

a. We recommend that the legislature 

explore potential tax incentives which 

would encourage greater participation 

by North Dakota employees in agricul­
tural business ownership. 

Objective 5 
Increase the awareness of the signifi­

cance of agriculture to the state of 

North Dakota. 

a. We recommend that the North Dakota 
Legislature provide adequate funding 
for the Ag in the Classroom program 
to educate the state's children on the 
vital importance of agriculture in their 
lives and in the state's economy. 

b. We recommend the continued fund­
ing, at current or increased levels, of 
4- 11 and FFA programs. 

Objective 6 
Increase the appreciation of the 

importance of stewardship of our natu­
ral resources in the production of high­
quality food . 

a. We recommend the use of incentive­
based conservation programs that are 
voluntary and that include annual pay­
ments to farmers to encourage greater 
use of natural resources by the public. 

b. We recommend the development of a 
teaching and learning curriculum for 
adults and school-age children that 
presents the production ethic that bal­
ances ag1icultural production and 
environmental concerns. ♦ 

"Every1body ought to rea,I the fi11a/ 
report oftbe Commissio11011 /be 
Future of Agrirnllure ... lls bl11epri11/ 
for a prosperous 1111d self-sufficie11/ 
future is the boldest ,md mos/ co111-

prebe11sive in 80 years ... " 

Bismarck Tribune,Junc 14, 1998 
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Goal5 
provide additional estate tax 

exemptions to fam1 real estate trans-

Create a political, ferred within families. 

regulatory, economic, c. We recommend that Congress allow 

trade, financial, and farmers to purchase, own, and oper-

natural resource ate fann real estate with tax deferred 

retirement funds. 
environment in which 

d. We recommend that the state create a 
North Dakota produc- property tax structure which encour-
ers can compete in the ages on-fami living, well-kept 

global marketplace. buildings, and state-of-the-art, 

environmentally friendly production 

Objective 1 facilities. 

Provide immediate tax relief for e. We recommend that Congress extend 
producers, focused on a more favorable and expand income tax provisions to 
property and income tax structure for enable agricultural producers to uti-

agricultural producers. lize Income Averaging, the Investment 

a. We recommend that Congress enact Tax Credit, and 100 percent health 

modifications to the tax law to pcmut insurance prenuum deductibility. 

the $500,000 exemption in capital f. We recommend tax abatements for 

gain tax on residences to be applied to beginrting fanners similar to tax abate-

farms a11d small business real estate. A ment progran1s for other begiruung 

five-year nutumum ownership is also small businesses. 

suggested to prevent speculation in g. We recommend that facilities used to 
farmland. grow or raise any unprocessed 

b. We recommend that the U.S. Congress agricultural product be exempted 

from property tax. 

. ~r toJ?~l'f,lJY j,"!p~emented_ it:;)'lt h. We recommend reducing dependence 
, .... ,1.; .• i r. of'<;,.'l" "· ~:, .... .., ... ~.. , M -·~ 

suppori, · ~egit~)ii.iig" at-th~ g~ 
... , 1e~e1· o,tup,li/t~~)fi4iq(u · •. 1 

••,., ·Ar· ~ .·, ,.. . ... '.~· __ ·:•1,:}!', .. '':.•·'::~ ..... -.. _1, 

.. : _ .. ~; . th the _state ,qid fed_ertil leve'l 
· ~!~;·.Jft ·· Fann & Ranch Guide, June 

,,·, 

on property taxes and increasing ._ 

dependence on state revenue sour~t 

Furthermore, we recommend that: 

♦ State Aid Distribution be funded at 

0.6 percent of statewide taxable 

sales; 

♦ State Foundation Aid be increased 

to 60 percent of the statewide per 

pupil cost for education, and 

♦ A related decrease in property 

taxes by local political subdivisions 

be implemented. 

i. We recommend that the 1999 North 

Dakota Legislature adopt changes in 
the definition of "farmer" for 

deternuning residential exemptions for 

property tax from a definition based on 

the percent of fanuly income derived 

from fanning to "whose gross farm 

income exceeds off-fami income." 

() 
Objective 2 

Improve the lending envirorunent for 

agriculture. 

a. We recommend changes in the lending 

practices of tl1e Bank of North Dakota 

and Fann Service Agency (FSA) for 

improved begi1ming farmer a11d first-

time falm purchases. Beginning fatm­

ers should be afforded incentives simi­
lar to lending progra1ns for beginrting 

small businesses in otl1er industries. 

We recommend that tl1e Bank of North 

Dakota increase iL<; beginrting farmer 

loan limit from $100,000 to $150,000. 

b. We also recommend that: 

♦ FSA intensify iL-; cfforL) to help 

beginning farmers a11d make every 

effort to reduce burdensome 

paperwork; 0) 
♦ The fSA director take immediate 

action to implement the linc-of­

credit loans authorized in section 



614 of the 1996 Farm Act. Line­

of-credit loans should be used for 

all routine and recurring operat­

ing loans using either direct or 

guaranteed authorities; 

♦ The FSA administrator give the 

highest priority to the immediate 

establishment of regulations to fully 

implement the "Preferred Lender" 

and "short fonn application" for 

operating loans under $50,000 as 

required under the 1992 Agricul­

ture Credit Act amendments; 

♦ Congress authorize the Farm Se1>1-

ice Agency to guarantee tax-exempt 

First Time Bonds used to make 

loans to beginning fanners and 

ranchers. These bonds should be 

allowed for use in seller-financed 

transactions between family mem-

( .:, bcrs, and 

♦ FSA increase its lending limits. 

Objective 3 
Ease or eliminate resllictive regulatory 

burdens. 

a. We recommend easing impediments 

caused by existing pesticide 

regulations through: 

♦ Increasing resources and eff 011S of 

the U.S./Canada Technical Working 
Group (lWG) on Pesticides to har­

monize pesticide regulations in the 

two countries; 

♦ Committing more resources :md 

effo1t-; to establishing tolmu1ccs for 

pesticides registered for use in Cana­

da hut not in the United States, :md 

♦ Exerting a greater eff 011 to accept 

r:CJ registration da1,t currently accepted 
· by Canadian officials in suppo11 of 

Canadian registrations. 

b. We recommend that farm org:miza-

Commission on the Future of Agriculture• 1998 

lions work to establish guidelines for 

determining regulatory policies mid 

specifications, including environmen­

tal bonding where warranted, that bal­

ance the need for ag1icultural produc­

tion and preservation of North 

Dakota's valuable natur'&l resources. 

These guidelines should be shared and 

coordinated \\~th environmental , con­

sumer, :md regulato1y groups. 

Objective 4 
Reduce non-farm competition with 

individual farmers and ranchers for land 

acquisition including government agencies 

and non-profit organizations. 

a. We rcconuncnd that ag1icultural orga­

ni zations in conjunction with the 

No1th Dakota Association of Counties 

and the No11h Dako1,t Township Offi ­

cers Association develop model lm1d 

use zoning guidelines for use by coun­
ties and townships that preserve agri­

cultural land for future generations. 

More specifically, we recommend: 

♦ A statewide cap on CRP acreage at 

the current level, and that all future 

CRP he limited to highly erodible 

land and waterways, imd 

♦ Hl'lention of ownership and con­

trol of production agriculture in 

the hands of family farmers and 

ranchers hy implementing a policy 

of no nl'l loss of productive 

agrirnltural land. 

Objective 5 
Provide bener options for risk manage­

ment by fam1ers. 

a. We reconunend that the Congress and 

the U.S. Department of Ag1iculture 

make the following ch:mges to the 

Federal Risk Mm1agemen1 Program: 

♦ Expand coverage to all crops, 

including new mid emerging crops; 

♦ Expand coverage to protect mini­

mum revenue levels; 

♦ Develop a gross-farm income pro­

tection progran1, and 

♦ Pro,1de that the yield data for dis­

aster years not be included when 

calculating actual production histo­

ries for detemlining yield guaran­

tee levels. 

Objective 6 
Encourage options for lower cost, 

quali tv health insurance for farm families . 

a. We recommend that No1th Dakota 

Farm Bureau, North Dakota Farmers 

Union and other farm org,mizations 

cooperate in offering one he,tlth in:-.ilr­

ancc program to their combined 

memhersllip that would benefit from 

lower rates due lo the largl'r pool of 

pa11icipants 1hm1 any one org,u1i1.alio11 

rnrrently enjoys . ♦ 
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"The best thing about the ( Commis­

sion on) Future of Agriculture 

Report might be the psychological 

lift it gives North Dakotans ... " 

"The report has managed to lift our 
sights beyond the farm crisis and 
toward a prosperous farm future." 

" ... it's good to see state farm leaders 
taking the initiative. It is only in 
this way that the stale 'sf armers 
will gain greater control of their 
own-and the state's-destiny." 

Grand Forks Herald,June 23, 1998 _ 

Ninety percent of North Dakota's land 

(over 40.2 million acres) is in 

farms, making the state fourth in the nation 

in the percentage of total acres devoted to 

ag1iculture. North Dakota also ranks 

fourth in the nation in the percentage of 

economic base derived from agriculture. 

At 38 percent of the total, agriculture is 

the largest sector of the state's economic 

base (see Figure J) and generated more 

than $3 billion in revenue in 1997. North 

Dakota ranks 10th in ag1icultural exports, 

earning $1. 7 billion in fiscal year 1996. 

North Dakota's principal agricultural 

Federal Activities 
35% 

' f • 
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product<; are wheat and cattle. The comb( 
nation of wheat at 41. 4 percent and cattle · 

at 9.2 percent made up over one-half of 

the state's total agricultural receipts in 

I 996. These two enterprises were also 

an1ong the hardest hit by recent weather 

disasters. In 1997, wheat production was 

down 33 percent from 1996. Disease and 

insect problems, coupled with poor 

prices, have led to a predicted decline of 

more than one-and-one-half million acres 

in 1998 wheat plantings. 

Total cattle inventories have dropped 

8 percent from a year ago, due largely to 

record winter-related losses and 

economic factors. As a percent of total 

inventory, the total cattle death loss in 

1997 is the highest on record. 

Net returns per acre of wheat in North 

Dakota turned negative in 1997, with ant 
average statewide loss of $16 per acre ( as 

shown in Figure 2). Similarly, returns 

for beef cattle were net losses for many 

cattle producers during 1995 and 1996 

( as shown in Figure 3 on page 12). 

Low and negative net returns on wheat 

and cattle have led to declining net farm 



income. Net cash farm income in the 

state has fallen from a per farm average 

of $50,091 in 1993 to just$ 15,190 in 

1997. Profitability for producers is vir­

tually impossible in this situation , with 

family living expenses now exceeding 

average net cash farm income (as 

( 
•,own in Figure 4 on page 13). 

·' The state has also experienced a signifi ­

cant demographic change. The number of 

farm youth within the state has declined 

from 63,557 in 1970 to 17,366 in 1990 

( as shown in Figure 5 on page 13) 

and is estimated to have decreased further 

to 10,000 at present. In adilition, 31 of 53 

counties have registered more deaths than 

births in the period from 1990 to 1996. 

Family farm net income is also impact­

ed by growing economic concentration in 

sectors of agricultural marketing and 

processing. Economic concentration 

among the four top meat packers has 

increased from 67 percent in 1987 to 87 

percent in 1997. Similarly, the top four 

flour millers control 62 percent of the 

market today versus 40 percent in 1982. 

As shown in Figure 6 on page 13, : Oht sectors of agricultural marketing and 

processing continue to see an increasing 

percentage of economic concentration , 

limiting market opportunities all(! compel-

Commission on the Future of Agriculture· 1998 

itive prices for fanners and ranchers. 

Despite the adverse conilitions, North 

Dakota has developed a worldwide repu­

tation as a leader in value-added processing 

cooperatives. This well-deserved opinion is 

based on a carefully developed strategy and 

hard-fought successes in the creation of 

producer-owned enterprises. This body of 

experience in successes and failures will 

f IGURE 2. ETURNS 
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"Perfect timing. 11,e plan could be the 
beginning of the salvation<>/ North 
Dakota agriculture." 

·---· ~--· --
'"Building the Future of North 
Dakota," a report by the Commisswn 
on the Future of Agriculture, reveals 
the clear-thinking, problem-solving 
abilities of North Dakotans ... " 

Minot Daily News, June 14, 1998 

FIGURE 3. NET RETURN 
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serve us well in building the future 

envisioned in th.is report. Our hard work 

and profound commitment have generated 

an unshakable sense of self-confidence. We 

believe we can achieve our vision. 

The Commission on the Future of Agri­

culture (the Commission) was formed 

because of the crisis in North Dakota ag1i­

culture. However, the Commission is confi-

dent that people within the slate can buil~~ 

upon the very impressive human and sociit 

capital that has been developed over the 

last several decades. 

The Commission recognizes that many 

members of the farming community need 

immediate relief if they arc going to survive 

economicalJy. furthermore, the slate must 

develop a long-term strategic plan that will 

create long-term, sustainable prosperity 

utilizing all appropriate technology if the 

current crisis is not to repeat itself again in 

another few years. 

Thus, the Comntission believes it is 

imperative that its recommendations 

include strong action steps that will: 

♦ Provide immediate relief to today's 

farmers; 

♦ Generate actions that will improve 

profitability in the medium term, ancf 
♦ Create a viable long-term economic 

future for North Dakota's farm and 

non-fam1 population. 

The Working Group identified criteria 

that it felt should be used in selecting 

appropriate goals, objectives and action 

steps. It was determined that the goals, 
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( C)bjectives and action steps presented in the 

,·eport should meet most, if not all, of the 

following criteria: 

♦ Contribute to an increase in net farm 

income. 

♦ Create an active cooperation between 

farm and non-farm communities. 

♦ Be doable. 

♦ Be incentive-d1iven . 

♦ Increase the quality of food 

production. 

♦ Contribute to healthy population 

growth. 

The Commission believes that the 

objectives and recommendations in this 

report meet these criteria. We hope that 

you do, too. 

0 Many of the people of North Dakota 

. ,10 have developed this repo11 are listed 

on the following page. Their assistance has 

been invaluable. 

All of us know that we have just begun 

the effort to create our future . The real 

challenge-implementation-is al1ead of 

us. As the June 14, 1998, Fornm editorial 

obsenied, "The initiative might be the 

most important item of business to 

come before the 1999 Legislature." 

The words in this report are just words 

until they are implemented. This is a task 

that will require all of our efforts'♦ 

Commission on the Future of Agriculture• 1998 
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T he following people, representing 

the following organizations, partici­

pated on either the Steering Conuniltee, the 

Working Group, or the Commission on the 

Future of Agriculture: 

Commission on the 
Future of Agriculture 
Bruce Anderson, CENEX 
Sharon Anderson, NDSU Extension Service 
Ben AA1111an, N.O. Assn. of Rural Electric Co-ops 
Elwood Barth, N.O. Credit Review Board 
Lori Capouch, N.D. Assn. of Rura.l Electric Co-ops 
Dennis Carlson, CENEX Land O'Lakes 
Robert Carlson, N.D. Farmers Union 
Kent Conrad, U.S. Senator 
Kevin Cooper, Industrial Development Assn. 
Kevin Cramer, N.O. Economic Development & Finance 
Galen Debey, N.D. Credit Union League 
Judith Dewitz, N.D. Water Commission 
Jerry Doan, Board of Ag Research 
Byron Dorgan, U.S. Senator 
Gerald Eissinger, N.D. Assn. of Telephone Co-ops 
Mark Froernke, N.D. AR-CIO 
Lance Gaebe, N.D. Grain Growers Assn. 
Paul Ge1molus, Office of Attorney Genera.I 

John Bollingberg -a life-long farmer from 
Wells County and graduate of N.D. State University. 
Bollingberg has served numerous groups, including 
the Agricu.ltural Products Utili?.ation Conunission, 
Edible Bean Council and the N.D. Farm Bureau. 
Bollingberg currently chairs the N.D. Ag Coalition. 

Jack Dalrymple -a Casselton fanner and Yale 
University graduate. Dalrymple has been a state leg­
islator since 1985 and has served numerous other 
groups, including leadership positions for Dakota 
Growers Past.a Company and United Spring Wheat 
Processors. 

Jerry Effertz -a Velva area family farm and 
ranch owner and master's degree graduate of N.D. 
State University. Effertz is a member of the N.D. 
Stockmen's Assn. , N.D. Llmousin Cattle Assn ., 
McHenry County Farm Bureau, McHenry County 
Farmers Union and tl1e Velva Lions Club. 

Neil Fisher -administrator of tl1e N.D. Wheal 
Commission and master's degn,-c graduate of N.D. 
St.ate University. Fisher was raised on a fam.ily farm 
that still operates near Pettibone, has been witl1 the 
Commission since 1978 and was appointed a.<lmin­
istrator in 1998. 

Patricia.Jensen -vice president and dean for 
Agricultural Affairs at N.D. St.ate University. Jensen is 
a College of St. Catherine graduate and William 
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Cornelius Grant, NDHDC 
Dale Greenwood, N.D. Stockmen's Assn. 
John Hagen , MCETA 
Arden I laner, !AND 
Jim llannon, N.D. farm Bureau 
Jarvis llaugeberg, N.D. Grnin Dealers Assn. 
Heidi lleitkarnp, N.D. AuomcyGenerJ.l 
Bill I lejl, Red River Valley Sugarbeet Growers Assn. 
Dennis Hill, N.D. A.<;sn . of Rural Electric Co-ops 
Scott Hoag,Jr. , NRCS 
John Hoeven, Bank of North Dakota 
Gary Hoffman, American Dairy Assn. 
Bryan lloime, N.D. Township Officers Assn. 
Larry Isaak, NJ). University System 
Joel Janke, N.D. Vocational/I'echnica.l Education 
Patricia Jensen, N.D. State University 
Mark Johnson, N.D. Assn. of Counties 
Roger Jolmson, N.D. Agriculture Commissioner 
Annie Kirschenmann, Farm Verified Organic 
Dave Koland, N.D. Assn. of Rural Water Systems 
Max Laird, N.D. Education A.5sn. 
Darrell Larson, N.D. lmplement Dealers Assn. 
Charlotte Meier, N.D. Pork Producers A<;sn. 
Charles Mertens, USDA-Rural Development 
Bill Muhs, Fann Credit Sen~ces 
Bev Nielson, N.D. School Boards Assn. 
Eugene Nicholas, N.D. Legislature 
Arlene Olson, N.D. Fanners Union 

Mitchell School of Law graduate and has a lengthy 
record of service to agriculture, through education 
and industry groups. 

Roger Johnson -N.D. Commissioner of Agri­
cu.lture and N.D. State University graduate. Johnson, 
a native of Turtle Lake, where he still owns a family 
farm, was administrator of tl1e N.D. Agricultural 
Mediation Service from I 989 to 1996, serves now 
on the N.D. Industrial Commission and has served 
several otl1er statewide groups. 

Fred Kirschenmann -owner of a 3, 100-acre 
organic fan11 in south central N.D. Kirschenmann is 
a doctorJ.l gr,1duate of tl1e University of Chicago, a 
fonner college instrnctor and administrator, and 
now serves severJ.l sustainable and organic agricu.1-
tura.l groups. 

Ron LeClerc -director of Community and 
Rural Development for the N.D. Dept. of Economic 
Development & Finance. A Minot State and N.D. 
State University graduate, LeClerc farms part-time 
and serves several state and regiona.1 groups. 

Wade Moser - executive vice president of the 
N.D. Stockmen 's A.-;sn. , N.O. State University gradu­
ate, life-long rancher and former agricultura.1 loan 
officer. 

Bill Patrie - rural development director for 
the N.D. A.<;sociations of l{ura.l Electric Coopera-
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Keith Peltier, Ag Assn. 
Shelly Peterson, Long 

Term Care Assn . 
Thomas Plough, NDSU 
Earl Pomeroy, U.S. Congressman 
Kevin Price, American Cryslal Sugar 
Lincoln Reinhiller, Dakota. Resource Council 
Dale Roemmich, N.O. Bankers Assn. 
Edward Schafer, Governor 
Howard Schmid, N.D. Fann Bureau 
Rev. George Schneider, N.D. Conference on Churches 
Francis Schwindt, N.D. Health Department 
Connie Sprynczynatyk, N.D. Le'Jl,l\le of Cities 
Scott Stofferahn, Farm Service Agency 
Mike Strobel, N.D. Mill and Elevator 
Arnold "Chip" Thomas, N.D. Hospital Assn. 
Terry Wanzek, N.D. Legislature ( 
Dan Wiltse, N.D. Barley Council 

tives and Telephone Cooperatives and master's 
degree graduate of Ba.II St.ate University. Patrie is 
past CEO of Northern Plains Premium Beef and 
current chairman of tl1e Rura.l Development 
Finance Corporation. 

Richard Schlosser -owner of a 1,500-acre 
family farm near Edgeley and fom1er school teach­
er. Schlosser is vice president of N. D. Faimers 
Union and serves on tl1e N.D. Credit Review Board. 

Howard Schmid - life-long Benson County 
farmer, raising wheat, barley and sunflowers. 
Schmid served as N.D. Fa1111 Bureau president from 
1990 to 1998, and is a member of tl1e U.S. Durum 
Growers and N.D. Grain Growers. 

Robert Sorenson - president of tl1e Indepen­
dent Community Banks of N.D. and graduate of N.D. 
State University. Sorenson is currently ,~cc president 
of the Scandia American Bank, where he ha.s been 
employed for the past 18 years. 

Steven Tomac -owner of a I, I 00 acre family 
fai·m and ranch in Morton County and a gradual:@ 11~ 
N.D. State University. Tomac has served as a state '4/1' 
senator since 1991 and served in the state house of 
representatives during tl1e 1987- 1989 sessions. He 
works as a rura.l appraiser and is involved with 
severa.1 statewide organizations. 

"7be trusted pru,,ider 11/ tbe hiJ!.besl qualitrfo11d i11 tb1• uwld!"' 



What is negotiation? 
Negotiation is a less formal and often 
longer process than mediation. The 
negotiator acts as a representative of the 
farmer or rancher. AMS employs about 15 
negotiators located throughout the state. 
They help farmers and ranchers prepare 
financial statements, cash flow projec­
t ions, loan applications and other paper­
work. Negotiators will also meet with 
farm creditors or other government 
agencies to help farmers with financial 
·nanagement and other issues. 

Is there any cost? 
If you have never worked with an AMS 
negotiator, the first 10 hours of negotiation 
assistance are free of charge. After that, a 
modest hourly fee is assessed. Mediation 
fees are charged to farmers, major creditors 
and other parties for time spent "at the 
table ." A waiver offees may be granted to 
those who are unable to pay. 

Other disputes? 
AMS also provides mediation services in 
other areas of contention, including 
landlord-renter disputes, weed control or 
seed disputes and appeals with federal or 
state agencies. AMS provides referrals to 
farmers and ranchers in many specialized 
areas such as: 

♦ Legal services. 

I ;Mental health services. 

♦ Social services . 

♦Accounting and tax advice. 

♦Altern;itivc financing. 

How does it work? 
If you have questions or need assistance, call 
the toll-free number, 1-800-642-4 752. A 
negotiator will be assigned to you and will 
contact you directly. 

Other resources 
♦ If you d.o not already have an attorney, 
consult with people you trust for a referral. 
The North Dakota State Bar Association 
maintains a list of lawyers who practice 
agricultural law. For more information, ca( 
toll-free, 1-800-932-8880. -

♦ The HELP-LINE provides crisis intervention, 
information and referrals to individuals 
facing stress and depression brought on by 
financial or other rural-related problems. 
Trained volunteers offer free and confiden­
tial assistance to rural residents, 24 hours-a­
day, 7 days-a-week. The toll-free number is 
1-800-472-2911. 

North Dakota 
Department of Agriculture 

Agricultural Mediation Service 
600 E. Boulevard Ave·. Dept. 602 

Bismarck, ND 58505-0020 
PH: (800) 642-4752 

(701} 328-4769 
FAX: (701) 328-4567 

IATION 

g Problems; 
ing Disputes 

RAL MEDIATION SERVICE 
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• Agricultural Mediation Service 
The North Dakota Agricultural Mediation 
Service (AMS) was established in 1984 to 
help financially distressed farmers and ranchers. 
AMS credit counselors (negotiators) are trained 
to provide farmers with one-on-one assistance 
in credit and financial matters and resolving 
disputes. 

With about 15 negotiators and mediators 
located around the state, AMS annually pr( ~s 
mediation and negotiation services, counseling 
and other assistance to approximately 1,000 
farmers on a broad range of subjects, including: 

♦ Finances. 

♦ Beginning farmer loan applications. 

♦ Farm planning. 

♦ Farm production practices. 

♦ Seed disputes. 

♦ Disputes with federal and state agencies. 

The North Dakota Agricultural Mediation 
Service is a division of the North Dakota 
Department of Agriculture, and is headquar­
tered in the State Capitol in Bismarck. AMS 
policies are established by the North Dakota 
Credit Review Board. 

Advantages 
Experience has shown that mediation: 

♦Prevents violence. 
♦ Promotes community harmony. ( __ 

♦ Results in longer lasting, "better"solutions. 
♦Saves time and money. 
♦ Is confidential and preserves the dignity 
and self-esteem of all parties. 

What is mediation? 
Mediation is a voluntary, problem-solving 
process created to help farmers and others 
avoid costly and often ruinous litigation. 
Mediation brings the disagreeing parties in a 
dispute to the same table in an attempt to 
resolve their differences. During mediation, 
ev~_•·.vone involved in the dispute should be 
w( ~ to "lay all their cards on the table" and 
to consider all possible solutions to the 
problem. 

The mediator is a neutral and impartial third 
party. The mediator arranges the time and 
location of meetings between disputants and 
conducts the meetings. Trained in problem­
solving techniques, the mediator helps create 
an environment in which the disagreeing 
parties can resolve their differences. The 
mediator assists disputants in considering all 
options and in recording agreements. 

Mediation can mean the difference between 
an acceptable agreement and expensive 
litigation, even foreclosure and bankruptcy. 
And it works: agreements are reached in two­
thirds of all cases. 

How does it work? 
Mediation usually begins after negotiation 
between a farmer and another party has 
failed to result in a workable repayment 
plan. Mediation may also be initiated when 
a creditor either rejects a borrower1s restruc­
turing plan or considers foreclosure. In 
North Dakota, the Farm Service Agency 
(formerly FmHA), Farm Credit Serivces and 
the Bank of North Dakota are required to 
offer mediation before initiating foreclosure 
proceedings. Here1s how the mediation 
process is conducted: 

♦ Either a farmer, lender or other party 
contacts the AMS and requests mediation. 

♦AMS assigns a negotiatior to help the 
farmer prepare for mediation by getting 
all necessary financial papers and other 
documents in order. 

♦AMS assigns a mediator to the case. 
♦ The mediator sets up a meeting(s) 

between the farmer and other parties. 
♦ The negotiator attends mediation meet­

ings with the farmer and helps represent 
the farmer1s interests during the meetings. 

♦ The mediator is neutral and facilitates 
frank and open discussion of all issues. 

♦ The participants discuss all problems, 
possible solutions and options. 

♦Participants reach a mutually satisfactory 
agreement or 11 agree to disagree. 11 

( 

♦ The mediator issues a written report · 
detailing the agreement and officially 
closing the mediation process. 
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March 9, 1999 

MEMBER FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORP()i-lATION 

BOX 1 

GOLVA, NORTH DAKOTA 58632 
(701) 872-3656 

Dear North Dakota House Appropriation Committee: 

The North Dakota Ag Meditation Serv i. c.e. has been a value service 
to the farmers of our area. We have hard times in agriculture 
and need all the help we can give our farmers. Our hope is you 
will provide the adequate funding for the Ag Meditation Service 
to continue its good work . 

P.2 
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TO: MR KNUTSON, Ag Mediation Dept 
Fax: . 328-4567 

RE: AG MEDIATION PROGRAM 

FROM: Roger White 
12289 HWY 1 3 
Stirum, ND 58069 
701-678-2704 

I am sorry I can't be at the hearings to testify for the 
Ag Mediation Program. I would like to say I think this is 
a very needed program in ND. My son and I have both used 
the program. It was very helpful to have someone to work 
with that knew the farming problems. They talk to you to 
assure you it isn 1 t totally your problem, they will meet 
with the lender with you and that really helped. This i~ 
also a good program for the lenders as well because of tl-$ 
third party involvement. 

If things can't work out so you can keep farming, the Ag 
Mediator works with ideas of what you can do besides farming • 

This is one of the state programs that we can not get 
along without. You all know what the prices are for farm 
products, the weather adversities we have endured, etc. 
Our small towns and communities are hurting also. When I 
started farming in 1965, there were 60 farms in our township 
and no'tl we have 10 family farms left. If there isn 1 t some 
sort of support like the Ag Mediation Program from the 
state, it will only get worse. 

We must do what we can, so I am asking you to support this 
bill. It has helped many farm families in the past and hope 
to have it available in the future. 

Thank you for taking the time to listen. It is much appreciatesi. 
I feel assured you will make the right decision on this bill . 



• 2280 7tb St. Kw 
Turtle Loi.k.e, ND 58575 

Febru.ar,r 5, 1999 

To whom It i>Jay Concern: 

A~ farmers whc have leaned heavily on heLp fr~m Ag .Mediation, we wcul.d like to tell 

you about the importa.:nce we feel tha.t they :play i.'"l the lives of .f'axm !am.Hies 1n ND. 

lt is of l)ublic knowledge how very difficult it bas been for small fa__"'"!nB. to continue 

tc operate. We feel tha:t from the !irs't time w-e called on -~ :tir.sd1ation t:or help their 

i."!put and help was more t.ha.n va.lu..bla. 'I'h• mediliLtors axe we·ll trained and k:nowledge­

a.ble in a.11 a.=eas tha.t come into play. Until tne Ag Mediation Dept. wa.a formed thi.:=s 

was lit tle affordable ~elp for tbe ones who were atruggliDg. 

Please doo't de;rive the fa._-rmer of this aerrica. we would urge you, vith the ut..iost 

urgency, to give tbem the fUilding t.bey need to contil':ru.e to provi de this most impor­

tant service fer all farmers who need it. flla.ny tiu:es they a.re the far.ners only hope • 

• bank You. 

Sincerel y, 

;fc,,-;✓v~✓{f 

• 



February 5, l999 

COMMUNITY CREDIT UNION 
PHONE: (701 }947-5011 

20 NORTH 1 ST STREET 
NEW ROCKFORD, NORTH DAKOTA 58356 

TO: Senate Appropriations Committee 

that we use the agriculture mediation 
program that is very much needed on a 

-----·--8NCllA ---0..--

Please be advised 
program. It is a 
continuous basis. 
keep this program 

We ask that you do what ever possible to 
in place. 

Sincerely, 

%#4~d/4 ~ :a~,,:~ Ebenhahn / /' 
President 

:.-:f!..D!!!!!!EN=&A~ANOt===~MEMBERS MAKE THE DIFFERENCE! !!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!~c~,.~RINCfRlN~r ~B!!!R!!!ANCH~.~ 

PO Box 2M PO lo '41G 
F8SMf'lden, NO 58'38 Curington. HO 58421 
Pl'lona: (701 )547~ Ptlone: (701lts2•2482 



♦ Farm Credit Services of Grand Forks-
At the Marl of a growing America 

. 242d ;;211dAt1l\11.UI! South • P.0.1JO% l:JS70 • Grand Forlu. ND .58208.J570 • (701) 775.Jl9.'3 • 1·800-288.J982 • F= (701) 787-6659 

February s, 1999 

Mr. Jeff Knudson 
Ag .Mediation Service 
600 E. Boulevard Ave. Dept. 602 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0020 

Dear Jeff, 

This letter is to reflect my support of the ND State Ag Mediation Service. 

AJj Director of Asset Management for Farm Credit Semce.:s of Grand Fork3, my experie~ 'Mith 
utilization of the state's ag credit counseling services with my clients has been very bencfic~. With the 
continued challenges within. the state's ag economy, availability of your program in the fu.tu,re is 
essential. It provide.s a valuable, neu~al, third party prospective which can be beneficial to all parties 
involved. 

I wish you the best in 1999 and hope to continue to work with your Ag Credit Counselors in the futr. .:.re. 

• Sincerely, 

--=B~. 
R.and~en 
Director of Asset Management 

RS/dl 

• 
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GARRISON STATE BAN~ 

NORTH DAKOTA STATE LEGISLATURE 
BISMARCX ND 58501 

Dear sirs: 

BOX 339 
GARRISON, NORTH DAKOTA 58540 

Tai11phona (701) 483-2262 
Fax I (701) 463-7452 

February s, 1999 

I would like to write this letter ia support of the funding 
for the Agricultural Mediation Service. As an Agri.cultural 
Lend~~, Z oanno~ ~oii you ho- ~ai~.aoio th~~ th~g gorv~~o h~a 
become to the farmer's and rancher's in our area. The Mediation 
Servi.ca has and will continue to help our farmer's and rancher's 
work through these tough Agricultural times. Please give }'\OUr 
full attention to this matter and fund this valuable servic,a to 
the fullest. If you hava any questions, or would like to ~isit 

~}t~o~~jc~aArn~£i~tB~5 n~p~0 fo ~±si~8 w~tX0 y~U.a ~flJJ.rAa~ul:800 -

sincerely, 

Bruce Schreiner 
Assistant Vice President 



First State 'Bank 
OFWill'ON 

.hone: (iOI) i34-63I6 
P.O.BOX309 

WICTON, ND 5B5i9-0309 Fax: (701) 734--6.502 

• 

• 

N. D. Dept. of Agriculture 
Jeff Knudson 
Administrator Ag. Mediation 
600 E Blvd Ave . Dept. 602 
Bismarck, N. D. 
58505-0020 

Dear Mr. Knudson, 

February 5, l999 

This letter is written to show support for the continued 
funding of Ag Mediation. 

With the poor commodity prices and disasters our farm 
communities have seen, this would be a most inappropriate time to 
cut funding of the Ag Mediation program. 

Our experience with Ag Mediation goes back to when the 
program began in 1984 and includes seeing mediators working with 
farm customers resolving difficult loan situations, faim 
planning, loan applications, farm production practices and 
working out disputes with Federal Agencies . 

All of our experience with Ag Mediation has been positive. 
Having a mediator involved in a difficult situation not only 
helps promote harmony, but it results in better long term 
solutions, that save time and money for all concerned. 

Sincerely, 

r) '~J~ 
'CE. tarter 
Executive Vice President 



• 
mBREMER 
BANJCING • IN\'ESIMENTS •TJWST• INSUBAN'Ci 

February 5, 1999 

Senate · Appropriations Committee 
North Dakota Legislature 
Bismarc~ ND 58505 

Dear Members:-

BllliMiilL .BANK 

910 H1u. AViNUG 

CAAPTON, NolTH Du:on 58237 
(701) 352- 2410 • FAX (701) 352-0228 

! am writing to lend my support to the North. Dakota Agricultural Mediation Service. In a 
depressed ag economy such as we are facing, it is important to have knowledgable fann 
advocates. With FSA understaffed and overworked. Ag Mediation will be called on to help with 
the tremendous amount of papeiwork: needed in their application process. 

Please allow Ag Mediation Services to continue with their important work. 

Paul D. Boe 
Ag Loan Officer 

.u11,ov1Lu. • PoRlisT·Rivi.11. • GILBY • GII.A1TOl'I • GkAND" Fou:s • GAAND Fo1u::1-N0RTH • Hu.UDORO • Hool'Li: • I.,u1.1wo1.11 • ST. THCMA5 

2.+-nouA PttoHI IMHIC 1-800-908-BANK • TOO 1-i00-,8J9-•79S 
BIUMl!A BANK 1$ Muuo, FDIC 
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February 5, 1999 

Jeff Knud.son, A~'trator 
North Agricultural Service 
600 E Boulevard Ave 
Bismarck ND 58505 

Dear Jeff: 

Seturiiy Staie Bank. 

Tam writing this letter in support of the Ag Me~ation Service; Security State Bank 
customers have used the service on several occasions. Frequently the Ag Mediation 
_Service has assisted our .customers with the assembly of their financial information so 
decisions could be reached as to how their farming operations should be G.na.n.c.cd. 

• 
ff it eventually gono the point where there were no alternatives left for our customers 
other than to liquidate. the service hdped with the liquidation and later assisted tb.e 
customers in the trans1tion from farming into other occupations. 

Granted., not all situations work out positively for either the borrower or the lender, but 
most often a decision will be made that both parries can live with. 

Thank you for letting me comment on this is.sue. 

nicereJy, 

lf '::rren D . Henke 
Presidenr 

· LDH/rnbs 

Wishd'-
. • Pn11t Offir... llnx 577 

W-i.hd1.. ND 58495 
Phnn.- (701) ~~2-2314 

faJL (701) 452-2316 

Linton 
Po~• Offi<'e Box 4W 
Lktnn, NO 58552 

Phwaa (701) 254-4453 
l~ax (701) 2,5,j.;.14.'i~ 

Puwt OffiL-a Buii: 97 
I .... hr, ND :'iMtiO 

Pho11c (701) 378-2701 
T-':i-i: (701) 373.2702 



• 
FIRST STA TE BANK OF GACKLE 

GACKLE, NORTrl DAKOTA 

ME.."\IBER FDIC 

Mark A. Lehr, Preside:1t Dale L. Donat, Vice Preside:it 

.rnx ~ 

(701} 485-3296 

328-45 87 ~= _____ __.._...._ ......... ________ _ 

~'IO: SENATE APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE -----------------
RE: Letter of Support 

of Continued Funding 

Chrmn of AG ME DIATION PROGRAM 
ATJ::ENl'ICN: ·------------------
E1:i!:M:. __ ~ D""'a ....... 1..,e_D.......,o_..o .... a .... t_ .... , ........,v .... p ________ _ 

1 CF 1 (incl,~.;...,,.,. this ~) P~:___ ---- ~ r--:;-

We request your approval of fu n ding to maintain the 

AG MEDIATION PROGRA M, as we have us ed this service 

for our troubled farm customers and have found it to 

be an effective way for a third party to relieve tensions 

between the borrower and the creditor. It gives the farmer 

a nother alternative and another party an opportunity to 

express to the farmer their options . Often it is a 

counseling service in cooperating in th~ farm liquidation 

and sec urin g a lif e after farming . 

Thank You for yo ur consideration / 

t!J/ 
·~--------------------:-­

(701) 485-3:391 Post Office Box 37 4 Gackle, North Dakota 5844-...2 

Part':"'.c In Comm~niry Progress - \Vhe-e Sauings Hdp Otlics 
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February 5, 1999 

:rvfr. Je:ffKnutson 

RE: ND -State Ag Mediation Program 

Dear Mr. Knutson. 

P.0Ba:r128 
Hm,,uifoni, ND . 58448 

(701) 769--2121. 
(MX) 769-2124-

· I am writing to state my appreciation of the Ag Mediation Program. Our area has experienc...ad. 
several difficult fanning year since 1993 resulting in extensive :financial loss and severe-mental 
stress. to . our area farmers. It has been of great value to our customers and also to our bank to 
have qualified and independent mediators available in these.thnes-of crisis. W~ place significant 
value on this program and hope that it will continue to be available. 

Sincerely, 

Willie Koosmann 
Vice President 

• 



FARMERS &. MERCHANTS STATE BANK of Tolna. 
ManJ.r FDIC 

Post oma Sax 405 
1hlDa, Nonh Dul1l:a 58380 
(701) 262-4511 

~e.bn...a~ 5; I c;qq 

To-by. Mcmbe~ of-~ &~ ~p--faZ,M..; 
~m(~; 

W~ Su.ppcrl' ~ ~ ~ ~ ~~~ 
e p-t, j~ ~ done. ft,,- (lc,-J+.t ~ _,;~ 

Ja.m,· J ;,ct:,, Please, co~+-,'ru.,,e, wr-cn tJ.-,ie 
I 

WDJ'-#"',Whi/~ p~C, 

• 
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• 
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TO: ND Senate Ap~roP~iatione Comm1t~ee 

FROM: Joel Middaugh 
9 Lukens Drive 
Wilton. ND 58579 
(701) 734-6133 

TOPIC: Aaricultural Mediatior- Fi.mding 

The purpoee of this letter ia to teetify in eupport of 
funding for the North Dakota Agricultural M~diation Service. 

For aeveral years I have worked with a farm credit 
mediator/negotiator. When I first entered the aystem. 
I had been farmine with my father and brother in a farm 
partnership. but 5ince my father wanted to retire. we 
decided to diseolve the farm partnerehip e.nd my brother and 
I bo~ht the rsmainins farm equipment. At that time. my 
brother and I etarted working with Farmer's Home 
Adm1nistrat1on to acquire the £arm machinery from the farm 
partnership. When farm income was unable to produce 
suf:1c1ent income for my brother'e family living expeneee. 
he also decided to quit farming. Thia required additional 
negotiatin~ to enable me to buy hie ehare 0£ equipment. 

I decided to quit farming in Deeember of 1997 due to the 
~oor farm economy. If it wasn-t for the eervicee provided 
by my Ag Mediation ofzicer, I probably would have quit long 
before that time becau~e I waa not abl~ to work effectively 
with my FmHA county supervisor. My negotiatcr wa5 very 
knowledgeable and helpful when working through the ve.z.:-ioua 
rulee and regulationa of the ayatem. 

Pre~ently. I am working with a negoti~tor to ~iide me 
throu2h the correct procedure to negotiate a eettlement with 
FmHA. I feel thet it has been extremely bene£iciel to my 
family to work with a negotiator while we were farming and 
now as we are leaving agricultu~e. 

With the current farm eituation. l feel that it ie 
e~pecially impo~~ant to continue financing the Agricultural 
Mediation Service at this time for the £armer~ that are 
still far.r.in~ and may need mediation eervicee in the future . 



• 

• 

• 

OFFICE LOCATIONS 

EDGELEY (701) 493-2334 
212 FlFTH AVENUE 
EDGELEY, NORTH DAKOTA 58433 

February 8, 1999 

ND Senate Appropriations Committee 
State Capital Building 
Bismarck, ND 58501 

RE: Ag Mediation 

ELLENDALE(701)349-3042 
121 MAIN 
ELU:NDALE, NORTH DAKOTA 584J6 

Dakota Plains Credit Union has worked with the ND Ag Mediation 
program in the past and is in support of the funding for the Ag 
Mediation Program so they can continue to work with distressed 
farmers in North Dakota. 

Sincerely, 

A -h..De.JIU .JJ,.Mu.,c~,l;ct> 

Steven Gebhard 
Loan Officer 

SG/jb 



-BANK OF STEELE TEL:1-701-475-2336 Feb 08 99 9 : 28 No.002 P . 01 

• Me1no Frotn The Bank Of Steele 

FROM: TO: 

Name,4'4t/ ~ Name?J.J . . k~ 
·company ~(bck f Ate£, Company _______ _ 

Address ________ _ Address ________ _ 

City ____ State_ Zip __ 

• 

• 



FEB-05-1999 1s:09 SEC STATE NEW ROCKFORD 
P.01/01 

TO: ~ ~ r-Ax No: '70J-3:i__y-LJS<o7 

COMP/IN~ ~ ~ ~ 
i--non =---~--L..L.~~:::12a,:,::__~~:::::::!:~' ~~=:::::· ~::k:ir-tc-=====-------,J.J1u2~P==------------

DAT.E : __ ~=-t1-s--+-Jq..;._c,,.____ ________________ _ 

SECURil'Y STATE IlANK OF NORTH DAKOTA - FAX NO.; 701-91,7-5766 
G S. 8TH STREET I'JIONE N□-. -: -. _7_0_1 __ ..:..9..:../i, 7---2-t'--,2'--l-.-.-.-------

• NEW ROCKFORD, ND 5llJ5G 

COl!HENTS: K~ ·. (jg-~ -/.J}v,;--;. ..,_,__-.,_v o-rJ_ J:.k..<- :.r . 
(D :JP:-~~~~L-~-~~~~~ 
~ .9-i At! "" ~ em ,;:i.:;;, ~ m,a--c: -~ ~ ~_; 

-~._;,,..,._ ~ ~ l!A - ~ ~ Q._._ ~ -•..J~ 

Q~- • Q) ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~,~ ~ _,,;__ f>4..F·;...;;;:,c_·2.-~ 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ a_, .. ~~ ~tz..~ _ ~1Lif 
~ ~ ~ :.J"' , Q4-·&--.~ d,Q<"• J -1... ~ 'lfZ,1•- ;_ ~. 

Thi.:. F/1.X t.r~n.::;mission con:.i.si:s of ___ p.:igc::, includini; chi.s cover sheet. If you 
do not receive ~11 0£ the p~ucs, plca~c c~ll back u~ soon as possible. 

1.1ic i11L'oi.-1n •• 1:ion conc.:1:i.ncu in t:hi:;' mc:;.::::q~e :L.:; :;olcly i11ccnJeu (01: t:hc u:;c of th1.. 
in.d.:i.vidu;1l.11;1mcd :il.>OVt!. Any rli.::.:.:cini11~t;;ion. di::1;1- ;i.l.,u1;:i.oo. or ..:01>y;i1,1: of i:h;l.:; mc:::;;q;c 
~n-u/oL· .:i.1:r.:.-:ic:l1111cnc:; by :1nyonc ocher ch.in 1:hc inr.:cndcu i;cc:ipic111; i:; :;r.:r:ict.ly proh:i.L:i..tcu. 
I!: you receive Chis communic.:it:ion in error, p.lc.:i::;c notify u:: :i.111111ccli.:iccly t,y c;,ll.inc 
us collect oc 701-~~7-2~21. 

Th.ink you • 

• 
TOTAL P 01 
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E•Commerce 
Internet Sites 

The Pride of Dakota E-Commerce Internet site 
includes the creation of a customized web site for 
your business of up to 40 interlinked pages of 
information about a business and specific products 
for sa le includin g graphics, pictures and prices. 
This site is created from information provided by 
the member. This package also includes: 
♦ Up to 30 individual products for sale . Sizes, 
co lors, or oth er informati on ca n be selec ted by 
custome rs fo r individual prod11cts. 
♦ Cred it card information will be co llected via the 
Internet and sent direc tl y to the business in a 
secured tran smi ss ion. 
♦ Pri ces including shipping in forma tion will be 
provided to customers. 
♦ Pri ces will be changeable at any time directly by 
the business usi ng a passwo rd protected adm ini stra­
ti on page . ' 
♦ Orde rs are immediately communicated to a 
bu sin ess once the order is co mpleted. 

The fee fo r thi s prod uct is $ 1,200. Alternative price 
stru ctures are available with revenue sharing 
conditi ons beginning at $480 and 16% of internet 
sales. 

Find it on the web/ 

www.shopnd.com 

For more information contact: 

SHANNEN BORNSEN 
North Dakota Dept. of Ag. 

600 E. Boulevard Ave. 
Dept. 602 

Bismarck, ND 58505 
E-mail : sbo rn sen@state. nd .us 

701-328-4759 

OR 

ROB LARSON 
ComMark, Inc . 
330 3rd St NE 

Mayville, ND 58257 
E-Mail: Rob_Larso n@commark.com 

701-786-4670 

Pride of 
Dakota 
Internet 

Mall 

www.shopnd.co1n 

Creating 
Internet 
Marketing 
Opportunities 
For 
Pride of Dakota 



Internet Mall at 
www.sl1opnd.com 

1 rough a grant from the U.S. Department of 
griculture. the North Dakota Department of 
:; riculture has created www.shopnd.com - an 
te rnet mall exclusively for marketing and 
·omoting Pride of Dakota members. 

he purpose of the Mall is to provide cost effec­
\ e access to the marketing of products and 
.' rvices via the Internet and to create a single 
il ernet location where consumers can find the 
roducts and services mid by Pride of Dakota 
1e mbers . 

.·he Internet can create new and effective opportu-
11 ties to reach potential customers and cornmuni­
·;1te with existing customers. vendors. and e111-
,1oyees . These opportunities can allow faster and 
.·asier communicati on with cu stomers and even 
·he selling of products directly over the Internet. 

. l n 1997, there was $2.6 bi II ion spent by consum-
- ~rs using E-commerce and the Internet. In 2002, 

that number is expected to reach $420 billion. 

vww.shopnd.com is designed to allow North 
Dakota businesses to participate in this growing 
area of commerce . 

Wh-
. shopnd. 

The Internet mall that is located at 
www.shognd.com is designed to coordinate impor­
tant elements of internet marketing for Pride of 
Dakota members. The Mall will create a distribu­
tion channel that allows North Dakota businesses to 
showcase, market, and sell their products via the 
Internet to a national and international audience. 

The mall will include a directory of all PRIDE OF 
DAKOTA members in a searchable format to allow 
consumers to easily and quickly find indi\'iclual 
members For members with existing internet web 
sites, links to these sites will be created to allow 
customers lo "click" directly from the mall to that 
site. The mall will also have sophisticated and 
changing features including: 

E-commerce Capability: 
Businesses choosing to market and sell products 
directly via the Internet will be able to do this in a 
secure environment. Credit card information will 
be processed via the Mall and individual internet 
sites. 

Specialty Stores: 
Changeable ma] I "stores" wi 11 be created to feature 
products from multiple suppliers . Examples of 
these "stores" will be "Christmas Gift Store,'' "The 
Craft Store," "ND Food Treats," etc. 

Feature Products: 
The homepage of the Mall will have the capability 
to feature specific products of PRIDE OF DAKOTA 
members. 

Advertising Banners: 
Members will be able to purchase banner advertise­
ments that link to their company's internet site. 

Internet Site Packa • 

Through an open bidding process, ComMark Inc. of 
Mayville, North Dakota has been selected to 
provide individual business internet sites to Pride of 
Dakota members wishing to purchase their own 
internet site. The initial year's hosting fees for these 
sites are being provided al no cost. 

Internet Brochures: 
The Pride of Dakota internet site include .-; the 
creation of a customized web site for yo ur business 
of up lo six intcrli11ked p,1ges or i11for111ati o11 ,1hout ,1 
b~1si11ess i11cluc..ling graphics amJ pictures . This site 
is created from information provided by the mem ­
ber. This package also includes : 

♦ An internet address (URL) of: 
www.shop11cl .com/yourco111pa11y or 

www.yourco1npa11y.co111 . 
♦ Links to e-mail address (es) of the members . 
♦ Listing in major search engines . 
♦ Up lo 10 links to other pages of your choice . 
♦ A link from the www.shop11d.co111 mall. 

The fee for this product is $350. 

Other Options: 
Web pages can be customized with an assortment or 
features including: 

♦ Additional pages to your site . 
♦ Pages or fields within a page that you can change 
on your own from your own office as often as yo u 
like for specials, ads, or other information . 
♦ Spc.ci,il fe ,1tures such as c..ligital sou nd . ;111i 111 ati o11 . 
c..ligital video and more . 



North Dakota 
Agriculture. ..:... • 

'1) the. ::= Ill 
North Dakota 

Agriculture in the Classroom Council 
600 East Boulevard Avenue • Department 602 • Bismarck, NO 58505-0020 

assrootn •·-• Phone: (70 1) 328-2231 • Fax: (701 ) 328-4567 

1998- 1999 
Council Membe~ 

Roger Johnson 

Commissioner 

of Agriculture 
Bismarck 

Wayne Sanstead 

Superintendent 
of Public lnstruaion 
Bismarck 

Dean Aakre 

N OSU 4-H Youth 
De•,e!opment 

Fargo 

Bonny Berryman 

Erik Ramstad 
Minot 

Vi~nia Deitz 

Madison Public School 

Fargo 

A.tEriksmoen 
~nof 

\not~endent Studies 
_Farge 

l eArtn Hamer 
Ag Coaiition 

M andan 

Tammy Huber 
NO Famiers Un,on 

Jamestown 

B~xy Koch 

Norm Oaxoca 
Stare ,Jnivermy 

Fargo 

Saran Nordby 

Prooucer 
Arruoon 

Anene ~e'.erson 
NO Farm oureau 
;argo 

Doug Vannuraen 
1'\JD Vocaoonai 
Agnculture 
Bismarck 

gton 

Wagner 

Beuiah Public Schools 

Proposed Agriculture in the Classroom Budget 1999-200 l 

Food, Land, and People 
Teacher Training Seminars 
(materials, travel, facilitating costs, 
credit reimbursement) 

Educational Outreach 
(materials, video training development 
conference booth rental, supplies, travel) 

AGmobile 
Traveling Ag Education 
Experience - Mobile Classroom 
( construction for trailer modifications, 
travel, consumable supplies) 

Intern Program 
(training program for srudenr developmenr) 

Living Ag Classrooms 
(materials, travel) 

Webpage 
(development, hosnng, and maintenance ) 

Ag Mag 
(newspaper te::iching aid. development. pnnnng, 
promotion) 

Program Coordinator 
(salary, benefits ) 

General Operating 
(travel. trairung, phone. office supplies. 
computer software. etc. ) 

Equipment 
( computer, computer pro3ecror. office funurure J 

TOTAL APPROPRIATION: 

$ 17,000 

$ 16,000 

$ 10,000 

$ 5,000 

$ 3,000 

$ 3,000 

$ 5,000 

$ 69,000 

$13 ,000 

$ 9,000 

$ 150,000 



AGRICULTURE IN THE CLASSROOM 

The Agriculture in the Classroom Council was established by the 1985 Legislature, 
but it has never received an appropriation. It simply has spending authority and the 
challenge to raise the money to run the program. The Agriculture in the Classroom 
Council has the responsibility to "develop agricultural curriculum activities and train 
teachers in these agricultural curriculum activities for grades kindergarten through twelve 
in this state's public school system." (North Dakota Century Code, Chapter 4-37) 

The following brief explanations offer more specific information about the major 
components of the Agriculture in the Classroom program: 

Food, Land & People Teacher Training Seminars 

North Dakota K-12 teachers can learn how to integrate agricultural information into their 
classes with this exciting new curriculum. Food, Land, & People (FLP) is a nationally 
developed and field tested program that encourages the inclusion of state specific 
information. FLP features 40 lessons that cover topics such as seeds, raw to processed 
foods, pollination, soil erosion, cattle by-products, fabric production and nutrition, just to 
name a few. There is also the opportunity to discuss agriculture-related careers within 
this curriculum. 

Facilitator training is scheduled for April 23-24 in Carrington. Teacher training seminars 
are set for July 12-13 in Minot and for July 14-15 in Dickinson. 

Educational Outreach 

It is important for the word to get out about the work of the Council. A booth at 
conferences and agricultural events, preparation of promotional materials, and production 
of a video training program are ways to do that successfully. 

AGmobile 

The Council obtained an 8'x30' FEMA trailer last fall for the purpose of making it a 
traveling agricultural education experience. At present, it is being "remodeled" at the 
Youth Correctional Center in Mandan. It will accommodate up to 20 students at a time to 
learn about agriculture and agriculture-related careers through hands-on activities. The 
AGmobile will be a classroom, an exhibit, a demonstration center, depending on its 
location---school, county fair, ag expo, etc. The possibilities are very exciting-and 
endless! Work is underway to develop partnerships with the Retired Teachers 
Association and university teacher training programs across the state to help with this 
project. 

Program Coordinator 

This position is vital to the success of the Agriculture in the Classroom program. The 
members of the Council are all volunteers with full-time jobs. They have spent 
considerable time in the past year since the Council was formalized working on the 
various components. However, their time is limited. A coordinator is needed to manage 
the various components of the program. 



Enrollment 

Yes, ~ am interested in participating 

in the Dairy Diagnostic project. 

Please return this enrollment form to: 

John L. Johnson 
N.D. Dairy Diagnostic 

Project Coordinator 

l 00 Hultz Hall, P.O. Box 5053 

Fargo, ND 58105-5053 

or fax to 701/231-7 590 

The necessary application forms will 

be forwarded to you immediately. 

9 I 

- --------------~ 7 

Or you may also complete this 
pre-enrollment form and return 
it to the address listed above 

Name _____________ _ 

Address _____ _ _ _ _ ___ _ 

City _____________ _ 

State -----
Zip _ _ ____ _ 

Phone ( ____ _, ________ _ 

Upon receiving this infonnation, 

we will mail you the 

necessary application forms 

ill out and return for processillg 

(. . ( 

Plan 
Your 

Future 
A program for dai,y families 

to illcrcase dai,y profitability 

and quality of life 

through teamwork 

North Dakota 

-a Y 
i gn stic 

Advisory Tea01 

A process to improve: 

Dairy Productivity • Farm Profitability 

Family Goals • Planning for the Future 

Project Objectives 
The North Dakota Dairy Farm 

Diagnostic Team is designed to 

help dairy producers solve the many 

challenges facing their industry today. 

It involves using a small team approach 

to evaluate and make suggestions in 

cooperation with the dairy family. 

Goals will include: 

1. One-on-one educational delivery 

teams. 

2. Provide appropriate nev,, tech­

nologies to dairy producers. 

3. Enhance the financial success and 

long-term sustainability of dairy 

farms in North Dakota. 

4. Provide assistance in areas such as: 

• Estate Planning/Farm Transfers 

• Farm Business Management 

• Nutrition and Feed Management 

• Herd Heal th 

• Reproduction 

• Housing/Ventilation/Lighting 

• Manure Management 

• Milk Quality and Components 

• Planning Dairy Expansion Projects 

• Stray Voltage Problems ( ~ 

• Labor Issues 

• Setting Farm and Family Goals 
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Assisting Dairy Producers 
With Steps Toward 
Increasing Profits 

I . Identification 
I-!clp 1vill be a,,ail11blc to assist iH 

irlc1Jtif.y i1Jg barriers to your production 

1111d business goa ls. 

2. Diagnosis 
011cc the barriers arc idcHtificd, 

actions will be suggested, 

modifications 111011itorcd, 

and progress eJJaluatcrl. 

3. Generating Alternatives 
Through positi 11c problem sol11ing 

111casurcs and working toget/ze,; 

solutiolls can be eJJaluated, agreed 

upoll , goals set anri accomplished. 

For additional information, 
contact: 

• Statewide Project Coordinator 

Joh n L. Johnson 
701/23 1-7993 (NDSU) 

70 L/361-2987 ( cell phone) 

701/874-2256 (home) 

• Program Oversight 
NDSU Extension Service 

Animal and Range Sciences 

70 1/23 1-7644 

• Extension Dairy Specialist 
J.W Schroeder 

701/231-7663 

Participants Will Receive 

• A personal Dairy Diagnostic Team. 

• A complete analysis of the dairy farm 

by the diagnostic team 

• Financial ass istance fo r specific 

services and needs. 

• Help in setting up goals and moni tor­

ing farm and progress. 

• Follow-up visits and written reports 

by the Team Leaders. 

• All records wi ll be confidential. ( 

Program Costs 

The annual cost of the North Dakota 

Dairy Diagnost ic Advisory Team 

consul tat ion ,viii be made avai lable 

to you by the project. 

Support for th is educational program 

is made possible through grants from 

dairy-related industry supporters, 

North Dakota Agricultural Products 
Utili za tion Commission, and the 

NDSU Extension Service. 

In add it ion, many agricultural 

profess ionals wi ll be donating 

considerable time to work with you 

on this process . Accepted participants 

will be charged a maximum of $ 150 

annual fee, plus the possibil ity of cost ( ." 
incurred for special tests agreed upon 

by you and the Advisory Team. 

Requirements 
for Application 

To qualify for thi s self- help program, 

you must: 

• Be keenly interested in enhancing 

your farm profitab ility and 

production levels 

• In tend to have a future in dairying 

• Have in place or willing to develop 

some fo rm of enterprise or farm 

( business management records 

• Be willing to share your diagnostic 
team experiences with other dairy 

farmers and industry supporters 

Enrollment and pre-enrollment 
information on back 

NDSU Extension Service, North Dakota State University of 
Agriculture and Appl ied Science, and U.S. Department of Agri-

(
, - ·ijurecooperating. Sharon D. Anderson, Director, Fargo, North 

kola. Distributed in furtherance of the Acts of Congress of 
~;iay 8 and June 30, 1914. We offer our programs and facilities 
to all persons regardless of race, color, national origin, religion, 
sex, disability, age, Vietnam era veterans status, or sexual 
orientation; and are an equal opportunity employer. 

This publication will be made available In alternative formats 
for people with disabilities upon request, 701 /231-7881 . 
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1998 SURVEY OF NORTH DAKOTA DAIRY PRODUCERS 

Complied by Wayne R. Carlson 
Livestock Services Coordinator 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The North Dakota Department of Agriculture in conjunction with North Dakota 

Agricultural Statistics Service developed this survey to identify dairy producers' present 

and future plans. The Department of Agriculture, North Dakota Extension Service, and 

industry leaders will use this information to develop policy and direction for the dairy 

industry. 

The dairy industry in North Dakota is in transition. Dairy farm numbers are 

declining at an alarming rate, decreasing from 1250 farms in 1992 to 804 in August of 

1998. 0 > Improved efficiency that has resulted in increased production per cow has helped 

curtail the effects this decline has had on the overall industry. However, if the decline in 

numbers continues at the present rate, the state's entire dairy industry may be threatened. 

The state will lack the amount of milk needed to sustain feasible levels of production in 

its processing plants. 

The survey showed a significant percentage of the state's dairJ farmers are 

contemplating leaving the dairy industry, and greater percentages are uncertain about 

their future in dairy farming. There is, however, optimism in the survey because 15 

percent of the producers plan on expanding. 
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Any state attempt, funded by the -dairy producers, to expand or develop the dairy 

industry will meet major industry roadblocks. A clear majority of the producers feel that 

attracting new dairies from out of state is not a solution that should be considered. 

Producers feel that the state should focus its help in expandi~g existing operations and 

helping young producers get a start in the business. 

North Dakota producers are in favor of eliminating the present milk marketing 

order but still want a pricing system that has a minimum price support mechanism. One 

part of the survey was used to gain the dairy farmers' perspective on how they feel certain 

issues affect the dairy industry. Producers responded positively to questions about, 

weather, production, transportation, financing and availability of feed. Regulatory issues 

and markets had a neutral response while negative responses were given for prices and 

lifestyle . 

The state must retain and enhance the dairy industry to ensure the adequate local 

supply of raw milk needed to sustain the existing industry. This can be achieved by 

developing and implementing a means to assist producers in expansion opportunities for 

existing farms, improving farm management, providing government support, and 

implementing new value-added opportunities . 

2 
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INTRODUCTION 

The United State's dairy industry is in a transitional period. The Midwest is no 

longer considered the prime dairy region. California, New Mexico, Idaho and Florida 

have fast become large dairy states. This is due in part to the federal milk order that has 

allowed higher milk prices in areas other than the Midwest. In 1998 a federal judge has 

struck down the federal market or~er that was allowing this type of inequity. It now 

appears that the U.S. Department of Agriculture will be proposing new legislation to 

replace the market orders that have been ruled unconstitutional. In the meantime the dairy 

industry is in limbo. 

The North Dakota dairy industry is also in a transitional period that has created a 

dilemma. Total milk cows numbers in North Dakota dropped from 60,000 to 48,000<1> last 

year, and total pounds of milk produced have dropped from 918 million in 1993 to 702 

million in 1997<2>. The North Dakota Department of Agriculture is concerned about these 

statistics and their implication that there may be insufficient raw milk supplies for 

processing plants in the State. 

In December, 1997, the North Dakota Department of Agriculture developed a 

survey to di scover how the state's dairy producers felt about important issues facing thei r 

industry. Agencies such as North Dakota Department of Agriculture, economic 

development officers, Extension Service and dairy plants will need to analyze this 

information if North Dakota is going to retain its dairy industry . 

I 

,I 
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OBJECTIVE 

The dairy industry and the Department of Agriculture will use this survey in 

developing policy to help change the decline in the dairy industry and to enhance the 

region's dairy industry. The survey is used only to get the perspective of the dairy 

producer and is not intended to represent the attitudes and opinions of all those involved 

in the North Dakota dairy industry. This report along with 1996 Tri State Dairy Initiative 

report on dairy capacity will provide an overall perspective ofthe dairy industry and help 

determine the future of the industry. 

PROCEDURES 

The survey was coordinated by the North Dakota Department of Agriculture and 

compiled by the North Dakota Agricultural Statistics Service. The survey list included 

1200 past and present dairy farmers. Those who did not respond were contacted by 

phone. Six hundred thirty-five farmers responded to the survey, which made the survey 

statistically significant. 

The results of the survey were sorted twice, once by nine regions and once by 

three regions to anal yze producer perspectives in different locations. The regulatory 

question was sorted by each individual inspector's territory, and the information obtained 

was used for evaluation of the inspector's work performance . 
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SURVEY RESULTS 

On January 1, 1998, there were 843 dairy farms in North Dakota. According to 

the survey, 89 dairy farmers will fail this year. The worst case scenario is that the State 

could lose another 196 producers if all of the "undecided" do in fact quit. Using the 

average milk production numbers for the state (12764lb/year)(2), this would mean a 

decrease of 74 million lbs. of production this year. Using the worse case scenario, an 

additional 165.1 million lbs. would be lost. The total amount of milk lost could be 

e·stimated at 239.1 million lbs. _ This would have a devastating impact on the State and 

State's the dairy industry. Lost income from this product could be ($13.5/cwt.) x 

239,000cwts. =$32.3 million. 

North Dakota total economy could be effected considerably more when a 

multiplier effect is used. Using a multiplier from four to six would increase the losses to 

North Dakota's economy to an estimated $129 million to $193 million depending on what 

multiply effect is used. 

The greatest impact would be seen in the cheese plant industry. The Tri State 

Initiative in 1995 conducted a survey on dairy plant capacity and needs. One of the 

conclusions of the study showed that the plants need an additional 1.1 million-lbs./ week 

to meet the plant's capacity. Since 1995. production has dropped an additional 138"' 

million lbs.; any additional losses would be devastating. 

This survey does not help alleviate any of those fears . When asked, " Are you 

planning to liquidate your dairy herd during 1998?" The results clearly indicated that we 

would lose a minimum of 10 percent to an estimated 33 percent of the producers. Ten 

percent of the producers are liquidating their dairy herds in 1998 ! 

5 
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■NO 

□ YES 

■ UNDECIDED 

QUIDATE 
RING 1998? 

Figure 1 

It can be rationalized that the loss in dairy farms can be offset by herd expansion. 

The survey did show that 14.8 percent of the producers are looking at expansion. This 

survey did not derive any indication concerning the number of cows planned for 

expansion. As a result, it is impossible to make any mathematical assumption about how 

much milk production would be added to the state's production. It does indicate that 

there is an interest in expansion, and the state must focus on those individuals in the 

future if the industry is to off-set the large exodus from the dairy farms. See figure below. 

■ NO 

□ YES 

■ UNDECIDED 

6 
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The survey overwhelmingly indicated that the state's producers are not willing to 

fund any dairy development or educational programs through a $.01 check off. Any type 

of program developed must be funded through other private sources or through 

government initiative. 

■ YES 

□ NO 

■ UNDECIDED . 

NT AND 
RAM? 

The next two questions referred to milk pricing, an issue in the forefront of all 

dairy discussions. A lawsuit brought by the Minnesota Milk Producers Assn. (MMPA) 

addressed the issue of milk orders. MMP A's contention is that the present milk orders 

favo r other regions of the coun try by giving them an unfair advantage by allowing a 

higher price for their producers' milk. This encourages production in those regions . A 

federal judge agreed with MMPA's position. 

7 
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Since the ruling, the U.S. Secretary of Agriculture has looked into several 

alternatives to replace the existing market orders. North Dakota producers agree with 

MMP A's position and feel that the federal marketing order should be eliminated, and any 

new plan should include a minimum price support. North Dakota producers are in favor 

of reform, and they think legislative and dairy leaders should pursue ways to change and 

improve the pricing system . 

■NO 

□ YES 

■ UNDECIDED 

Figure 4 

North Dakota producers favor a pricing system that maintains a minimum price 

system, primarily because of the variation in the price this past year. North Dakota raw 

milk prices have a high degree of vari ability because they follow national trend prices. 

For example, the Grade A milk price varied from $10 to $14 per hundred last year. If 

North Dakota producers had their way, any new milk orders being contemplated by 

Secretary Glickman would include a minimum price, which would have to be higher than 

8 
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■ UNDECIDED 

Figure 5 

L 
TAINA 
STEM? 

the cost of production. The danger of this type of system is that it could be encourage 

overproduction, which would create huge government surpluses similar to those in the 

past. It would also have to take into consideration that the minimum price has to be 

higher than the cost of production. 

The next series of questions dealt with expansion, " If North Dakota is going to 

expand, what should our state be doing to help with the dairy expansion?" It was very 

apparent that the producers don't want any State efforts going to entice out- of-state 

dairies to locate here. Figure 6 

■ NO 

DYES 

■ UNDECIDED 

9 
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■NO 

DYES 

■ UNDECIDED 

.e:y-

OULO HELP 
.AND THEIR 

They feel it is important for the State to develop a plan to help young dairy 

farmers get into the business and also to help existing dairies expand. Low cost loans and 

assistance from a development specialist are two ways the State could help in this 

process. These conclusions are very evident in figures 7 and 8 . 

■ NO 

DYES 

■ UNDECIDED 

10 
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If the producer is to be helped, there needs to be an understanding about what 

producers feel are important conditions affecting the dairy industry. Figure# 9 clearly 

indicates that the conditions that affect the industry positively are feed availability, 

production, transportation, and financing. Those conditions that producers felt had a 

neutral effect were regulations and markets. A clear majority of the respondents felt that 

prices and lifestyle had a negative affect on the North Dakota dairy industry. 

The demographics of the survey indicated the northwestern producers are the 

most negative about feed availability, markets, production, lifestyle, and transportation 

therefore, the northwest area of the state might not be the best location for dairies. Dairy 

producers in the northeastern part of the state seem to feel that prices, regulations, and 

weather are the most significant negative factors. However, those same producers feel 

strongly that production and feed availability are strong positive influences. 

Other observations include: 

► Eastern producers of the state feel feed availability is more positive than do 

producers in the rest of the state. 

► Regulations are perceived in a more positive light from west to east. 

► Weather is viewed as slightly more favorable to dairy in the west. 

► Markets are perceived to be higher in the east. 

► Production is viewed more in a positive light from east to west. 

► Dairy farmers across the state regard lifestyles in a negative light. 

► The central region regards transportation more positively thea any other 

region . 

11 
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► In the eastern part of the state, financing is viewed more on the negative view 

than in any other area. 

The final question of the survey dealt with regulatory inspectors and how they 

deal with the producers. Overall the staff of the department _was viewed as doing a 

satisfactory job in consistency, fairness, professionalism, accuracy, appropriateness and 

farm friendliness. See Figure # 10 . 

12 
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CONDITIONS AFFECTING ND DAIRY 

INDUSTRY 

S - Very Positive 
4 - Pos iti ve 
3 - Neutral 
2 - Negative 
I - Very Negative 

.... '. ,; } fr~~t/· 
r 

Figure 9 



HOW SATISFIED ARE YOU WITH 
NODA INSPECTION PROCESS? 

5 - Very Satisfied 

4 - Satisfied 

3 - Neutral 

2 - Dissatisfied 

I - Very Dissatisfied 

Figure 10 

□ Consistency 

El Fairness 

BB Accuracy 

■ Professional 

II Appropriateness 
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ANALYSIS and CONCLUSION 

The survey confirmed what the industry already knew in many areas. The 

number of dairy farms will continue to drop while the size of the remaining operations 

increase, which seems to mimic all production agriculture. Any future agricultural policy 

must contend with this trend. 

Dairy farmers favor North Dakota helping existing dairies expand and placing 

special emphasis on helping beginning farmers instead of trying to bring large out-of­

state dairy operations into the state. The dairy industry created a Dairy Diagnostic 

program in 1998 to help producers increase production. 

The survey reinforced the need to develop and maintain policies that promote the 

industry by: 

► Developing and implementing a means to assist existing dairy producers in expansion 

opportunities and to assist young producers who would like to start in the business. of 

► Assisting locally established industry. 

► Reducing government regulations. 

► Using political means to provide a reasonable and profitable minimum pricing 

system. 

► Eliminating the present price marketing system. 

► Promoting those conditions including feed availability , transportation, financing , 

weather, and production factors, that are favorable to North Dakota dairy industry . 

15 
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• ROGER JOHNSON 
COMMISSIONER OF AGRICULTURE PHONE: (701) 328-2231 

I 

1. 

Dist 

Dairy Producer, 

The dairy industry recently has been faced with significant 
challenges ar:id dramatic change. As a_ result, the North Dakota 
Department of Agriculture needs your ideas on how we can 
improve customer service and better target our attention to 
your needs. Please help us do that by. taking a few minutes to 
answer ~e following ques~ons. Your r:es_ponses will be kept 
confidenoal by the ND Agncultural Statistics Service who will 
compile the information and provide us with a summary. 
Please return the questionnaire with the completed Milk 
Production Report in the enclosed envelope. 

Thank You, 

Rt~ 
Commissioner of Agriculture 

ptease answer these questions for the farm you operate. 
(Check the appropriate yes or no box.) 

Did you milk cows on your farming operation on January 1, 1998? 
100 

( . {H yes, proceed to Item #2; If no, continue.} ........... . .... . . 

a. Did you quit milking cows in the previous two years (since January 1, 1996)? 
102 103 

{If yes, please complete back page; If no, this concludes the interview. Thank You!} 

. n January 1, 1998, what was the total number of dairy cattle on hand? '-1-04-------~---------' 

(Include all milking and dry cows, replacement heifers, calves, and bulls) . . . . . . . . . . Head 

3. Are you planning to li~uidate your dairy herd during 1998? . . ................ . 

4. Are you planning to expand your dairy herd during 1998? 

a. If yes , what is the peak number of head you plan to milk during 1998? 

5. Would you be in favor of donating an additional cent per hundredweight for a 
North Dakota Dairy Development and Education Program? ... . ... . 

6. Do you feel the current federal marlceting orders should be eliminated? . 

7. Do you feel the federal government should maintain a minimum price support system? 

8 . Do you feel North Dakota should try to attract new dairies from out of state 7 

- you feel North Dakota should help young farmers start in the dairy business 7 ... 

I ~ ou feel North Dakota should help current dairy farmers expand their operations? . 

l 1. If you produce feed, do you keep separate cost of production records on each ot your 
individual feed production enterprises? (Example : hay, com I 

105 

108 

1111 

YES > 

11 2 

115 

118 

121 

124 

127 

1:)'.) 

106 107 

109 110 

Head 

... ···. i , .. ,.·. ' 
·•· uNoi:cmm 

.. ,, 
113 114 

116 117 

119 120 

122 123 

125 126 

128 129 

1J1 132 

--·-··· -- ---



12. ~ease rate the foilowing conditions on how you feet they effect the North Dakota dairy indus:ry. {Ci-de rne best resoonse. ) 

•
P:ic:!s .. . . 

Re'.;:.:iaticns 

c . reed Ava1iab1iicy 

d. Weather 

e. Markets 

f. Produc:ion 

g. Lifesryie . 

h. Transportation 

I. 

Very 
Positive I Neutral I Negative I 

Very 
Positive Negative 

5 I 4 I 3 I 2 I 1 I 
11'.:-!11r-----s_--,---_ ... ~---_____; __ 2_-'----

11:si 5 4 _ 2 

11 ::51 5 I 4 I - I - I j I 
(1:?i'l 5 I 4 I - r 2 I i 

(l=s) I I I I 
. 

5 4 3 2 1 

(1:Sl 5 I 4 I - I 2 I 1 

5 I 4 I 3 I 2 I 1 I 
(1411 5 I 4 I 3 I 2 I 1 

13. How satisfied are you with the North Dakota Department of Agriculture inspec:ion process? {Circle your response.) 

·• 

1 · 
.. .. .. 

-I I r . : _.::verv ·:-
: Satisfied Ne!..!tral Dissatisfied Ver7 · . 

· · Satisfied. Dissatisfied 

a. Consis.:enc·; 5 I 4 I 3 I 2 I 1 

b. Fairness . .. .. . . . . . . (14.3) 5 I 4 I 3 I 2 I 1 

. c. lnsoec:or Professionaiism 

. Ac:::.;raq . .. .... . . . . 

e. Appropriateness 

(1.::.':i 

5 l 4 I 3 I 2 I 1 

- I 4 I 3 I 2 I i I 
- I 4 I - I 2 I 1 I 

, . r ::rr.:er ~;je~c!iness , 1 _,_;; I 2 
c_ _____ _c:.__ _____ :.__ ______ _;._ _____ ___;. ______ _ 

Tnis conc!udes ,he interview . Thank you for your time and cooperation. 

:•e3se comrr.em on any areas Nhere you !eei me Nort'i Dakota Oe;:,artment of Agric:.;lture couid improve service :;:i :he dairr indus.:ry . 

tame: Phone: 

• Office Use Sox 

I JS 



REVISED 4-6-99 

• BOVINE TUBERCULOSIS REQUEST 

Total Appraisal, Fried Herd $134,746 
(minus) 
Federal Indemnity (74,146) 
Salvage value (15,566) 

Indemnity Request for Tom Fried's Herd $45,034 

Milk indemnity payment, Tom Fried 
(15 day X 220/ day) $ 3,300 

Appraisal, 30 cows(900/cow) $27,000 
(minus) 
Federal Indemnity( 450/cow) (13,500) 
Salvage value estimated (300/cow) (9,000) 

• 
Indemnity request, 30 cows $4,500 

3 actual Suspects as of 3-6-99 ( appraised value) $3230 
(minus) 

Federal Indemnity( 450/cow) ($1350) 
No salvage value 0 

Indemnity request, 3 cows $1880 

Estimated Suspect Appraisal for 7 cow(900/cow) $6,300 
(Minus) 
Federal Indemnity ( 450/cow) (3150) 
Salvage value (300/cow) 0 

Indemnity request for suspects $3150 

• 



• 
Board of Animal Health Operating Costs 

Overtime and part time help $10000 
Mileage Motor Pool $ 4000 
Material and Vet supplies $ 2000 
Rental for equipment (chutes & other) $ 1500 

Total Operating $ 17,500 

Total request $75,364 

• 
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LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL LIBRARY HAS A COPY OR 
CONTACT DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE FOR COPY 

North Dakota Deparbnent 
of Agriculture 

Report to the 1999 Legislature 

Waste Pesticide rollection and ~ of Pesticide 
Containers 



TRANSFER. The office of management and budget shall transfer $160,000 from the 
environment and rangeland protection fund to the minor use pesticide fund, for the 
biennium beginning July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. 

SB2009 amendment 



EPA CODE LISTING 

Crop 

05 Fungicide 
11 Insecticide 
12 Herbicide 100 
13 Disinfectant/Detergent 
14 Plant Growth Regulator 50 
15 Algaecide/Slimicide 
16 Rodenticide 50 
17 Vertebrate Pesticide 
18 Parasiticide/Nematocide 
19 Preservative 
20 Fumigant 10 
21 Larvacide 8 
22 Nitrogen Stabilizer 1 
23 Dessicant/Defoliant 3 
24 Hybridizing Agent 2 
25 Other 
26 Repellents (Dog,Cat,Deer) 
27 Slugicides 
28 Bactericide 
41 Industrial Insecticide 30 
42 Industrial Herbicide 10 
43 Industrial Sanitizer 
45 Industrial Fungicide 10 
50 Industrial Fumigant 
51 Industrial Larvacide 
53 Industrial Dessicant 

Livestock 

200 

300 

100 
61 

35 

10 
40 

212 
10 

2 

Other Ag & 

Non-Ag 
Uses 

169 
2,403 

569 
1,007 

12 
372 

87 
27 
28 

169 
6 

10 

15 
41 

4 
16 
34 
20 

249 
21 

2 
2 



55 Industrial Algicides 62 
61 Ag Insecticide 456 24 
62 Ag Herbicide 521 
64 Ag Plant Growth 26 
65 Ag Fungicide 247 
66 Ag Rodenticide 3 
67 Ag Vertebrate 0 
68 Ag Parasiticide 7 
69 Ag Preservative 1 
70 Ag Fumigant 26 
71 Ag Larvacide 5 
72 Ag Nitrogen Stabilizer 1 
73 Ag Dessicant/Defoliant 8 
74 Ag Hybridizing Agent 1 
75 Other 1 
81 Technical Formulations 7 6 

TOTALS 1,567 1,012 5,330 

Rough estimate of pesticide registrations, broken down into crop, 
livestock, and other ag and non-ag uses. Prepared for SB 2009 Conference 
Committee, Senator Solberg, Chairman. 

April 8, 1999 

Garry W. ~gner ~ 
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Minor Use Fund and the Pesticide Control Board 

The National Sunflower Association was able to utilize the first grant from this 
fund created by the last Legislature. The Fund paid for residue work required by EPA. It 
allowed FMC, the manufacturer of Authority, to pursue a label on sunflower much earlier 
than previously anticipated. We hope to have a Section 18 label on this product for the 
1999 season. Farmers will be able to control a number of broad leaf weeds with this 
product that cannot be controlled any other way. The NSA has already applied to the 
Fund to accelerate the labeling of two additional herbicides. NSA surveys indicate that 
farmers can increase yields by 30 percent with adequate weed control. This Minor Use 
Fund is an excellent example of public and private cooperation. 

Wildlife Services: 

Sunflower producers lose about $15 million annually to blackbird damage in 
North Dakota. Wildlife Services is now using an avicide called DRC 1339 to control 
blackbirds that are doing damage. The product must be applied by Wildlife Service 
personnel. This is time consuming process. Wildlife Services is asking for additional 
personnel to work on this and other projects and the NSA is very supportive of that 
request. 

Larry Kleingartner 
National Sunflower Association 



WILDLIFE SERVICES 

~ he mission of Wildlife Services is to provide federal leadership in managing problems caused by wildlife to 

protect Agriculture and Public Health and Safety. Wildlife Services recognizes that wildlife is a significant 

public resource greatly valued by the people of North Dakota. By its very nature, however, wildlife is a highly 

dynamic and mobile resource that can damage agriculture, property, pose risks to human health and safety, 

and affect natural and man-made resources. The Wildlife Services program carries out the federal 

responsibility in cooperation with the State to manage problems that occur when human activity and wildlife 

are in conflict. 

Coyote depredation on livestock, particularly calves and lambs accounts for the majority of predator related 

complaints received by Wildlife Services. Wildlife Services manages predator damage through the use of 

aerial and ground hunting, snares, traps, M-44's, and by providing technical assistance when appropriate. 

Blackbirds annually cause an estimated $20-30 million damage to sunflower corn and small grain crops in 

North Dakota. Wildlife Services manages blackbird depredation through reduction of habitat, particularly 

dense cattail stands, baiting projects, and technical assistance. Additionally, Wildlife Services research 

expends $350,000 annually to refine and develop new methods to manage blackbird damage problems . 

• in 1994 Wildlife Services responded to 26 rabies in wildlife threat requests. By 1998 the number of requests 

had increased to 153. Additionally in 1998, Wildlife Services provided protection of timber resources, 

pasture land and road structures from beaver damage, after verifying $331 ,328 in damages. 

The proposed budget including the additional funding request will allow North Dakota Wildlife Services to 

continue to protect agriculture, natural resources, property, and to safeguard public health and safety. 

Wildlife Services is requesting a funding increase of $115,831 to handle urban wildlife problems and assist 

with the increased effort of managing blackbird damage on sunflower, corn and small grains. 

Wildlife Services in North Dakota has traditionally been a partnership of cooperative, State and Federal 

funding . Cooperative sources include cities , airport authorities, counties, water resource districts , other 

federal agencies and individuals and other private entities. Wildlife Services takes an integrated approach to 

both the funding and solving of a variety of human/wildlife conflicts in a manner which protects resources , 

without significant impacts on wildlife. 
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DOWNTOWN 
Shop ~h~ Heor-t of Miriot and ft<1rk FRI■ In th~ Park ar'ld Shop l oht 

Lett.er to : Education & Environmentul Co1nmittee 

Re: Senate Bill 20091 Commission of Agriculture 

Main Street Minot and surrounding areas are plagued with birds. The birds pose an enonnous 
health hazard, they cany many diseases. The birds roost on roof tops where the hfrds andfor their 
foce.s t8 puUed into the heating and air conditioning ·units, exposing the e.mployces an<.J patn.)ns to 
many -unknown health hazards. The cost of cleaning and repairs to these uni.ts jn our area in the 
past few years are. thousands. 

The unique and historic buildings in our area have birds roosting on ledges over hanging the 
streets. Bird feces on the sidewalks create a special problem when it rains, the sidewalks become 
s.lick as if covered with oil. people fall and are injurt.-d. The damage done to the old build.i ngs 
from the birds is immeasurable in cost, bird feces is like acid eating away at the buildin_gs. Due to 
damages caused by the pigeons the overall appearance of <.rnr area. is much like · .. 

ln the past _privat~ contractors were hired to control the birds. Due to public pressure to control 
the birds in the most humane way (cost was also a factor) the wild lifo services wer~ consulted. 
The cost is an enormous expense to the muny small businesses. The cost of control is financed. by 
u few small businesses, however because of the growing problem, the businesse~ cannot continue 
to finance the pigeon control nlon~. The problem is city wide and the benefits are 1·euped by the 
city as a whole. 

Please consider all factors of this bill , the economic and human impact this will have on our 
comm uni tie:-; 

Elizabeth Flemming 
Director, 
Downtown Business and Professional Assoc-iation 
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March 11, 1999 

Rough Rider Room 

I am Gary R. Ness, Executive Director of the North Dakota Aeronautics Commission. I 

am entering this written testimony in suppop: of the Agriculture Department's 

Appropriation Bill. 

In particular, we in the aviation industry support the wildlife services section of the 

budget. These services have played a big role in our larger airports with wildlife control. 

Wildlife can be a hazard on airports and for many years the airports in the state did not 

have anywhere to go for the expertise that John Paulson and his staff provides to the 

problem. We highly support the continued support by the legislature for the program. 

John can provide you with the necessary facts on this particular section during his part of 

the discussion in committee on SB 2009. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 
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House of Representatives 

Box 538 

Minot, North Dakota 
58702 

March 11, 1999 

Education and Environmental Committee 

Senate Bill 2009 

Park Maintenance 
Forestry 
Horticulture 
857 -4178 

SVGC 
Maintenance 
857 -4188 

1 am here today asking for your support of the USDAIAPHJS.1WJU)JJJ,J~ SI~RVIC/j'S 
enhancement package of$116,_000 .00 for the purpose of addressing the increasing Urban 
wildlife problems. 

While a healthy wildlife population can and often times adds to a communities quality of 
experiences it can also create many problems. There are laws and rules of conduct that 
prohibit the ordinary urban citizen from solving problems arising from the encroachment 
of wildlife in to a community or conversely the encroachment of the communities into 
wildlife areas. 

In a rural setting if you have a problem with a skunk, fox, mink, or badger the logical 
solution is to dispatch the offending animal. In an urban setting this is not practical, nor 
do most urbanites have the equipment or the expertise to eliminate the problem without 
putting their fellow citizens in danger. 

Two years age I testified before the Senate Agriculture Committee in support of similar 
legislation on behalf of the Minot Park District, and I am doing so again today. 

The Minot Park District uses the services of the USDA many times a year. The usual 
request is for the removal of Beaver in Oak and Roosevelt Parks. This usually occurs 
twice a year, in the spring of the year when the adults are moving to find new quarters and 
in the fall when the young have left their parents dens and are out looking for winter 
quarters. 

I can not give you an estimate of the cost of replacing the young trees that have been 
removed by beaver in these two parks, but it is considerable. I can relate to you the costs 
of replacing animals lost in Roosevelt Park Zoo to Mink. In two nights a mink killed a 
flamingo $2,500 to $5,000 .00, an Ibis $200 - $300 and an Egret at $100. On another 
occasion a mink killed all the chickens in the children's zoo in one night. We have had 
problems with Herring Gulls in our penguin exhibit. Part of the penguins diet is smelt, 
herring and Capland . The smelt attract the Gulls, which are very brave and rea11y do not 
care what deterrents you place in front of them as long as they can get to the smelt. 

The heart of a community is refl ec ted in the quality of it s park s . 



• 

This would seem like a simple problem, but, the Gulls are a protected bird and therefore 
we can not take care of the problem in a logical manner, we have to call on the services of 
individuals that have the authority to deal with wildlife problems. 

The problems that we have had to ask for assistance with, range from the above 
mentioned beaver and mink problems to gopher control on a soccer and softball field . 

I must mention that the arrangement between the USDA Wildlife Services and the Park 
District are very good and we do provide special services and equipment to the service 
when needed in the form of large animal capture equipment. 

I have been asked also to deliver a letter of support from the Minot Downtown Business 
and Professional Association. 

z ly,~~ 
Leo D. Brunner 
Director of Parks 
Minot park District. 
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WILDLIF SERVICES 
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• Wildliff Services 
Coyotes Taken with Aircraft in North Dakota 
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WILDLIF, SERVICES • 
Federal Congressional Directive and State Dollars Spent on 

Blackbird Management in North Dakota 
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• • • Sunflower Producers Assisted During Fall 1998 DRC-1339 Baiting Project 
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·a11 1998 DRC-1339 Baiting s• Per County in North Dokata 
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• WILDLIF SERVICES 
Federal Funding 



• WILDLIF SERVICES 
Non-Federal Funding 
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• WILDLIF SERVICES 
Beaver Damage to Resources 
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• WILDLIF ERVICES 
Beaver Damage to Resources 
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